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N O T I C E

NOTICE is hereby given that the 39th Annual 
General Mee�ng of the Members of TGV SRAAC 
LIMITED (CIN:L24110AP19851PLC003077) will be 
held through (Video Conference) VC / OAVM 
(Other Audio Visual Means) Mode on Monday, the 
27th September, 2021 at 11.30 A.M to transact the 
following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1)  To receive, consider and adopt the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and the Statement 
of Profit and Loss for the year ended and other 
annexures together with the Reports of 
Directors and the Auditors  a�ached thereto.

2)  To appoint a Director in place of Sri K. Karunakar 
Rao (DIN:02031367) who re�res by rota�on 
a n d  b e i n g  e l i g i b l e  o ffe rs  h i m s e l f  fo r                    
re-appointment.

3)  To appoint a Director in place of Sri N. Jesvanth 
Reddy (DIN:03074131) who re�res by rota�on 
a n d  b e i n g  e l i g i b l e  o ffe rs  h i m s e l f  fo r                       
re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS :

4)  Ra�fica�on for appointment of Sri Srinivasa 
Babu Chappidi (DIN:09266926) as Execu�ve 
Director (Technical) and for fixa�on of 
Remunera�on by  the  Board.

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the 
following resolu�on as a  Special Resolu�on.

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sec. 196, 197, 
198 read with Schedule V and other applicable 
provisions if any of the Companies Act, 2013 
including any amendments, modifica�ons, 
varia�ons or re-enactments to any of the 
foregoing and subject to required statutory 
approvals as may be necessary, the members of 
the company hereby ra�fy  the Board 
recommenda�on for appointment of Sri 

Srinivasa Babu Chappidi (DIN:09266926) as 
Execu�ve Director (Technical) for a period of 
One year i.e., from 04-08-2021 to 03-08-2022 in 
its mee�ng held on 31.07.2021, upon the 
r e c o m m e n d a � o n  o f  N o m i n a � o n  a n d 
Remunera�on Commi�ee (dt.31.07.2021) on 
the  following  terms  and  condi�ons. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sri Srinivasa Babu 
Chappidi will be paid Rs.3,00,000/- per month 
as Consolidated salary + allowances, perquisites 
and other benefits as per the Rules of the 
Company.  Perquisites shall be evaluated as per 
Income Tax Rules or at actual costs. However, 
the following will not be included in the above 
perquisites  limit.

 a) Company’s contribu�on to Provident Fund, 
Pension and Superannua�on Fund will not 
be included in computa�on of the ceiling or 
perquisites to the extent of these either 
singly or put together are not taxable under 
the Income Tax Act.

 b) Use of Company Car for Official purpose and 
phone at residence/Cell phone for official 
purpose (including payment of local and 
long distance calls).

 c) Earned/privileged leave – on full pay and 
allowance as per Rules of Company. Leave 
accumulated and not availed during the 
tenure may be encashed as per Rules of the 
Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of 
absence or inadequacy of Profits in any financial 
year the aforesaid remunera�on shall be 
treated as minimum remunera�on in pursua-
nce to Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
and any amendment thereof from �me to �me.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the posi�on of 
directorship of incumbent is subject to 
re�rement by rota�on in pursuant to Ar�cles of 
Associa�on of the company.
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 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Sri V. Radhakrishna 
Murthy, CGM and Company Secretary is hereby 
authorized to take all necessary steps to comply 
with statutory provisions and to file Form    
MGT-14, Form MR-1, DIR-12 and other related 
forms with MCA/ROC and to digitally sign the 
same  to  comply  with  statutory  formali�es.

5)  Approval  for  Mater ia l  Re lated  Party 
Transac�ons. 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modifica�on(s) ,  the fol lowing 
Resolu�on as an  Ordinary Resolu�on.

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sec�on 188 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with 
the Companies (Mee�ngs of the Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regula�on 23 of the 
Securi�es of Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015, (including any amendment, 
modifica�on, varia�on or re-enactment to any 
of the foregoing), and subject to such other 
approvals, consents, permissions and sanc�ons 
of other authori�es as may be necessary, 
consent of the Members of the Company be and 
is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of 
the Company (hereina�er referred to as “the 
Board” which term shall be deemed to include 
any Commi�ee of the Board), to ra�fy/approve 
al l  exis�ng contracts /  arrangements/ 
agreements / transac�ons for the year 2020-21 
aggregate value of Rs.223.75 Cr (i.e. Rs.0.75 Cr 
move than shareholders approval for es�mated 
value i.e. Rs.223.00 Cr accorded in the 38th 
AGM) and to enter into new/further contracts/ 
arrangements/agreements/transac�ons with  
related par�es to the aggregate value of 
Rs.263.51 Crs (es�mated) for the year 2021-22 
(including any modifica�ons, altera�ons or 
amendments thereto), in the ordinary course of 
business and on arm’s length basis with ‘Related 
Par�es’ within the meaning of the Act and the 

Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015, as more par�cularly 
enumerated in the explanatory statement to 
the No�ce and on such terms and condi�ons as 
may be agreed between the Company and 
related par�es.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of 
giving effect to this resolu�on, the Board be and 
is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, 
ma�ers and things and execute all such deeds, 
documents and wri�ngs, on an ongoing basis, as 
may be necessary, proper or expedient for the 
purpose of giving effect to the above resolu�on.

6 )  R a� fi ca� o n  fo r  Re - a p p o i nt m e nt  a n d 
Remunera�on of Cost Auditor.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modifica�on(s),  the Following 
Resolu�on as an  Ordinary  Resolu�on.

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sec�on 148 and all other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment 
thereof, for the �me being in force), the 
appointment of M/s.Aruna Prasad & Co., 
(Regn.No.100883) Proprietrix : Aruna Prasad as 
Cost Auditors of the Company by the Board of 
Directors of the Company in its mee�ng held on 
03.06.2021 (upon the recommenda�on of 
Audit Commi�ee in its mee�ng held on 
03.06.2021) on a remunera�on of Rs.1,50,000/- 
plus GST and reimbursement of out of pocket 
expenses, to conduct the audit of the cost 
records of the Company for the Financial Year 
ending March 31, 2022, be and is hereby 
ra�fied.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorised to do all acts and take all such steps 
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as may be necessary, proper or expedient to 
give effect to this Resolu�on.

7)  Crea�on of Security in favour of Indian Bank 
for availing Term Loan for Chloromethanes 
Expansion Project.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modifica�on, the following Resolu�on 
which is proposed as an Special Resolu�on. 

 RESOLVED THAT the consent by way of 
approval of the members is hereby accorded to 
the Company in terms of Sec�on 180 (1) (a) and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for crea�on/to be created 
of mortgage and/charge by the Board of 
Directors of the Company of all the fixed assets 
of the Company (as clearly explained and 
men�oned in the explanatory statement) 
wheresoever situate, present and future, and 
the whole of undertaking of the Company 
together with power to take over the 
management of the business and concern of 
the Company in certain events, to or in favour of 
Indian Bank for crea�on/to be created of 
security on pari passu first charge basis as 
under.

 Lender                                 Term Loan (Rs. in Crs )

 Indian Bank                                                  100.00

 together with interest thereon at the respec�ve 
agreed rates, compound interest, addi�onal 
interest, liquidated damages, premia on 
prepayment or on redemp�on, costs, charges, 
expenses and other moneys payable by the 
company to the Lenders under their Loan 
agreements in respect of the said financial 
assistance.

8) Crea�on of security in favour of Banks for 
availing Term Loans under GECL Scheme/ 
COVID Loans.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modifica�on, the following Resolu�on 
which is proposed as an  Special  Resolu�on. 

 RESOLVED THAT the consent by way of 
approval of the members is hereby accorded to 
the Company in terms of Sec�on 180 (1) (a) and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for crea�on/to be created 
of mortgage and/charge by the Board of 
Directors of the Company of all the fixed 
assets/current assets of the Company (as clearly 
explained and men�oned in the explanatory 
statement) wheresoever situate, present and 
future, and the whole of undertaking of the 
Company together with power to take over the 
management of the business and concern of 
the Company in certain events, to or in favour of 
members of Banks consor�um for crea�on/to 
be created of security on paripassu first/second 
charge basis on fixed assets and current assets 
as under.

 Lenders                              Term  Loan (Rs. in Crs )
 Indian Bank                              18.20  (9.53+8.67)
 IDBI Bank Ltd.                            9.57
 Punjab Na�onal Bank            2.25
 The Federal Bank Ltd.               0.37
 The South Indian Bank Ltd.      1.61   (0.86+0.75)

 together with interest thereon at the respec�ve 
agreed rates, compound interest, addi�onal 
interest, liquidated damages, premia on 
prepayment or on redemp�on, costs, charges, 
expenses and other moneys payable by the 
company to the Lenders under their Loan 
agreements in respect of the said financial 
assistance.

By order of the Board

CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY
COMPANY SECRETARY

Sd/-

Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021
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NOTES :

1. The Board in its mee�ng held on 26.08.2021 has 
approved the company’s proposal to conduct 
39th Annual General Mee�ng through (Video 
Conference) VC / OAVM (Other Audio Visual 
Means) instead of physical Annual General 
Mee�ng in compliance of General Circular No. 
20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020 and 13th 
January, 2021 and a�er due examina�on, it has 
been decided to allow companies whose AGMs 
were due to be held in the year 2020, or become 
due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on 
o r  b efo re  3 0 .0 9 .2 021 / 31 .12 .202 1 ,  in 
accordance with the requirements provided in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 
20/2020 as per MCA Circular no. 02/2021 dated 
January 13, 2021 issued in view of con�nua�on 
of Covid-19  pandemic.

2) Further, it has been decided that physical copies 
of Annual Reports will not be sent by post to 
Members and instead only so� copy of Annual 
Report (including No�ce of AGM) will be sent to 
Registered email_ids of shareholders in 
pursuance to MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated 
April 13, 2020 & 12.05.2020 and SEBI Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 
dated 09.12.2020 and Shareholders can view 
so� copy of the Annual Report on company’s 
website www.tgvgroup.com and BSE Website 
and also on RTA Website.

 Since the company has opted for convening 
Annual General Mee�ng through VC/OAVM, 
there will not be any provision for physical ballot 
vo�ng. Members who have par�cipated in 
Annual General Mee�ng through VC/OAVM 
mode can cast their vote through e-vo�ng at the 
�me of Annual General Mee�ng (provided that 
he has not cast his vote through remote              
e-vo�ng).

3.  Pursuant to Sec.91 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regula�on 42 of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015, the Register of Members and Share 
Transfer Books of the Company will remain 
closed for 7 (Seven) days i.e. from 21.09.2021 to 
27.09.2021 (both days inclusive).

4.  Non-resident Indian Shareholders  are 
requested to inform us immediately :

 a) the change in Residen�al Status on return to 
India for permanentse�lement.

 b) the par�culars of Bank/NRE Account, if not 
furnished earlier.

E-Vo�ng:

 The Company is pleased to provide E-Vo�ng facility 
through Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) for all members of the Company to enable 
them to cast their votes electronically on the 
resolu�ons men�oned in the no�ce of 39th Annual 
Genera l  Mee�ng of  the  Company dated               
27th September, 2021. The Company has 
appointed Mr. M. Nirmal Kumar Reddy, B.Com., 
F.C.A.,  I .S.A,  I .R.M.,  Prac�cing Chartered 
Accountant as the Scru�nizer for conduc�ng and 
comple�ng the E-vo�ng coun�ng process in a fair 
and transparent manner. 

 The E-vo�ng rights of the Shareholders / beneficial 
owners shall be reckoned on the equity shares held 
by them as on 20th September, 2021. The 
instruc�ons for Members for vo�ng electronically 
are as under:

Shareholders who have not registered their 
email_ids are requested to register / update 
immediately to enable the company to send so� 
copy of Annual Report of the ensuing Annual 
General Mee�ng and for future communica�on.

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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CDSL e-Vo�ng System – For Remote e-vo�ng and 
Joining Virtual mee�ngs e-vo�ng during AGM 
/EGM  

1. As you are aware, in view of the situa�on arising 
due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general 
mee�ngs of the companies shall be conducted 
as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 
14/2020 dated Apri l  8,  2020, Circular 
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular 
No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and January 
13, 2021. The forthcoming AGM will thus be 
held through video conferencing (VC) or other 
audio visual means (OAVM).  Hence, Members 
can a�end and par�cipate in the ensuing 
AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administra�on) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regula�on 44 of 
S E B I  (L is�ng Obl iga�ons & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons 2015 (as amended), 
and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 
13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 and January 13, 
2021 the Company is providing facility of 
remote e-vo�ng to its Members in respect of 
the bus iness  to  be transacted at  the 
AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has 
entered into an agreement with Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for 
facilita�ng vo�ng through electronic means, as 
the authorized e-Vo�ng’s agency. The facility of 
cas�ng votes by a member using remote            
e-vo�ng as well as the e-vo�ng system on the 
date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by 
CDSL.

3. The Members can join the AGM in the 
VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and a�er 
the scheduled �me of the commencement of 

the Mee�ng by following the procedure 
men�oned in the No�ce. The facility of 
par�cipa�on at the AGM through VC/OAVM 
will be made available to atleast 1000 members 
on first come first served basis. This will not 
include large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Ins�tu�onal  Investors ,  D irectors ,  Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the 
A u d i t  C o m m i � e e ,  N o m i n a � o n  a n d 
Remunera�on Commi�ee and Stakeholders 
Rela�onship Commi�ee, Auditors etc. who are 
allowed to a�end the AGM without restric�on 
on account of first come first served basis.

4. The a�endance of the Members a�ending the 
AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under 
Sec�on 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to 
a�end and cast vote for the members is not 
available for this AGM. However, in pursuance 
of Sec�on 112 and Sec�on 113 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, representa�ves of the 
members such as the President of India or the 
Governor of a State or body corporate can 
a�end the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and 
cast their votes through e-vo�ng.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, the No�ce calling the AGM has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company at 
www.tgvgroup.com. The No�ce can also be 
accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and Na�onal Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com 
and www.nseindia.com respec�vely.  The AGM 
No�ce is also disseminated on the website of 
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CDSL (agency for providing the Remote              
e-Vo�ng facility and e-vo�ng system during the 
AGM) i.e. www.evo�ngindia.com.

7. The AGM/EGM has been convened through 
VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 
2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 
13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated 
May 05, 2020 and January 13, 2021.

8. In con�nua�on of this Ministry’s General 
Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020 and 
a�er due examina�on, it has been decided to 
allow companies whose AGMs were due to be 
held in the year 2020, or become due in the year 
2021, to conduct their AGMs on or before 
3 1 . 1 2 . 2 0 2 1 ,  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  t h e 
requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
the General Circular No. 20/2020 as per MCA 
circular no. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-
VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE 
AS UNDER:

 (i) The vo�ng period begins on 23.09.2021 at 
9.00 A.M. and ends on 26.09.2021 at 5.00 
P.M. During this period shareholders’ of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form, as on the 
cut-off date (record date) of 20.09.2021 may 
cast their vote electronically. The e-vo�ng 
module shall be disabled by CDSL for vo�ng 
therea�er.

 (ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior 
to the mee�ng date would not be en�tled to 
vote at the mee�ng venue.

 (iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/ 
C F D /  C M D / C I R / P/ 2 0 2 0 / 2 4 2  d ate d 

09.12.2020, under Regula�on 44 of 
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
(L i s�ng Obl iga�ons  and Disc losure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, listed 
en��es are required to provide remote        
e-vo�ng facility to its shareholders, in 
respect of all shareholders’ resolu�ons. 
However, it has been observed that the 
par�cipa�on by the public non-ins�tu�onal 
shareholders/ retail shareholders is at a 
negligible level. 

  Currently, there are mul�ple e-vo�ng 
service providers (ESPs) providing e-vo�ng 
facility to listed en��es in India. This 
necessitates registra�on on various ESPs 
and maintenance of mul�ple user IDs and 
passwords by the shareholders. 

  In order to increase the efficiency of the 
vo�ng process, pursuant to a public 
consulta�on, it has been decided to enable 
e-vo�ng to all the demat account holders, by 
way of a single login creden�al, through 
their  demat accounts/  websites  of 
Depositories/ Depository Par�cipants. 
Demat account holders would be able to 
cast their vote without having to register 
again with the ESPs, thereby, not only 
facilita�ng seamless authen�ca�on but also 
enhancing ease and convenience of 
par�cipa�ng in e-vo�ng process. 

 (iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ 
CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 
2020 on e-Vo�ng facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode are allowed to 
vote  through the i r  demat  account 
mainta ined  wi th  Depos i tor ies  and 
Depository Par�cipants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and 
email Id in their demat accounts in order to 
access e-Vo�ng facility.

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ngs for Individual 
shareholders holding securi�es in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securi�es in Demat 
mode with CDSL

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 
exis�ng user id and password. Op�on will be made available to reach e-
Vo�ng page without any further authen�ca�on. The URL for users to login to 
Easi / Easiest are h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) A�er successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Vo�ng 
op�on for eligible companies where the evo�ng is in progress as per the 
informa�on provided by company. On clicking the evo�ng op�on, the user 
will be able to see e-Vo�ng page of the e-Vo�ng service provider for cas�ng 
your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & 
vo�ng during the mee�ng. Addi�onally, there is also links provided to access 
the system of all e-Vo�ng Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/ 
LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Vo�ng service providers’ 
website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, op�on to register is available at 
h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registra�on/EasiRegistra�on

4) Alterna�vely, the user can directly access e-Vo�ng page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Vo�ng link available on  
www.cdslindia.com home page or click on h�ps://evo�ng.cdslindia.com/ 
Evo�ng/ Evo�ng Login The system will authen�cate the user by sending OTP 
on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. A�er 
successful authen�ca�on, user will be able to see the e-Vo�ng op�on where 
the evo�ng is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-
Vo�ng Service Providers.

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ sec�on. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. A�er 
successful authen�ca�on, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng services. 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat 
mode with NSDL

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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Type of shareholders  Login Method

 Click on “Access to e-Vo�ng” under e-Vo�ng services and you will be able to 
see e-Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider 
name and you will be re-directed to e-Vo�ng service provider website for 
cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual 
mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, op�on to register is 
available at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
“Portal or click at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/ SecureWeb/ Ideas Direct 
Reg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Vo�ng system is 
launched, cl ick on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ sec�on. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verifica�on Code as shown on the screen. A�er 
successful authen�ca�on, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Vo�ng service 
provider website for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or 
joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securi�es in 
demat mode) login 
through their 
Depository 
Par�cipants

You can also login using the login creden�als of your demat account through 
your Depository Par�cipant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vo�ng facility.  
A�er Successful login, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng op�on. Once you click on 
e-Vo�ng op�on, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site a�er 
successful authen�ca�on, wherein you can see e-Vo�ng feature. Click on 
company name or e-Vo�ng service provider name and you will be redirected to 
e-Vo�ng service provider website for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-
Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password op�on available at abovemen�oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL.

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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Login type Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evo�ng@ 
cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in or call at 
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in Demat mode with NSDL

(v) Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual 
mee�ngs for Physical shareholders and 
shareholders other than individual holding in 
Demat form.

 1) The shareholders should log on to the e-
vo�ng website www.evo�ngindia.com.

 2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
 3) Now enter your User ID 
  a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
  b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 

8 Digits Client ID, 
  c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical 

Form should enter Folio Number 
registered with the Company.

 4) Next enter the Image Verifica�on as 
displayed and Click on Login.

 5) If you are holding shares in demat form and 
had logged on to www.evo�ngindia.com 
and voted on an earlier e-vo�ng of any 
company, then your exis�ng password is to 
be used. 

 6) If you are a first-�me user follow the steps 
given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual 
shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN 
issued by Income Tax Department 
( A p p l i c a b l e  f o r  b o t h  d e m a t 
shareholders as well  as physical 
shareholders)

• Shareholders who have not updated 
t h e i r  P A N  w i t h  t h e 
Company/Depository Par�cipant 
are requested to use the sequence 
number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company/ RTA.

Dividend 
Bank 

Details
OR 

Date of 
Birth 

(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date 
of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in 
the company records in order to login.

• If both the details are not recorded 
with the depository or company, 
please enter the member id / folio 
number in the Dividend Bank details 
field.

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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(vi) A�er entering these details appropriately, 
click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form 
will then directly reach the Company selec�on 
screen. However, shareholders holding shares 
in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
Crea�on’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the 
new password field. Kindly note that this 
password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for vo�ng for resolu�ons of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-vo�ng 
through C D S L pla�orm. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confiden�al.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical 
form, the details can be used only for e-vo�ng 
on the resolu�ons contained in this No�ce.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant TGV SRAAC 
Limited on which you choose to vote.

(x) O n  t h e  v o � n g  p a g e ,  y o u  w i l l  s e e 
“RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against 
the same the op�on “YES/NO” for vo�ng. 
Select the op�on YES or NO as desired. The 
op�on YES implies that you assent to the 
Resolu�on and op�on NO implies that you 
dissent to the Resolu�on.

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you 
wish to view the en�re Resolu�on details.

(xii) A�er selec�ng the resolu�on, you have 
decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
confirma�on box will be displayed. If you wish 
to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to 
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the 
resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by 
clicking on “Click here to print” op�on on the 
Vo�ng page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgo�en the 
login password then Enter the User ID and the 
image verifica�on code and click on Forgot 
Password & enter the details as prompted by 
the system.

(xvi) Addi�onal Facility for Non – Individual 
Shareholders and Custodians – For Remote 
Vo�ng only.

 • Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to www.evo�ngindia.com 
and register themselves in the “Corporates” 
module.

 • A scanned copy of the Registra�on Form 
bearing the stamp and sign of the en�ty 
should be emailed to helpdesk.evo�ng @ 
cdslindia.com.

 • A�er  rece iv ing  the  log in  deta i l s  a 
Compliance User should be created using the 
admin login and password. The Compliance 
User would be able to link the account(s) for 
which they wish to vote on.

 • The list of accounts linked in the login should 
be mailed to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia. 
com and on approval of the accounts they 
would be able to cast their vote. 

 • A scanned copy of the Board Resolu�on and 
Power of A�orney (POA) which they have 
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should 
be uploaded in PDF format in the system for 
the scru�nizer to verify the same.

TGV SRAAC LIMITED



 • Alterna�vely Non Individual shareholders 
are required to send the relevant Board 
Resolu�on/ Authority le�er etc. together with 
a�ested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory who are authorized to 
vote, to the Scru�nizer and to the Company at 
the email address viz; Sralakalies@tgvmail.net 
(designated email address by company), if 
they have voted from individual tab & not 
uploaded same in the CDSL e-vo�ng system 
for the scru�nizer to verify the same.

I N S T R U C T I O N S  F O R  S H A R E H O L D E R S 
AT T E N D I N G  T H E  A G M / E G M  T H R O U G H 
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE 
AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for a�ending mee�ng &            
e-Vo�ng on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same 
as the instruc�ons men�oned above for          
e-vo�ng.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to a�end mee�ng will 
be available where the EVSN of Company will 
be displayed a�er successful login as per the 
instruc�ons men�oned above for e-vo�ng.

3. Shareholders who have voted through 
Remote e-Vo�ng will be eligible to a�end the 
mee�ng. However, they will not be eligible to 
vote at the AGM/EGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the 
Mee�ng through Laptops / IPads for be�er 
experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow 
Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the mee�ng.

6. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from 
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connec�ng  v ia  Mobi le  Hotsp ot  may 
exper ience Audio/Video loss  due to 

Fluctua�on in their respec�ve network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or 
LAN Connec�on to mi�gate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their 
views/ask ques�ons during the mee�ng may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending 
their request in advance atleast7 days prior to 
mee�ng men�oning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at (company email id). The 
shareholders who do not wish to speak during 
the AGM but have queries may send their 
queries in advance 7 days prior to mee�ng 
men�oning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at (company email id). These queries 
will be replied to by the company suitably by 
email. 

8. Those shareholders who have registered 
themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to 
express their views/ask ques�ons during the 
mee�ng.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in 
the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility 
and have not casted their vote on the 
Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-Vo�ng system 
available during the EGM/AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders 
through the e-vo�ng available during the 
EGM/AGM and if the same shareholders have 
not par�cipated in the mee�ng through 
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the 
facility of e-vo�ng during the mee�ng is 
available only to the shareholders a�ending 
the mee�ng.

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE 
EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide 
necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
cer�ficate (front and back), PAN (self a�ested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 
to Company/RTA email id.

2.  For Demat shareholders -, Please update your 
email id & mobile no. with your respec�ve 
Depository Par�cipant (DP) 

3.  For Individual Demat shareholders – Please 
update your email id & mobile no. with your 
respec�ve Depository Par�cipant (DP) which is 
mandatory while e-Vo�ng & joining virtual 
mee�ngs through Depository.

By order of the Board

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(Pursuant to Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

The following Statement, as required under Sec�on 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013, sets out all 
material facts rela�ng to the items of Special 
Business men�oned in the accompanying No�ce.

ITEM NO. 4

It is brought to the kind no�ce of the members that 
the Board (on recommenda�on of Nomina�on & 
Remunera�on commi�ee) in its mee�ng held on 
31.07.2021 has co-opted Sri Srinivasa Babu 
Chappidi as Addi�onal Director in pursuance to Sec. 
161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Board 
has designated him as Execu�ve Director 
(Technical) to take care of all technical ma�ers and 
implementa�on of future strategic plans on terms 
and condi�ons as set out in the resolu�on subject 
to shareholders approval in the ensuing AGM 
effec�ve from 04.08.2021 (the date of allotment of 
DIN by MCA) pursuant to relevant provisions of 
Ar�cles of Associa�on whose place is subject to 
re�rement by rota�on. 

Further it may kindly be noted that Sri Srinivasa 
Babu Chappidi has given his consent to act as 
Director in the prescribed format of Form MBP-1 
and also given required declara�on sta�ng that the 
disqualifica�on provisions provided in Sec. 164 
read with  Companies  (Appointment  and 
Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014 are not 
applicable to him.

Required informa�on with respect to the company 
and the proposed candidate are furnished in 
pursuance to the relevant provisions of Schedule V 
read with SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 furnished  
as an annexure hereunder.  

TGV SRAAC LIMITED

Sd/-
CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY

COMPANY SECRETARY

Place : Hyderabad
Date  : 26th August, 2021 
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Annexure

I.  General Informa�on

(1) Nature of Industry: Manufacturer’s of Chloro Alkalie Chemicals, Chloromethanes, Castor oil deriva�ves, 
Fa�y Acids and  Power Genera�on.

 Name Change : Name of the Company has been changed from M/s Sree Rayalaseema Alkalies and Allied 
Chemicals Limited to M/s TGV SRAAC LIMITED (CIN:L24110AP1981PLC003077) for easy recogni�on and 
iden�fica�on vide RoC Approval Dt.14.10.2017. 

(2) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of ac�vi�es as per project approved by the 
financial ins�tu�ons appearing in the prospectus :

- Not Applicable –

(3) Financial Performance :

Par�culars

Revenue from opera�ons

Profit Before Interest, Deprecia�on and Tax

Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account

Equity Capital

Year Ended 
31.03.2021

Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

1008.72

151.72

28.95

107.09

1040.26

160.13

47.27

101.74

1204.57

237.90

68.40

96.69

(4)   Foreign Investment or Collabora�on, if any :
- Not Applicable – 
II.  Informa�on about the appointee :
(1) Background details : 
 Sri Srinivasa Babu Chappidi is an Engineering 

graduate in Chemical engineering from 
Andhra University and Post Graduate from NIT 
Warangal.  Started his career as management 
trainee at IFFCO has put in more than 35 years 
of experience in senior management cadre 
both in India and abroad of reputed Listed 
companies in Chemicals Industry.  He is of 55 
years old.

(2)  Past Remunera�on :
 His previous employment is with M/s. Aditya 

Birla Chemicals (Thailand) Limited in Thailand 
at a remunera�on of USD 158000 per year.

(3)   Job Profile and his suitability :
 To take care of all Technical Ma�ers and to 

ensure overall plant safety, ongoing projects 
management, planning future strategic plans 
and for ensuring sustainable growth of the 
company. 

(4)   Remunera�on Proposed :
 Exis�ng Remunera�on has been recommended 

by Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 
and Board Directors which is appropriate and 
reasonable, keeping in view of Responsibility, 
Rights and Accountability.

(5) Compara�ve Remunera�on with respect to 
Industry, size of the Company, profile of the 
posi�on and person :

 Considering the size of the Company and the job 
profile of the posi�on and the creden�als and 

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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p e r fo r m a n c e  o f  t h e  a p p o i nte e ,  t h e 
remunera�on proposed is moderate and 
reasonable and comparable well with that of 
similar companies.

(6) Pecuniary rela�onship directly or indirectly 
with the Company or rela�onship with the 
Managerial Personnel, if any.

 Sri Srinivasa Babu Chappidi is not having any 
pecuniary rela�onship with the company 
except that he is in employment of the 
company and he is not related to any Directors 
or Promoters of the Company. He is not 
holding any shares in the company.

III.    Other Informa�on :
(1) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 

improvement of the Company :
 Expansion Programme of Chloromethanes 

Project is in advanced stage. Moderniza�on 
programme is under implementa�on in 
Chemical division. Once these programmes 
are completed, the profitability of the 
company is expected for further improvement 
In view of these projects.  Keeping in view of 
ever changing environment, it is impera�ve for 
well designed and documented strategic plans 
for sustainable growth of the company for 
which the incumbent is more suitable.

(2)    Expected Increase in produc�vity and profits 
in measurable terms :

 Depending upon the nature of the Industry, it 
has not been predicted accurately as the same 
is dependent on various factors.

IV.   Disclosures :
The Company being a Listed Company, the 
provisions of Corporate Governance are applicable 
and hence required details are furnished here to 
comply with Regula�on 36 of SEBI (Lis�ng 
Obl iga�ons and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regula�ons, 2015 read with Schedule V of 
Companies Act, 2013.
None of the Directors /Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) of the Company except Sri. Srinivas Babu  / 
their rela�ves is, in any way, concerned or 

interested in passing the Resolu�on set out in Item 
No.4 of the No�ce.
Your Director commend the Special Resolu�on for 
your approval and ra�fica�on.
ITEM NO. 5
Shareholders a�en�on is brought to the 38th 
Annual General Mee�ng held on 28.09.2020 in 
which prior approval for Related Party Transac�ons 
(Sale and Purchase) to the aggregate value of 
Rs.223.00 Crs was given by the shareholders vide 
Item No.6 of the No�ce of AGM.  The approval limit 
is applicable for 2020-21. Whereas as 10% of the 
previous year Audited Turnover i.e. for 2019-20 
comes to Rs.104.02 Crs. The Actual Related Party 
Transac�ons (Sales and Purchase) for 2020-21 
which is material as per SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015 comes to Rs.223.75 (125.76 + 97.99) Cr. since 
it exceeds 10% of Turnover as explained above.
Pursuant to Sec.188 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Rule 15 of Companies (Mee�ngs of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Reg.23 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 requires shareholders 
approval for Material Related Party Transac�ons 
explained above. Eventhough shareholders in the 
38th AGM has given prior approval for related party 
transac�ons (2020-21) is given for an aggregate 
value of Rs.223.00 Crs, the actual related party 
transac�ons for 2020-21 comes to Rs.223.75 Cr as 
detailed in the table and hence shareholders 
approval by way of ra�fica�on for excess value of 
Rs.0.75  Crs  i.e., over and above es�mated value 
approved by shareholders.
In compliance of the above statutory provisions 
apart from Audit Commi�ee (Mee�ng Dt.03.06.2021) 
members prior approval for Material Related Party 
Transac�ons (Sales and Purchase es�mated for 
2021-22) to the aggregate value of Rs.263.51 Crs as 
clearly explained in the table is required for which 
the resolu�on has been recommended in the Board 
Mee�ng Dt.03.06.2021 for your approval. The 
details of Actual (for 2020-21) and Es�mated   
(2021-22) Related Party Transac�ons are furnished 
hereunder:

TGV SRAAC LIMITED
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(` in lakhs)

Name of the Related Party
Actuals for 2020-21

Sales Purchase Total
Es�mates for 2021-22

Sales Purchase Total
SreeRayalasema Hi-Strength Hypo Limited

Other Related Par�es

Total :

125.58

0.18

125.76

95.11

2.88

97.99

220.69

3.06

223.75

252.27

11.24

263.51

114.66

7.02

121.68

137.61

4.22

141.83

It may kindly be noted that all Related Party 
Transac�ons are having Omnibus approval of the 
Audit Commi�ee and Board. Related Party 
Transac�ons are entered during the ordinary 
course of business and are at arm’s length. These 
transac�ons are subject to transfer price audit to 
comply with statutory provisions. 98.6% of Related 
Party Transac�ons are between two Listed 
Companies and these transac�ons are mutually 
beneficial. 

None of the Directors /Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) of the Company / their rela�ves except the 
promoters are, in any way, concerned or interested 
in passing the Resolu�on set out in Item No.5 of the 
No�ce.

Your Directors recommend the above resolu�on for 
your approval.

ITEM NO. 6

The Board of Directors a�er taking into account the 
recommenda�on of Audit Commi�ee in its mee�ng 
held on 03.06.2021 has appointed M/s.Aruna 
Prasad & Co. (Regn.No.100883) Proprietrix: Mrs. 
Aruna Prasad as Cost Auditor for the Financial year 
2021-22 on a remunera�on of Rs.1,50,000/- plus 
GST and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 
in its mee�ng held on 03.06.2021  to conduct Cost 
Audit of cost records of the Company in compliance 
of MCA No�fica�on Ref. No.52/56/CAB-2010, 
Dated 06.11.2012. As per the provisions of Sec�on 
148 of the Act, payment of remunera�on and 

appointment of Cost Auditors requires Members 
ra�fica�on for the ac�on taken by the Board as 
explained above.

None of the Directors /Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) of the Company / their rela�ves is, in any 
way, concerned or interested in passing the 
Resolu�on set out in Item No.6  of the No�ce.

The Board of Directors pleased to recommend the 
Resolu�on set forth in Item No.6 for your approval.

ITEM NO.7

With respect to implementa�on of Chlorome-
thanes Expansion Project the company has 
approached M/s. Indian Bank for providing 
financial assistance required a�er M/s. IFCI Limited 
cancella�on of the sanc�oned loan for its internal 
reasons.  A�er considering company request the 
Bank has sanc�oned Rs.100.00 Crores Term Loan 
subject to the terms and condi�ons men�oned in 
their sanc�on le�er Ref.No.CO/Credit/Group 
5/2437/2020-21 dt.15.02.2021. Shareholders 
approval is necessary for crea�on of required 
security on company assets as clearly men�oned 
hereunder by the Board of the Company in favour 
the Lender i.e. Indian Bank.

(1) First paripassu charge on all fixed assets of the 
company including the Chloromethanes 
expansion project (excluding specific charges)

(2) Extension of exis�ng securi�es on pari pass 
basis. 
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As men�oned in the Resolu�on and detailed in the 
explanatory statement read with Bank sanc�on 
le�er the above security will be created/to be 
created a�er obtaining necessary clearances from 
other Lenders for which your approval for this 
Special resolu�on is requested.

None of the Directors /Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) of the Company / their rela�ves is, in any 
way, concerned or interested in passing the 
Resolu�on set out in Item No.7 of  the No�ce.

Your Directors recommend the above said 
Resolu�on as set out in the no�ce for your 
approval.

ITEM NO. 8

The company has availed following Working Capital 
Term Loans (WCTL) under GECL-2 Scheme and 
COVID emergency term loans to overcome liquidity 
problems caused by COVID-19 Pandemic situa�on 
from members of Bank Consor�um with due 
approvals from the Board.  These term loans were 
sanc�oned by Banks in compliance of RBI Circular 
and Govt. order to help the companies to �de over 
the financial stress caused in the economy due to 
COVID-19 Pandemic.

1) Indian Bank Sanc�on Le�er Ref.No.CO/ Credit/ 
Group-5/2437/2020-21, Dt.15.02.2021 Rs.9.53 Cr., 
and Le�er Ref.No.Credit/Group V/1420/20-21 
dt.28.09.2020  for  Rs.8.67  Cr.

2) P u n j a b  N a � o n a l  B a n k  S a n c � o n  L e � e r 
Dt.17.02.2020  Rs.2.25 Cr. 

3) I D B I  B a n k  S a n c � o n  L e � e r  R e f . N o . 
I D B I / M C G / 1 2 9 / G E C L / 2 0 2 0 - 2 1 / 2 7 5 , 
Dt.28.12.2020  Rs.9.57  Cr. 

4) T h e  S o u t h  I n d i a n  B a n k  S a n c � o n  L e � e r 
Ref.No.BR/GEN/677-A/2020-21,Dt.16.02.2021 
Rs.0.86 Cr. and Le�er Ref.No.BR/0128/Gen/46/20-
21 dt.20.05.2020  for  Rs.0.75 Cr.

5) The Federal  Bank Sanc�on Le�er Ref.No. 
FB/HYD/CIB/FY21/43, Dt.03.03.2021 for Rs.0.37  
Cr.

 To comply with the terms and condi�ons of 
respec�ve sanc�on le�ers of Members of 
Banks Consor�um, the Company has to create 
securi�es as clearly detailed hereunder on 
Second Paripassu basis.

 1)   SECURITY TO BE CREATED IN FAVOUR OF 
INDIAN BANK, PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK, 
IDBI BANK, THE FEDERAL BANK AND THE 
SOUTH INDIAN BANK.

 a. Second Paripassu Charge on the proposed 
GECL 2.0 Loans from the Members of 
Consor�um Banks.

 b. Second Paripassu Charge on exis�ng 
security given to other banks for addi�onal 
WCTL.

 c. Extension of First paripassu charge 
i n v e n t o r i e s  a n d  u n e n c u m b e r e d 
receivables provided to other working 
capital lending banks.

 d. Paripassu Second Charge on Land, 
Buildings, Plant & Machinery (First Charge 
to IDBI Bank, IFCI Ltd., The Federal Bank 
Ltd, Indian Bank, Punjab Na�onal Bank).

 e.  Paripassu Second Charge on project assets 
of Chloromethanes Project.

 2)     SECURITY FOR PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK.

 a. Second Charge on the assets financed 
under GECL Scheme. 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) / their rela�ves is deemed to be interested in 
the Special Resolu�on.

Yours Directors commend the above Special 
Resolu�on as set at in the No�ce for your approval.
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Details of Directors seeking  appointment 
(Pursuant to Regula�on 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015

Name of the Director

Date of Birth

Date of Appointment

Experience in Specific areas

Sri Srinivasa Babu Chappidi

12-02-1966

04-08-2021

Star�ng his career with IFFCO has put in more than 
35 years in Listed Companies of Chemical Industry 
both in India and Abroad.

Qualifica�ons

Shareholding in the Company

Directorship in other Listed En��es

Membership in Commi�ees in other Listed En��es

B.Tech (AU) M.Tech (NIT, Warangal)

Nil

Nil

Nil

By order of the Board

CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY
COMPANY SECRETARY

Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

Sd/-
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,
Your Directors’ have pleasure in presen�ng the 
Annual Report and the Audited statements of 
Accounts of the Company for the year ended       
31st  March, 2021.
1.   Opera�ons
 The turnover (Gross) for the year under review 

is Rs.116822 Lakhs as compared to Rs.120588 
Lakhs in the previous year. The 3% decrease is 
on account of the following changes in 
respec�ve Division’s performance.

2.   Division / Segment Wise Performance
 For the current year net sales for Caus�c Soda 

plant is Rs.49502 lakhs whereas for the 
previous year net sales is Rs.59625 lakhs 
showing a decrease of 17%. 

 For the current year net sales for Caus�c 
Potash Plant is Rs.22108 lakhs, whereas for 
the previous year net sales is Rs.17668 lakhs 
showing an increase of 25%. 

 For the current year net sales for Chloro-
methanes Plant is Rs. 14664 lakhs, whereas 
net sales for previous year is Rs.14744  lakhs 
showing moderate decrease of 1%. 

 For the current year net sales for Castor Oil 
Plant is Rs.2780 lakhs, whereas for the 
previous year net sales is Rs.2951 lakhs 
showing a decrease of 6%. 

 For the current year net sales for Fa�y acid 
plant is Rs.10772 lakhs, whereas for the 
previous year net sales is Rs.8064 lakhs 
showing  an increase of  34%. 

 There are no commercial opera�ons at Bellary 
Power Plant due to expiry of Power Purchase 
Agreement (PPA) by KPTCL. The Company is 
looking out for other viable op�ons including 
its sale or reloca�on of  the Plant. 

 The Wind Farm at Ramagiri has generated 5.88 
Lakh/KWH power in the current year as 
against previous year genera�on of 20.81 
Lakh/KWH The decrease in power genera�on 
is due to weather condi�ons. The power 
generated is wheeled through State Grid to 
the  Company  for cap�ve use.

3.   Outlook for the Current Year 
 Segment-wise discussion is furnished in 

Management  Discussion and  Analysis 
annexed  to this report  in  “ANNEXURE–E”.

Profit before Finance 
Costs & deprecia�on
Less: Finance Cost
Profit before Deprecia�on
Less: Deprecia�on               
Profit (Loss) before
Excep�onal items and Tax
Less:  Excep�onal items                
Profit/Loss Before Tax
Tax Expense:
Less: - Current Tax
         - Deferred Tax 
Profit for the period from 
con�nuing opera�ons
Less : Loss from discoun�ng 
opera�ons          
Profit for the period
Add: Balance Carried from 
Previous year
Profit available for 
Appropria�on
Less: Transfer to General Reserve 
Add: Transfer from Other 
Comprehensive Income
Lease rentals liability as 
per Ind As-116
MAT credit for previous year
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet

Par�culars Year Ended 
31.03.2021

Year Ended 
31.03.2020

15141.86

3937.28
11204.58

6318.03

4886.55
0.00

4886.55

955.68
959.12

2971.75

76.51
2895.24

10498.27

13393.51
(2500.00)

23.11

0.00
2371.09

13287.71

16012.99

3905.19
12107.80

5628.62

6479.18
0.00    

6479.18

1376.62
299.41   

4803.15

75.70
4727.45

8446.10

13173.55
(2500.00)

(18.99)

(156.29)
0.00

10498.27

(` in lakhs)
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 Profit before tax for the current year 
Rs.4886.55 lakhs as against previous year 
Profit before tax of Rs.6479.18 lakhs.  For the 
Current year Profit a�er tax is Rs.2971.75 lakhs 
where as previous year Profit a�er tax is 
Rs.4803.15 lakhs. The decrease in profit is 
mainly on account of decreased prices for the 
products of the company due to recession and 
con�nua�on of Covid-19 Pandamic. 

4.   Capital  Expenditure

 During the year the Company has incurred     
an  amount  of  Rs .125.54  Cr  towards 
moderniza�on, Chloromethanes expansion 
works and normal capital expenditure. The 
funds required for the above is met from Banks 
and internal accruals.

5.   Dividend
 In view of future needs and liquidity constraints 

your Directors have not recommended any  
dividend on Equity Shares.

6.   Con�nua�on of Covid-19 Pandemic Situa�on

 The world is s�ll reeling under Covid-19 
Pandemic Situa�on from February, 2020 and 
Second Wave of Covid-19 was devastated 
India. To tackle the ill effects of Covid-19, the 
Company is taking all necessary steps and 
proac�ve measures are adhered strictly. A 
Special Team consis�ng of Senior Officials has 
been formed to con�nuously monitor the 
situa�on and evaluate steps to be taken to 
contain its effects on Company ac�vi�es and 
also to frame future plan of ac�on to minimise 
the  adverse  effects  on  company.

 Disclosure of par�culars in SEBI Format 
regarding Covid-19 effects were submi�ed to 
BSE and required informa�on has been 
provided along with Unaudited / Audited 
Results. As a result of �mely ac�ons taken by 
the management, there is no single day 

shutdown of the plant happened during the 
year  due  to  Covid-19. 

 In view of  �mely ac�ons taken by the 
company produc�on and capacity u�liza�on 
are at sa�sfactory level however realiza�on of 
finished products were subdued for major 
part of the year in view of Covid-19 effect on 
consump�on industries.   Proper r isk 
management plans are drawn to tackle any 
adverse situa�ons in future and the same are 
reviewed and monitored by Senior Officials 
task force con�nuously to take stock of the 
situa�on.

7.  Safety and Environment

 Your Company and management believe in 
proac�ve steps for achieving desired 
objec�ves of safety in all ac�vi�es of              
the company and preserva�on of clean 
environment in its surrounding.  Policies and 
procedures are properly documented to guide 
the staff to ascertain that their business 
ac�vi�es are always ensured safety and 
pollu�on free environment.  ISO 9002, 14001 
cer�fica�on to the company by reputed 
ins�tu�on DNV is the result of me�culous 
implementa�on of company policies and 
procedures  effec�vely  by  the  dedicated  
staff  in  charge.

 Senior level management official is entrusted 
with the responsibility to ensure “all �me” 
safety and environment protec�on and 
preserva�on at manufacturing places and 
other places where business ac�vi�es of the 
company taken place.  To ensure staff 
awareness  to  the new innova�ve methods 
and techniques, training programmes are 
designed  to involve  each  and every 
personnel of the company. To achieve these 
objec�ves, training programmes are updated 
and the same are con�nuously followed.  Your 
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company is encouraging staff to come with 
new and innova�ve ideas to achieve 
objec�ves by conduc�ng compe��ons and 
rewarding the par�cipants who come with 
successful  ideas for effec�ve implementa�on. 
Further, the company is complying all 
statutory requirements to ensure allround 
safety  and  environment protec�on. 

8.   Lis�ng Fees 

 The Company has paid Lis�ng Fee for the year 
2021-22 to Bombay Stock Exchange vide our 
le�er dated 30.04.2021.

9.   Insurance 

 Assets of the Company are adequately 
insured.

10.   Fixed Deposits 

 The Company has not accepted any fixed 
deposits during the year and there are no fixed 
deposits  outstanding  as  on  31.03.2021.

11. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP)

 Consequent to the resigna�on of Sri T.G. 
Venkatesh as Chairman and Director 
(15.05.2020), the company has not appointed 
regular  Chairman  for  the  Board.   The  Board 
of Directors at respec�ve mee�ngs will elect 
one among the director present to act as 
Chairman  of  the  respec�ve  mee�ng.

 Appropriate Special Resolu�on has been 
placed in the No�ce of AGM to ra�fy the 
appointment of Sri Srinivasa Babu Chappidi 
(D I N:09266926) as Execu�ve Director 
(Technical) by the Board in its mee�ng held on 
31.07.2021 (on considera�on of Nomina�on 
and Remunera�on Commi�ee recomm-            
enda�on)  for a  period  of  One year.

12.   Industrial  Rela�ons

 Your Company’s Industrial Rela�ons con�nue 
to be harmonious  and  cordial.

13.  Energy Conserva�on Technology Absorp�on 
and  Foreign Exchange  earnings  and  outgo

 Par�culars required tobe disclosed under 
Sec�on 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Disclosure of 
par�culars in the Report of the Board of 
Directors) Rules, 1988 are forming part of the 
Directors’  Report for the year ended             
31st March, 2021 is annexed hereto as  
“Annexure – A” to  this  report. 

14.   Directors’  Responsibility  Statement

 As required by the provisions of Sec�on 134 
(3) (C) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement is a�ached as 
“Annexure –B”.

15.  Corporate Governance – Reg. 34 (3)  read 
w i t h  S c h e d u l e  -  V  o f  S E B I  ( L O D R ) 
Regula�ons,  2015

 A separate report on Corporate Governance 
(Annexure-C) is being incorporated as a part of 
the Annual Report along with a cer�ficate 
from the Auditors  of  the Company 
(Annexure-D) regarding compliance of the 
condi�ons of Corporate Governance. The 
“Annexure-C and D” are a�ached to this 
report.

16.   Management  Discussion and Analysis 
Report 

 Further to comply with Reg. 34(2) (e) 
Schedule-V of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 
“Management Discussion and Analysis” has 
been given as  “Annexure-E”  to the  Directors’  
Report.
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17.  Auditors 

 M/s. K.S. Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
Hyderabad were appointed as Statutory 
Auditors for a term of 5 years upon the 
recommenda�on of Audit Commi�ee in its 
mee�ng  held  on 23.08.2017 by the Board in 
its mee�ng held on 23.08.2017. Shareholders 
in the AGM held on 27.09.2017 has ra�fied 
the same. Pursuant to recent amendment to 
Sec. 143 of Companies Act, 2013 members 
ra�fica�on at every AGM is discon�nued / not 
required.

18.   Cost Audit

 Majority of the products manufactured by the 
Company are coming under Central Govt. 
order Le�er Ref. No. 52/26/CAB-2010 dated 
06.11.2012. To comply with statutory 
provisions, Cost Audit Report has been filed in 
Form CRA-4 in XBRL format vide SRN: 
R72868698 dt. 30.11.2020 with MCA portal 
for the financial year 2019-20.  The Cost Audit 
Report for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2021 is being submi�ed  in due course.

 Disclosure  on  maintenance  of  Cost  records.

 The Company made and maintained the cost 
records under Sec. 148 of the companies Act, 
2013 for the financial year 2020-21.

19.   Audit Commi�ee

 The Audit Commi�ee was cons�tuted to 
comply with provisions of Regula�on 18 of 
SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and other 
statutory provisions. The Audit Comm-        
i�ee was recons�tuted on 28.01.2020                  
with  the fo l lowing members  namely                               
Sri J. Nagabhushanam, Sri G.Krishna Murthy 
and  Dr. M. Asha Reddy as members with  Sri 
P.N. Vedanarayanan as Chairman of the Audit 

Commi�ee. 

20.  Material changes and commitments, if any, 
affec�ng the financial posi�on of the 
Company which have occurred between the 
end of the financial year of the Company to 
which the financial statements relate and the 
date of the Report

 There are no material changes which will be 
affected to the financial posi�on of the 
company according to the date of financial 
year and the date of its Report.

21.  Details of significant and material orders 
passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
impac�ng the going concern status and 
company’s opportuni�es in future

 There was no significant and material order 
passed by the Regulator or Court or Tribunal 
impac�ng the going concern status and 
company’s opportuni�es in future.

22.  Statement concerning development and 
implementa�on of Risk Management Policy 
of the Company

 Your company’s management give utmost 
importance of Risk Management Policy 
implementa�on for smooth success of the 
company as it has to encounter various risks 
while  doing  its opera�ons and interac�ng 
with various systems of society.  Company 
complies with all  required  procedures for 
Risk Management Policy implementa�on 
voluntarily in view of the above philosophy of 
the company.  A specific commi�ee under the 
leadership of Execu�ve Director and CEO with 
Senior Execu�ves and departmental heads 
having exposure in various fields plays 
instrumental role in framing required policy 
a�er taking outside professionals help 
wherever necessary. Risk Management Policy 
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and procedures are con�nuously reviewed 
and updated to tackle new threats and 
challenges par�cularly in view of COVID-19 
Pandemic situa�on and its repercussions on 
company ac�vi�es.  Proper weightage and 
importance has been given to individual 
enterprises risk, department wise risks and 
society or world at large risks and their effect 
on proper remedial steps taken by the 
company to contain, prevent and minimize 
risks in future.  The commi�ee and task force 
closely monitors risk management policy 
i m p l e m e n t a � o n  t o  k n o w  a b o u t  i t s 
effec�veness  and need for upgrada�on in 
view of ever changing outside and inside 
environment  and  factors.

23. D eta i l s  o f  Po l i c y  D eve l o p m e nt  a n d 
implementa�on by the company on its 
Corporate Social  Responsibility  (CSR) policy.

 The main philosophy of the company is to 
recognize fulfilment of social responsibility by 
each and every system in the society for 
upli�ment of downtrodden and society 
equality for resources.  Your company being 
one part of the whole society, rightly 
recognized its responsibility towards the 
society at large right from its ini�al stage and 
hence i t  i s  taking a l l  required steps        
towards fulfillment of its Corporate Social 
Responsibility (C S R) con�nuously and 
voluntarily.

 To comply with Sec. 135 of Companies Act, 
2013 and other  appl icable statutory 
Provisions, the company has officially 
cons�tuted CSR Commi�ee on 26.05.2014 
compris ing  of  Board Members .  Wel l 
developed and documented CSR Policy has 
been approved by the Board and the same is 
updated or modified to incorporate in 
objec�ves to meet changed requirements for 

compliance.  The CSR Commi�ee will 
regularly  meet  review its role, ini�a�ves of 
the company  to  implement CSR objec�ves 
and  to  assess  performance in  its  mee�ngs.

 As informed in the previous year annual 
report, there was unspent CSR obliga�on 
amount of Rs.58.52 lakhs (which arisen due to 
liquidity constraints as well as not finding 
viable CSR projects). For the current year 
(2020-21),  the C S R  obl iga�on comes                
to Rs.140.19 lakhs. Whereas actual CSR 
expenditure for the year comes to Rs.201.61 
lakhs (which includes the unspent amount of 
Rs.58.52 lakhs of previous year has been spent 
in the current year to comply with relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act). This 
resulted in CSR excess spend of Rs.2.90 lakhs  
[201.61 (58.52+140.19) ] for being set off in 
succeeding year i.e., 2021-22. The details of 
CSR expenditure as per prescribed format has 
been provided as “Annexure-H” to the 
Directors’ Report. The present CSR Commi�ee 
is comprising of (1) Sri G. Krishna Murthy, 
Chairman (2) Sri K. Karunakar Rao, Member 
and  (3)  Sri Gopal  Krishan,  Member.  

24.  Par�culars  of  Loans,  Guarantees  or 
Investments made under Sec�on 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

 The par�culars of loans given, investments 
made and guarantees provided by the 
Company under Sec. 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 as at 31st March, 2021 are furnished 
in “Annexure- L”and forms part of this report.

25.  Par�culars of Contracts or Arrangements 
made with Related Par�es

 During the course of its business, the Company 
is dealing with the Group Companies which 
are Related Par�es pursuant to the Sec�on 
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accoun�ng 
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Standard 18 and SEBI (LODR) regula�ons, 
2015. The Sale, Purchase, Lease Rental 
Transac�ons, services availed / provided and 
monetary values of its transac�ons are 
men�oned in notes to Accounts to comply 
with IND AS-24. All the Related party 
transac�ons were on arm-length basis and the 
same are entered with the prior approval of 
the Audit Commi�ee (omnibus approval) and 
Board. Further details to be furnished in Form 
AOC-2 has been given as“Annexure-F” to this 
report to comply with statutory provisions of 
Sec.188.

26.  Explana�on or comments on qualifica�ons, 
reser va�ons  or  adverse  remarks  or 
disclaimers made by the Auditors and the 
Prac�cing Company Secretary in their 
Reports

 Statutory Auditors of the Company and the 
Prac�cing Company Secretary, who have 
conducted statutory audit and Secretarial 
Audit  respec�vely, have not made any 
adverse comments on the ac�vi�es of the 
Company  for  the  financial  year  2020-21.

27.  Company’s Policy rela�ng to Directors 
Appointment,  Payment of Remunera�on 
and discharge  of  their  du�es

 T h e  N o m i n a � o n  a n d  R e m u n e r a � o n 
Commi�ee has been re-cons�tuted by the 
Board in its mee�ng held on 29.01.2016 to 
ensure the appointment of persons having 
wide exposure in the fields which are useful to 
the companies growth having independence 
as defined in the Companies Act to be 
available for appointment as Director. The 
Commi�ee always keeps a list of eminent 
personali�es having independence and 
qual ifica�on avai lable for Company ’s 
requirement depending upon vacancy on the 

Board. As regards remunera�on payable to 
whole-�me Directors, the Board will take 
collec�ve decision within the parameters of 
various statutes including Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. The 
Commi�ee will follow the Company’s policy to 
discharge its du�es whenever necessity arises. 
It will not be out of place to men�on that the 
set policy being followed since incep�on of the 
Company to ensure transparency.

28.  Details in respect of adequacy of Internal 
Financial Controls with reference to the 
Financial Statements

 The Company has robust internal financial 
controls (IFC) systems, which is in line with 
requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, 
which is intended to increase transparency & 
accountability in an organiza�on’s process of 
designing and implemen�ng a system of 
internal control.  Our IFC process, facilitates 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business 
including adherence to Company’s policies, 
safeguarding of its assets, preven�on and 
detec�on of frauds and errors, accuracy and 
completeness of the accoun�ng records and 
�mely prepara�on of reliable financial 
informa�on.  Risk Control Matrices (RCMs) 
have been prepared for all Business func�ons 
along with the mapping with Func�onal 
Dashboard / Compliance Management 
System / GRC Process Control.  The internal 
control system ensures compliance with all 
applicable  laws  and  regula�ons.

 To  ensure effec�ve Internal Financial 
Controls, Company has laid down the 
following measures. 

 1. Company has defined and documented 
the Standard Opera�ng Procedures 
(SOPs) and Delega�on of Authority (DOA) 
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which forms the basis for compliance to 
laid down procedures.  The SOPs  and 
DOA are refreshed on a periodic basis.

 2. All regulatory compliances are monitored 
for all loca�ons Pan India through a fully 
automated tool.  Company has a “Zero 
To l e r a n c e ”  P o l i c y  t o w a r d s  n o n -
compliances.

 SAP GRC (with respect to access control) has 
been implemented which also take care of 
users’ conflict rela�ng to Segrega�on of Du�es 
(SOD).

29.   Secretarial  Auditor

 Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
( A p p o i nt m e nt  a n d  Re m u n e ra� o n  o f 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 204, the Board 
in its mee�ng held on 03.06.2021 has re-
appointed Sri N. Ramaswamy as Secretarial 
Auditor for the year 2020-21. Secretarial  
Audit Report for the year ending 31.03.2021 
has been Annexed to the Directors’ Report as 
“Annexure–J” to comply with statutory 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
other applicable provisions of other Acts. The 
Secretarial Auditor Report does not contain 
any qualifica�on, reserva�on or adverse 
remark. Further, in compliance of Regula�on 
34(3) read with  Schedule  V  Para C  clause 10 
( i)  of S E B I  (LO D R) Regula�ons, 2015 
cer�ficate on “non-disqualifica�on of 
Directors” issued by the Secretarial Auditor is 
enclosed as “Annexure–K”to this report.

 Compliance  with  Secretarial  Standards

 The Company is in compliance with applicable 
secretarial standards issued by the Ins�tute of 
Company Secretaries of India and approved by 
the Central Govt., under Sec. 118 (10) of the 
Act.

 Annual  Secretarial  Compliance  Report

 A Secretarial Compliance Report for the 
financial year ending 31st March, 2021 on 
compliance of all applicable SEBI Regula�ons 
and other guidelines issued thereunder, was 
obtained from Sri N. Ramaswamy, Secretarial 
Auditor and submi�ed to BSE Limited within 
statutory  �me  limit.

30.   Annual  Return  in  Form  MGT-9  format

 A copy of the Extracts of the Annual Return of 
the Company as required under Sec�on 134 
(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form 
MGT-9, as they stood on the close of the 
financial year i.e. 31st March, 2021 is 
furnished in“Annexure-G” and forms part of 
this Report.

 Further, a copy of the Annual Return of the 
C o mp any  co nta in in g  th e  p ar� cu lars 
prescribed u/s. 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
in Form MGT-7, as they stood on the close of 
the financial year i.e. 31st March, 2020 is 
uploaded on the website of the company in 
the Investor Rela�ons Sec�on under 
Disclosures and can be accessed from 
h�ps://www.tgvgroup.com/investorrela�on 
/disclosure.html. 

31.  Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate 
Companies

 The Company is not having any Subsidiaries, 
Joint Ventures and Associate Companies as on 
31.03.2021. 

32.   Declara�on  of  Independent  Directors

 The Company has received the necessary 
declara�on from each Independent Director in 
accordance with Sec�on 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the 
criteria of independence as laid out in sub-
sec�on (6) of Sec�on 149 of the Companies 
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Act,  2013  and SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015. Further, Sri N. Ramaswamy, Prac�cing 
Company Secretary has issued appropriate 
cer�ficate regarding non-applicability of the 
provisions of Directors disqualifica�on to 
comply with the provisions of SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015. 

33.   Evalua�on

 The Board evaluated the effec�veness of its 
func�oning  and that of the Commi�ees and 
of individual Directors by seeking their inputs 
on various aspects of Board/Commi�ee 
Governance.

 The aspects covered in the evalua�on include 
the contribu�on to and monitoring of 
corporate governance prac�ces, par�cipa�on 
in the long-term strategic planning and the 
fulfillment of Directors’ obliga�on and 
fiduciary responsibili�es, including but not 
limited, to, ac�ve par�cipa�on at the Board 
and Commi�ee mee�ngs.

 The Chairman of the Board had one-on-one 
mee�ngs with the Independent Directors and 
the Chairman of the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee had one-on-one 
mee�ngs with the Execu�ve and non-
Execu�ve Directors. These mee�ngs were 
intended to obtain Directors’ inputs on 
effec�veness of Board / Commi�ee processes. 
The Board considered and discussed the 
inputs received from the Directors.

 Further, the Independent Directors at their 
mee�ng, reviewed the performance of Board, 
Chairman of the Board and of Non-Execu�ve  
Directors.

34.   Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of 
Wo m e n  a t  w o r k p l a c e  ( P r e v e n � o n , 
Prohibi�on  and  Redressal)  Act, 2013

 The Company has zero tolerance towards 

sexual harassment at the workplace and has 
adopted a policy on preven�on, prohibi�on 
and redressal of sexual harassment at 
workplace in line with the provisions of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder.

 The Company has no such cases of sexual 
harassment at workplace.

35.   Vigil Mechanism

 The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which 
also incorporates a whistle blower policy in 
terms  of  the  SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015 includes an Ethics and Compliance Task 
Force comprising Senior Execu�ves of the 
Company. Protected disclosures can be 
made by a whistle blower through an e-mail 
or a le�er to the Task Force or to the 
Chairman of  the  Audit Commi�ee. The 
Policy on Vigil Mechanism and whistle 
b lower  po l i cy  may  be  accessed  on                
the Company ’s  website at  the l ink: 
h�p://www.tgvgroup.com. 

36.   Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund 
(IEPF) :

 Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the IEPF 
Authority (Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund Rules) 2016, (‘the Rules’), all unpaid 
and unclaimed dividends/amounts are 
required to be transferred by the Company to 
the IEPF established by the Government of 
India a�er the comple�on of seven years. 

 The following table provides list of years for 
which unclaimed dividends/redemp�on 
amount would become eligible to be 
transferred to the IEPF on the dates 
men�oned below.
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@ 0.01 
per year 27.09.2016

CRPS Dividend :

Financial Year
CRPS Dividend 
Declared (%)

Date of 
declara�on of 

Dividend 
on CRPS

Last date for 
claiming unpaid 

dividend
/ amount

Unclaimed 
Dividend/Amount

as on 
31.03.2021 (Rs.)

Due date for 
transfer to 

IEPF Account

01.04.2002 to 
31.03.2016
(14 years)

03.11.2023 33,596.00 04.11.2023

Rs. 39/- per share 27.01.2017

Frac�onal Shares En�tlement :

Financial Year Frac�onal Shares 
en�tlement

Date of payment/ 
declara�on 

Last date for 
claiming unpaid 

amount

Unclaimed 
Amount (Rs.) 

ason 31.03.2021

Due date for 
transfer to 

IEPF Account
2016-17 04.03.2024 23,946.00 05.03.2024

CRPS Dividend (2016-17 & 2017-18) + CRPS Redemp�on amounts :

RI – Third (*)

RI – Fourth (*)

Financial Year Redemp�on 
Installments

Date of payment
/ declara�on 

Last date for 
claiming unpaid 

amount

Unclaimed 
Amount as on 

31.03.2021 (Rs.)

Due date for 
transfer to 

IEPF Account

2018-19

RI - Second 
including 
Dividend 

(2 years) (*)

RI – First (*)

NRI – Single (**)

01.04.2018

01.04.2018

08.06.2025 

08.06.2025

31,95,147.50

4,32,190.00

09.06.2025 

09.06.2025

01.07.2018 08.08.2025 32,28,630.00 09.08.2025

01.10.2018

01.01.2019

08.12.2025

10.03.2026

33,38,347.50

33,96,690.00

09.12.2025

11.03.2026

(*) RI means Resident Indian           (**) NRI means Non-Resident Indian
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support received from the various departments of the Governmentof India and the Government of Andhra Pradesh 
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Onbehalf of the Board of Directors 

CAK. KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)
Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

N. JESVANTH REDDY
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 03074131)

Sd/- Sd/-
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Par�culars pursuant to Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

A. Conserva�on of energy
 1. With the commissioning of energy efficient 200 TPD Caus�c Soda Flaking Unit  about 1.0 MT of steam/M.T of 

flakes is conserved due to efficient technology.
 2. 1 No. Energy Efficient Electrolyser is commissioned to reduce electrical power consump�on by 450 KWH/MT.    
 3. As a part of conversion of 3rd genera�on Electrolyzer, about 74 elements converted to Zero Gap to reduce 

power consump�on. 
 4. About 51 Nos. of Vth B Genera�on Elements are recoated and commissioned with new membranes to reduce 

power consump�on and to improve the efficiency. 
B. Details  of  Technology  development  and  research
 1. Research  and  Development  (R & D)
  Laboratory Studies are going on to recover Calcium Nitrate and Magnesium Sulphate from Brine Sludge to use 

the same as micro nutrient in agriculture. Preliminary trails are encouraging and hence further trails will be 
con�nued.  

  - Experiments are in progress to u�lize sludge generated from Kcl purifica�on and to use the same in 
agriculture as Potassium subs�tute. 

  - Recently company commissioned effluent recycling plant to recycle low TDS water and to reuse high TDS 
water to recover chloride available in high TDS effluent. Major constraint in reusing is the presence of high 
TOC.    We are doing Research and development experiments to remove TOC from high TDS effluent using 
various types of resin and reuse high TDS effluent for brine make up.    

 2. Benefits derived as a result of R&D
  1. By recovering calcium nitrate and magnesium sulphate, the major problem of disposal of brine sludge will 

be minimized. 
  2. By using  Kcl  brine sludge in agriculture, major disposal problem of Kcl brine sludge will be eliminated.
  3. A�er removing TOC from high TDS effluent water, high TDS water can be effec�vely reused and major 

disposal problem of liquid effluent is eliminated.   
  4. Technology Absorp�on, Adop�on and Innova�on 
   There is no instances of technology innova�on, absorp�on and adop�on during the financial year.
C.   Foreign  Exchange  Earnings  and  Outgo
 a)  Ac�vi�es rela�ng to exports; ini�a�ves taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for 

products and services, and export  plans :
  i) Exported Hydrogenated Castor Oil, 12 Hydroxy Stearic Acid, Caus�c Potash and planning to enlarge 

exports by increasing export quan�ty and exploring export possibility for other products.
 b)   Total Foreign Exchange earned and used        (Rs. in lakhs)
   i)    Foreign Exchange earned                              5829.87
              ii)   Foreign Exchange used                                   297.27 Onbehalf of the Board of Directors 

CA K. KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)
Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

N. JESVANTH REDDY
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 03074131)

Sd/- Sd/-
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Directors’  Responsibility  Statement
Your  Directors  Further  Confirm  that
I. In the presenta�on of  the Annual Accounts,  applicable  Accoun�ng  Standards  have  been  followed.
ii. The accoun�ng policies are consistently applied and reasonable, prudent judgment and es�mates are made so as to give 

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial  Year  and of  the profit  of  the 
company for that period. 

iii. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance  
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and  
detec�ng fraud  and  other  irregulari�es. 

iv. The Directors had prepared the  Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

Onbehalf of the Board of Directors 

Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

CA K. KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)

N. JESVANTH REDDY
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 03074131)

ANNEXURE “C” TO  THE  DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Report  On  Corporate  Governance
The  Management of TGV SRAAC Ltd., hereby confirm and cer�fy that  the relevant provisions of  SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015 dealing with “Corporate Governance”as amended from �me to �me by SEBI and BSE Ltd., have been complied for the 
year 2020-21.The Corporate Governance compliance details are furnished  hereunder :
1. Company’s  Philosophy:
 Your  company is firmly  believes that by prac�cing transparency in all ac�vi�es will automa�cally lead to adherence of 

Corporate Governance which in turns leads to a�ainment to objec�ves effec�vely. The company has complied  with all 
the provisions of Corporate Governance before its enactment by SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. This shows the 
commitment of the management of the company for fair and efficient Corporate Governance. The company’s humble 
philosophy is “SERVING SOCIETY THROUGH HARMONIOUS AND CORDIAL  INDUSTRY ACTIVITIES AND 
RELATIONS” synchronizing socio, economic and human objec�ves which are backed by principles of concern, 
commitment, ethics, excellence and learning in all its ac�vi�es and harmonious rela�onships with stake holders, 
customers,  associates  and  community  at large which has always propelled  the Company towards higher horizons.

2. Policies :
 In compliance with the requirements of Lis�ng Agreements with Stock Exchanges; SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015. (“Lis�ng Regula�ons’), SEBI Regula�ons and Companies Act, 2013, Board 
of Directors of the Company has approved various policies, as detailed hereunder.

3. Related Party Transac�on Policy :
 In compliance with the requirements of Regula�on 23 of Lis�ng Regula�ons, the Board of Directors of the Company has 

approved a Related Party Transac�on Policy, to facilitate senior management to report and seek approval for any 
Related Party Transac�on proposed to be entered into by the Company. The said Related Party Transac�on Policy can be 
viewed on www.tgvgroup.com.

Sd/- Sd/-
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4. Policies  &  Code  as  per  SEBI  Insider  Trading  Regula�ons :
 In accordance with SEBI (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015, the Company has formulated and approved 

(i) Insider Trading code to regulate dealing in the securi�es of the company by designated persons in compliance  with  
the  regula�on;  and  (ii)  a Policy for Fair Disclosure  of  Unpublished  Price  Sensi�ve  Informa�on.

 Sri V. Radhakrishna Murthy, Company Secretary of the Company is Compliance Officer for the purposes of Insider 
Trading Code, while the Chief Execu�ve Officer of the Company has been assigned responsibility fair disclosure policy.

5. Femiliarsa�on  Program  for  Independent  Directors :
 Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibili�es at the �me of their appointment as 

Directors and regular presenta�ons are made to the Board/Board Commi�ees covering business strategies, 
management structure, periodic financial results, budgets and opera�ons of subsidiaries, if any.

 Apart from above policies, the Board has in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Lis�ng 
Regula�ons approved and adopted Policy for Determining Material Subsidiary, Policy for Determining Material Events, 
Policy for Preserva�on of Documents and Archival of Records, Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and Remunera�on 
Policy. These policies can be viewed on Company’s Website at www.tgvgroup.com.

6. Board  Procedure :
 All the mandatory informa�on as men�oned in SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 is being placed  before the Board during  

its  mee�ngs.
7. Board  of  Directors  :
 The Composi�on of the Board is in compliance with the guidelines given in SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 and 

Companies Act, 2013. The Board comprises of Seven (7) Directors and majority Four (4) of Directors are Independent  
Directors and balance are Three (3) are Non-Independent Execu�ve Directors. The day-to- day management of the 
Company is conducted by One Execu�ve Director & CEO and Two Execu�ve Directors (Technical) under the co-
ordina�on of Chairman subject to the superintendence and control of the Board of Directors. During the year the Board 
was recons�tuted one �me on 15.05.2020 to give effect to the changes effected Due to Resigna�on of Shri. T.G. 
Venkatesh from 15.05.2020 as Director and Chairman The details of Directors a�ending the Mee�ngs and Date of the 
Mee�ngs are further furnished   here under:

F.Y. 2020-21 a�endance at As on 31st March, 2021

BM Last AGM
No. of 

Directorship
Commi�ee Posi�ons
Chairman Member

Sl.
No. Name of Director

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Category

Sri P.N. Vedanarayanan                

Sri G. Krishna Murthy

Sri J. Nagabhushanam

Dr. M. Asha Reddy

Sri K. Karunakar Rao

Sri N. Jesvanth Reddy 

Sri Gopal Krishan

Director 
(Independent)

Director 
(Independent)

Director 
(Independent)

Director 
(Independent)

Execu�ve Director 
(Fin. & Comml.,)
Execu�ve Director 
(Technical)
Execu�ve Director 
(Technical)

5

5

8

8

8

6

6

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

-

-

-

-

1

-

-

2

5

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

2

3

3

2

1
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 During  the  financial year ended 31st March, 2021,  Eight Board Mee�ngs were held on (1) 22.04.2020       
(2) 15.05.2020 (3) 30.06.2020 (4) 10.08.2020 (5) 26.10.2020 (6) 29.12.2020 (7) 25.01.2021 and                     
(8) 17.02.2021 respec�vely.

8. Audit  Commi�ee:

 The composi�on of the Audit Commi�ee is in accordance with the Regula�on 15 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015 dealing with Corporate Governance guidelines and the provisions of Sec. 177 of the 
Companies Act,  2013. The main terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee  are;

 1. Oversight of the Company’s financial repor�ng process to ensure that  the financial statement is correct, 
sufficient and credible in compliance with IND AS and Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant  acts. 

 2. Recommending to the Board with regard to appointment, re-appointment, fixa�on of fees etc. of   
Statutory  Auditors,  Cost  Auditors  etc.

 3. Reviewing with management the annual Financial Statement before submi�ng to the Board with  
par�cular reference to Directors Responsibility statement, Changes in Accoun�ng Policies, major 
accoun�ng entries involving es�mates, compliance with other Lis�ng Agreement, disclosure of other 
related party transac�ons.

 4. Qualifica�ons in dra� Audit Report.

 5. Reviewing with management quarterly financial statements.

 6. The adequacy of internal audit func�ons.

 7. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences. 

 8. Reviewing the findings of any inves�ga�ons by the internal auditors etc. 

 9. Appointment  of  CFO.

 10. Omnibus approval to related party transac�on at the beginning of the year and review of quarterly 
actual related party transac�ons and recommenda�on of the same to the Board for its approval.

 In addi�on to quarterly and yearly Un-audited / Audited Financial Results the Commi�ee deliberate upon 
the relevant ma�ers men�oned in SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015, Companies Act and Cost Audit Report 
Rules etc. The Commi�ee is headed by Sri P.N. Vedanarayanan, the Senior most Independent Director. All 
the commi�ee members are Independent Directors. Latest recons�tu�on of Audit Commi�ee was done by 
the Board in its mee�ng held on 28.01.2020 with the following Directors as its members (1) Sri. P.N. 
Vedanarayanan, Chairman (2) Dr. M. Asha Reddy, Member (3) Sri. J. Nagabhushanam,  Member  (4)  Sri  G. 
Krishna Murthy,  Member.
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Sl.
No. Name of Director Designa�on

No. of Mee�ngs
Held A�ended

1
2
3
4

Sri P.N. Vedanarayanan
Sri G. Krishna Murthy
Dr. M. Asha Reddy
Sri J. Nagabhushanam 

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

4
4
4
4

2
3
4
4

 During the financial year ended  31st March, 2021, Four Board Audit Commi�ee Mee�ngs were held on (1) 
30.06.2020 (2)  10.08.2020 (3)  26.10.2020  and  (4) 25.01.2021  respec�vely.

9.  Nomina�on  and  Remunera�on  Commi�ee:
 The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee was recons�tuted by the Board in its Mee�ng held on 

29.01.2016 with the following Directors as its members. The commi�ee comprises of the following 
Directors as its members (1) Sri G. Krishna Murthy, Chairman (2) Sri J. Nagabhushanam, Member and     (3) 
Dr. M. Asha Reddy, Member.

 The Non-Execu�ve Directors will be paid si�ng fee of Rs.5,000/- per mee�ng of Board and Audit Commi�ee 
and Rs.1,500/- for other Sub-commi�ees of the Board. The Execu�ve Directors will not be paid any si�ng 
fee for a�ending the Board / Commi�ee mee�ngs. During the year the Commi�ee has met  i.e. on 
17.02.2021. All the members a�ended the mee�ngs.

10. Stakeholders  Rela�onship  and  Shareholders / Investors  Grievance  Commi�ee:
 To review the ac�ons taken by the company in relieving Investor’s Grievances and its response to Stock 

Exchange, SEBI and other related Government correspondence Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee and 
Shareholders / Investors Grievance Commi�ee was recons�tuted by the Board on 29.01.2016. The details of 
the commi�ee  mee�ngs and composi�on  are detailed  here under:

Sl.
No. Name of Director Designa�on

No. of Mee�ngs
Held A�ended

1
2
3

Sri P.N. Vedanarayanan
Sri G. Krishna Murthy
Dr. M. Asha Reddy

Chairman
Member
Member

4
4
4

4
3
4

 During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, Four Stake holders Rela�onship commi�ee and 
Shareholders’ / Investors Grievance Commi�ee Mee�ngs  were held on (1) 09.04.2020 (2) 08.07.2020 (3) 
10.10.2020 and  (4) 11.01.2021  respec�vely.

 The Commi�ee is vested with the requisite powers and authori�es to specifically look into redressal of share 
holder and investor grievances to comply with SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015. The details of complaints are 
as follows:

5

No. of Investor Queries/complaints 
received in the year 2020-21

Pending at the 
end of the year

No. of pending 
Share Transfers

Nill Nill
 Sri V. Radhakrishna Murthy, Company Secretary, being the Compliance Officer of the Company and act as 

the Secretary to all the above Commi�ees.
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11.  General Body Mee�ngs :
 The  last  three  Annual  General  Mee�ngs  were  held  as  follows :

Financial Year Day & Date Time Venue

2017-18
2018-19

2019-20

Wednesday, 26.12.2018
Monday, 30.09.2019

Monday, 28.09.2020

4.00 P.M.
4.00 P.M.

11.30 A.M.

Regd. Office : Gondiparla, Kurnool
Regd. Office : Gondiparla, Kurnool
Through (Video conference) 
VC / OAVM (other Audio Visual Means)

 All Resolu�ons moved at the last Annual General Mee�ng (Resolu�ons were passed by e-vo�ng to comply 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013) and MCA and SEBI circulars were passed with Requisite 
majority. The last Annual General Mee�ng of the Company was held on 28.09.2020  and it was a�ended by 
Directors viz. Sri G. Krishna Murthy,  Sri P.N. Vedanarayanan, Sri K. Karunakar Rao, Sri N. Jesvanth Reddy,  Sri 
Gopal Krishan,   Sri J. Nagabhushanam and Dr M. Asha Reddy.

 The special business transacted and approved by the members at the previous 3 Annual General Mee�ngs 
are as  follows:

(A)  2017-18
 1. Increase  in  Authorised  Capital.
 2. Altera�on  of  Capital  Clause  of Memorandum of Associa�on.
 3. Altera�on of Ar�cles of Associa�on.
 4. Appointment  and  remunera�on  of  Cost  Auditor.
 5. Re-Appointment of Dr  M.  Asha Reddy as Independent Director for second term of 3 consecu�ve years.
 6. Re-Appointment of Sri J. Nagabhushanam as Independent Director for second term of 3 consecu�ve  

years.
 7. Re-appointment  of  Sri  Gopal Krishan,  Execu�ve Director (Technical) and Fixa�on of Remunera�on.
 8. Re-appointment of Sri K. Karunakar Rao, Execu�ve Director (Finance & Commercial) and Payment of 

Remunera�on.
 9. Re-appointment of  Sri  N. Jesvanth Reddy, Execu�ve Director (Technical) and Payment of Remunera�on.
 10. Con�nua�on of Directorship by Sri P.N. Vedanarayanan as Non-Execu�ve Independent Director for 

remaining period of exis�ng term.
 11. Con�nua�on of Directorship by Sri G. Krishna Murthy as Non-Execu�ve Independent Director for 

remaining  period  of  exis�ng  term.
 12. Crea�on of security in favour of Indian Bank Rs.50.00 Cr Term Loan.
 13. Crea�on of Security in favour of Indian Bank Rs.40.00 Cr L.C. Facility.
 14. Crea�on of Security in favour of Indian Bank Rs.100.00 Cr Capex L.C. Facility
 15. Crea�on of addi�onal security in favour of Banks and Financial Ins�tu�ons for providing exis�ng 

financial assistance to the Company.
 16. Approval for Material Related Party Transac�ons.
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 17.  Preferen�al  Allotment  of  Conver�ble  Share  Warrants  to  Promoters / Promoters  Group  Companies.
(B)  2018-19
 1. Appointment and Remunera�on of Cost Auditor.
 2. Re-appointment of Sri P.N. Vedanarayanan as Independent Director for a term of 3 (three) consecu�ve  

years.
 3. Re-appointment of Sri G. Krishna Murthy as Independent Director for a term of 3 (three) consecu�ve 

years.
 4. Re-appointment  of  Sri  Gopal Krishan  as  Execu�ve  Director  (Technical) and fixa�on of remunera�on.
 5. Approval for material related party transac�ons.
 6. Crea�on of security in favour of M/s. IFCI Limited for a Rupee Term Loan of Rs. 90 Crore.
 7. Crea�on of security on company fixed assets including Wind Mill Assets (excluding Chloromethanes, 

Bellary Power Plant division assets) in favour of Banks.
 8. Crea�on  of  security  on  company  Chloromethanes Assets in favour of members of Banks Consor�um.
 9. Crea�on of security on company Bellary Power Plant Assets in favour of members of Banks Consor�um.
(C)  2019-20
 1. Re-classifica�on of Authorised Share Capital and consequent altera�on of Memorandum of Associa�on 

and Ar�cles of Associa�on.
 2. Ra�fica�on of Appointment and Remunera�on of Cost Auditor.
 3. Approval for Material Related Party Transac�ons.
 4. Altera�on of Ar�cles of Associa�on of the company.
 5. Crea�on of Security in favour of Indian Bank.
Following  Special  Resolu�ons  passed  by  the  members  through  Postal  ballot. The results of which 
declared  on  06.04.2020.
 1.  Reappointment of Sri K. Karunakar Rao, Execu�ve Director (Fin.& Comml.,).
 2.  Reappointment of Sri N. Jesvanth Reddy, Execu�ve Director (Technical).
 3.   Reappointment of Sri Gopal Krishan, Execu�ve Director (Technical).
12.  Disclosures:
 None of the transac�ons with any of the related par�es were in conflict with the interests of the Company at 

large. The details of related party transac�ons are furnished under Point No. 30  - Notes to financial 
statements of Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss to comply with Accoun�ng Standard 24. The 
company has not received any no�ces from Stock Exchange or SEBI regarding non compliance of statutory 
provisions. The Company is complying with all mandatory requirements s�pulated in SEBI (LODR) 
Regula�ons, 2015 and non-mandatory requirements are not yet adopted by the  Company.

13. Means  of  Communica�on :
 The Company publishes its quarterly, half yearly and annual results in the (1) Business Standard (English)    

(2)  Andhra Prabha (Telugu) news papers  generally.
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 In addi�on to this the company is communica�ng its results to all the Stock Exchanges where the shares are 
listed.  Further, quarterly results, shareholding pa�ern and other related informa�on is placed on the 
company’s website. The company is also making presenta�ons to the Financial Ins�tu�ons with all the 
details rela�ng its quarterly results. Further to confirm that the management discussion and analysis report 
is communicated to shareholders and all the concerned, the report has been made part and  parcel of 
Annual Report. Further the Quarterly / Half yearly Results are generally posted in Company’s Website 
www.tgvgroup.com. 

MONTH & YEAR
EQUITY SHARES

HIGH (Rs.) LOW (Rs.)
April, 2020
May, 2020
June, 2020
July, 2020
August, 2020
September, 2020
October, 2020
November, 2020
December, 2020
January, 2021
February, 2021
March, 2021

18.40
17.40
22.50
19.40
30.00
26.90
24.70
25.70
30.60
31.70
27.85
31.00

11.25
14.45
16.35
16.35
16.00
21.55
21.50
21.80
22.60
24.50
24.60
24.10

14 . General  Shareholder  Informa�on:
AGM Date, �me and Venue Monday, the 27th September, 2021 at 11.30 AM 

through Video   Conference (VC)
  a)  

T he next financial year covers the period from 
1st April,  2021 to 31st  March, 2022

 b)  Tenta�ve Financial Calendar 

First Quarter - July / August, 2021
Second Quarter - October / November, 2021
      Third quarter - January / February, 2022
Fourth quarter - April / May, 2022

Un - Audited  Financial  results  for

c)  Book Closure period    From 21.09.2021  to 27.09.2021  (both days inclusive) 
 Not Applicable d)  Dividend  payment  date 

BSE Limited,  P.J. Towers, Dalal  Street, Mumbai.e)  The  Shares  of  the  Company  is listed  on
  ISIN  No. INE284B01028,  SCRIP  CODE : 507753  for  EQUITY  SHARES 

 f)  Market Price Data:    The Monthly High and Low of Stock Quota�ons during  the Financial Year 2020-21.
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g)   Distribu�on of Share holding pa�ern for Equity Shares as on 31st March, 2021.

Sl.
No. Name of Director

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Promoters
Mutual Funds and UTI
Banks & Financial Ins�tu�ons
Insurance Companies
Bodies Corporate 
Indian Public
NRIs / OCB
TOTAL

EQUITY SHARES
SHARES %
67657172

17887
850

525204
1590345

36084044
1214298

107089800

63.18
0.02
0.00
0.49
1.49

33.70
1.13

100.00

 h) Share  Transfer  Agents:
  M/s. Aarthi Consultants Pvt. Ltd., Regd.Office: 1-2-285, Domalguda, Hyderabad – 500 029 (T.S) has been 

ac�ng as Share Transfer Agent (STA) to the Company. Shareholders who desire to transfer (Physical) or 
dematerialise their shares are requested to send their shares along with suppor�ng documents to the  
above  Share  Transfer Agent  (STA).

 i)   Dematerialisa�on  of  Shares  and  Liquidity:
  As on 31st March, 2021, out of 107089800 Equity Shares 105699336 No. of Shares were dematerialised 

(98.70 %) were dematerialized. Since the company’s shares are trading under compulsory De-mat mode 
shareholders are requested to take necessary steps to dematerialise their shares held in physical form.

 j) Outstanding  GDR  /  ADRs  /  Warrants /Conver�ble Instruments:
  -Not Applicable  –
 k) Code  of  Conduct:
  In compliance of Regula�on 17 Sub-Regula�on 5 proviso a) or b) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 “Code of Conduct” applicable to (1)  Directors (2)  Senior 
Management  has  been  approved  by  the  Board  and  the  same  has  been placed on the company’s 
website. Copy of the code of conduct circulated to all the concerned and obtained their affirma�on.
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 l) Plant  Loca�on:
  Gondiparla,  Kurnool – 518  004 (A.P). 
  Bellary  Power  Plant:  Tagginabudihalli,  Bellary,  Karnataka.
  Wind Farm :  Ramagiri,  Anantapur Dist. (A.P)
 m)  For  all ma�ers,  address  for  Correspondence  at any of the following  addresses:
  (A)   Registrar  and  Share  Transfer  Agent:  
   Aarthi  Consultants  Private  Limited
   Regd. Office : 1-2-285, Domalguda,  Hyderabad – 500  029  (T.S)
   Tel. No.: 040 – 27638111,  27634445, 27642217, 66611921,  Fax  No.:  040 – 27632184
   E-mail:info@aarthiconsultants.com
  (B)  TGV SRAAC Limited
   (CIN: L24110AP1981PLC003077)
   6-2-1012,  II Floor, TGV  Mansion,
   Opp. Ins�tute  of  Engineers,  Khairatabad,  Hyderabad  –  500 004   (T.S)                  
   Tel No.:  040 – 23313842,  Fax No.: 040 - 23313875
 n)  E-mail ID :  sralkalies@tgvmail.net

DECLARATION BY CEO

As provided in Regula�on 17 Sub-Regula�on 5 proviso a) or b) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 the Directors and Senior Management personnel have 
confirmed compliance with code of conduct for the period ended 31.03.2021.

    On behalf of the Board of Directors

CA K. KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)
Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

N. JESVANTH REDDY
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 03074131)

Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

    On behalf of the Board of Directors

CA K. KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)

N. JESVANTH REDDY
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 03074131)

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-Sd/-
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ANNEXURE  “D”  TO  THE  DIRECTORS’  REPORT
Independent Auditor’s Cer�ficate on Corporate Governance

To

The   Members  of  TGV  SRAAC  Limited

 1.  We have examined the compliance of the condi�ons of corporate governance by TGV SRAAC Limited (the 
‘Company’) for the year ended 31st March 2021,  as s�pulated in Regula�ons 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (I) of  
Regula�on 46(2), and paragraphs C,D and E of Schedule V of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regula�ons,  2015 as  amended ( “SEBI  Lis�ng  Regula�ons”).

 Management’s  Responsibility

 2.  The compliance of condi�ons of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. This responsibility 
includes the designing, implemen�ng and maintaining opera�ng effec�veness of internal control to ensure the 
compliance with the condi�ons of corporate governance as s�pulated in the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.

 Auditors’  Responsibility

 3.  Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementa�on thereof, adopted by the company for 
ensuring the compliance with the condi�ons of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the company.

 4.   We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for 
the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by 
the Company.

 5.  We have examined the relevant records of the company in accordance with the applicable Generally Accepted 
Audi�ng Standards in India, the Guidance note on Cer�fica�on of Corporate Governance issued by the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI’), the Standards on Audi�ng specified under Sec�on 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this cer�ficate and as per the Guidance Note on 
Reports or Cer�ficates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical 
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

 6.  We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality 
Control for Firms that performs Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Informa�on, and Other Assurance and 
Related Services Engagements.

 Opinion

 7.  Based on our examina�on of the relevant records and according  to the informa�on and explana�ons provided to us 
and the representa�ons provided by the Management, we cer�fy that the company has compiled with the 
condi�ons of Corporate Governance as s�pulated in Regula�ons 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regula�on 46(2), 
and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons during the year ended March 31, 2021. 

 8.  We state that such compliance is neither an assurance  as  to  the  future  viability  of  the company nor the efficiency 
or effec�veness  with  which  the  management  has  conducted  the  affairs  of  the company.

Place: Hyderabad
Date :  3rd June, 2021

for K S RAO & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn. No. 003109S
Sd/-

CA P. GOVARDHANA REDDY
Partner  

Membership No.029193
UDIN:21029193AAAAIJ4494
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ANNEXURE “E” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MANAGEMENT  DISCUSSION  AND  ANALYSIS :

Economy:

The country’s economy witness ‘V’ shaped recovery. India is the only large country that experienced two consecu�ve 
quarters of posi�ve growth. With Covid-19 second wave receeding, the Indian economy is geared up for fast growth. 
While India slated 7.3% GDP growth during 2020-21, it is es�mated that growth may touch 10.1% GDP during 2021-
22, as per Government quarters. The second wave of Covid-19 has disturbed the already ba�ered growth, but the 
strong  fiscal  support  to  push economic  growth  by  Government  is  paving  a  way.  The  first  and  second  waves  of 
Covid-19  pandemic have a bad say on the economic history of Na�onal and Interna�onal economy. 

Company  performance:

Inspite con�nued Covid 19 pandemic condi�ons the company has achieved a Gross Turnover of Rs.1168.22 Cr. 
compared to previous year 2019-20 scale of Rs.1205.88 Cr. The pandemic condi�ons have an effect not only on our 
company but in general to the whole industry. Drop in produc�on levels and prices for finished goods of the company 
was felt along with units across the country. 

Segmental  performance:

The three segments, the company is holding consist (a) Chemicals (b) Oils and Fats (c) Power. The chemicals segment 
products mainly contain Caus�c Soda (Lye & Flakes), Potassium Hydroxide, Chlorine, Hydro Chloric Acid, Sodium 
Hypochlorite and Chloromethanes etc. 

Oils & Fats Segment contains Castor oil deriva�ves, Soap noodles, Hydroxy Stearic Acid etc., products. In the Power 
segment, a 38.5 MW Power plant is situated at Bellary,  Karnataka State. This unit is inopera�ve a�er expiry of Power 
purchase agreement entered with State Electricity Authori�es.

Of the three segments, Chemicals division is pivotal both with revenue and profits. The main product Caus�c Soda 
however has witnessed cyclical downturn in both 2019-20 & 2020-21. Mainly on account of Covid-19 pandemic 
related situa�ons, contrac�on in demand from end user Industries experienced. The situa�on has significantly 
impacted the margins of the industry plyers in FY 2021. It is to state that there are signs of recovery for this sector with 
revival in demand from end use Industries. Mostly, all Caus�c Soda plants in India are now based on Membrane Cell 
Technology making India on par with other countries in terms of Technology. It is notable that share of import of 
Caus�c Soda as a percentage of domes�c consump�on reduced to less than 10% during FY 2021 against 18% few 
years ago. Further the exports of Caus�c Soda has seen a raising trend now. The Caus�c – Chlorine industry in India is 
mainly driven by Caus�c Soda unlike rest of the world where Chlorine plays important role. This situa�on is expected 
to change as capacity addi�on of PVC with High volumes slated during 2020-25. These indica�ons are good for 
Caus�c industries.

Potassium Hydroxide otherwise called Caus�c Potash, another end products demand in India es�mated to grow at 
CAGR of 3.84%  during 2020-2025. Similar to Caus�c Soda, Caus�c Potash is manufactured by Electrolysis process. It 
is a versa�le cleaning agent used in liquid soaps, shampoos etc., besides the environment friendly. Company 
manufactures Potassium Carbonate as a value addi�on product to Caus�c Potash. The demand for Caus�c Potash 
presently in India is encouraging. 
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In order to accord value addi�on to Chlorine the biproduct of the company, a manufacturing facility for 
Chloromethanes was set up during 2016. With sa�sfactory quality of product, the company has penetrated into 
market.  Now company  is expanding the capacity and poised for commercial opera�on during 3rd quarter of FY 2022. 
Indian Bank has extended financial assistance of Rs. 100 cr. for this product. The addi�onal  Chlorine  genera�on with 
comple�on of Caus�c Soda modernisa�on  ac�vity  is  envisaged  for  usage  in  the  said  expansion  scheme.

The company  is  pursuing various op�ons available before it for usage / disposal of power plant at Bellary,  as  sale or 
reloca�on. 

The company, during the FY 2021 has made an investment in the equity of AP Gas Power Corpora�on Limited, a 
Cap�ve Power generator for an addi�onal share of 31.60 MW. This investment will help in saving in power cost 
substan�ally. 

With the comple�on of modernisa�on of Caus�c Soda division, encouraging market condi�ons for companies 
products,  efforts  made  in  controlling  cost,  the  outlook  of  the  company  is  expected  to be sa�sfactory.

GENERAL-SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE TOGETHER WITH DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE :

Segment-wise performance together with discussion on financial performance with respect to opera�onal 
performance has been dealt with in the Directors’ Report which should be treated as forming part of this 
Management Discussion and Analysis.

CREDIT RATING :

Your Company has retained the exis�ng credit ra�ng with a Credit Ra�ng of CARE “A-“ (outlook : Nega�ve) for Long 
Term Bank Facili�es and CARE “A2+” for Short Term Bank Facili�es issued / awarded by M/s. CARE Ra�ngs Limited, 
Hyderabad.  Maintenance of same credit ra�ng itself is regarded as reasonable performance.  Considering the 
con�nua�on of  Covid-19  Pandamic  throughout  the  year and nega�ve growth in economy.

DETAILS OF KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS – WITH SIGNIFICANT VARIANCE :

(I) Debtors turnover ra�o   :   Increased by 24%

(ii) Debt Equity ra�o       :   Increased by 22%

(iii) Return on Net worth   :  Decreased by 31%

Reasons  for  Variance :

Debtors  Turnover  ra�o

Due to Covid-19 Pandamic receivables from valued customers is delayed.

Debt  Equity  Ra�o 

Due to availment of fresh loans for Chloromethanes Project  expansion  and  Covid-19 / GECL related loans.

Return  on  Net  worth  ra�o 

Produc�on and sales prices were affected due to Covid-19 Pandamic reason.

39

TGV SRAAC LIMITED



INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY :

The Company has established an appropriate system of internal control to ensure that there exists a proper control 
over all the transac�ons and that all its assets are properly safeguarded and not exposed to risk arising out of 
unauthorised use or disposal. The Internal Audit conducted at all divisions for all the key areas of business. The 
Internal Control System is supplemented by a programme of Internal Audits to ensure that the assets are properly 
accounted for and the business opera�ons are conducted in adherence to laid down policies and procedures. The 
Internal Audit is oriented towards review of controls and opera�onal improvements.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER 
OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED :

Rela�ons with the employees remained cordial in general throughout the year. In order to op�mise the contribu�on 
of the employees to the Company’s business and opera�ons, in-house training is given to the employees to induce 
contribu�on to produc�vity increase and development programmes for all levels of employees have been devised. 
Occupa�onal Health Safety and Environmental Management are given utmost importance. As at 31st March, 2021 
the employee strength (on permanent rolls) of the Company was 1033.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT :

Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objec�ves, projec�ons, es�mates, 
expecta�ons or predic�ons may be ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securi�es laws 
and regula�ons and such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertain�es. Actual results could differ 
materially from those expressed or implied important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s 
opera�ons include raw material availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal 
markets, changes in Government regula�ons, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the Countries in 
which the Company conducts business and other incidental factors. The Company undertakes no obliga�on to 
publicly update or revise any forward looking statements, whether as a result of new informa�ons, future events, or 
otherwise. Readers are cau�oned not to place undue reliance on these forward looking statements that speaks only 
as of their dates.

Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

    On behalf of the Board of Directors

CA K. KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)

N. JESVANTH REDDY
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 03074131)

Sd/-Sd/-
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ANNEXURE  “F”  TO  THE  DIRECTORS’  REPORT
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-sec�on (3) of Sec�on134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
Form  for   Disclosure  of par�culars  of  Contracts / Arrangements  entered  into  by  the  company  with  related  par�es referred to 
in  sub-sec�on  (1) of  Sec.188 of the  Companies  Act, 2013  including  certain  arm’s length transac�on under third proviso thereto.
 1) Details  of  Contracts  or  Arrangements  or  Transac�ons  not  at  Arm’s  Length  basis  :  Not applicable. 
 2) Details  of  Material  Contracts  or  Arrangements  or  Transac�ons  at  arm’s  length  basis :

1

Sl.
No.

(a)
Names(s) of the 

Related Party 
and Nature 

of Rela�onship

(b)
Nature of Contracts/ 

Arrangements/ 
Transac�ons

(c)
Dura�on of the 

Contracts/
Arrangements/ 

Transac�ons

(f)
Amount Paid 
as advances, 

if any.
(Rs. in lakhs)

Sree 
Rayalaseema       
Hi-Strength 
Hypo Limited

Sales 
Purchases

Rent Received
Services availed
Investment in 

Equity 
Dividend received

12557.81
9510.80

7.47
568.84

-
6.12

Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements 30.06.2020

2181.20 (Cr)
1540.18 (Cr)

24.48 (Dr)

2 TGV Projects &Investments 
Private Limited

Rent Paid
Rent deposit

313.83
-

-
100.09 (Dr)

3 Sree Rayalaseema Galaxy 
Projects Private Limited

Sales 
Purchases

Services availed 

Services availed 

8.20
71.79

-
6.23 (Cr)

4 Gowri Gopal Hospitals 
Private Limited

Sales 
Services availed 

Purchases

0.27
60.68
14.95

-
19.79 (Cr)

-

5 Gowri Gopal Intensive 
Care Unit 12.12 -

6

7

The Mourya Inn 98.87 10.43 (Cr)

(e)
Date(s) of 

approval by 
the Board, 

if any.

(d)
Salient terms 

of the Contracts 
of Transac�ons 

including the value 
if any. (Rs. in lakhs)

Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements
Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements

Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements

Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements
Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements

Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements

Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements

30.06.2020

30.06.2020

30.06.2020

30.06.2020

30.06.2020

30.06.2020

30.06.2020

Brilliant Industries 
Private Limited

Share Warrant 
applica�on money 

received
1486.27 -

8 Sree Maruthi Marine 
Industries Limited Purchases 169.26 231.19 (Cr)

9 Sree Maruthi Agro 
Tech Private Limited Purchases Annual Contracts

 / Arrangements
Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements

30.06.2020

30.06.2020

32.03 7.97 (Dr)

10 Roopa Industries Limited Sales 10.04 8.58 (Dr)

11 TGV Industries Private 
Limited Purchases Annual Contracts

 / Arrangements 30.06.20200.52 0.15 (Cr)

12 Other Related Par�es
Rent & Others
Rent advance 

Land purchase Advance
Annual Contracts
 / Arrangements 30.06.2020

65.61
-

1214.40

4.01 (Cr)
107.00 (Dr)

1214.40 (Dr)

13 Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) Remunera�on Annual Contracts

 / Service 30.06.2020103.67 0.67 (Dr)

Note :  The above related party disclosures are only under Sec.188 read with Sec.134 of the Companies Act,  2013. 

Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

    On behalf of the Board of Directors

CA K. KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)

N. JESVANTH REDDY
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 03074131)

Sd/-Sd/-
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ANNEXURE “G“  TO  THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the Financial Year Ended on 31.03.2021

(Pursuant of Sec�on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014)

I.REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i CIN L24110AP1981PLC003077

ii Registra�on Date 24-06-1981

iii Name of  the Company TGV SRAAC Limited 

iv Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company / Limited by Shares

v Address of the Registered Office and Contact Details
Regd.Office: Gondiparla, Kurnool - 518 004 (A.P)             
(Tel:Nos.+ 91-08518 280006, 280007, 280008)                      
Fax No. 08518-280098 Cell : 09848304999

vi Whether Listed Company Yes

vii Name & Address of the Registrar and Transfer Agent

M/s. Aarthi Consultants Private Limited                     
Regd.Office: 1-2-285,Domalguda,                                                                                             
Hyderabad  - 500059 (Telangana State)                                                       
Contact Nos.040-27638111 / 27634445                              
Fax No. 040-27632184                                                                                                                                                                           
email: info@aarthiconsultants.com

II)  PRINCIPAL  BUSINESS  ACTIVITIES  OF  THE  COMPANY   

 All the business ac�vi�es contribu�ng 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated :

Sl. 
No Name and Descrip�on of Main Product / Services NIC Code of the 

Product/Service
% To total turnover 

of the company

1

2

3

Caus�c Soda Lye / Flakes

Caus�c Potash Lye / Flakes

Methylene Chloride

28151110 / 28151200

28152000

29031200

39 %

19 %

10 %

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. 
No

Name and Address 
of the Company

- Not Applicable –

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ 
Associates % of Shares held Applicable Sec�on
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IV.   SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) as on 31.03.2021.
i)   Category - wise Shareholding

Sl. 
No

Category of 
Shareholders

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year (01.04.2020)

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year (31.03.2021) % of 

Change 
during 

the year

Promoters
Indian
a) Individual/ HUF
b) Central Govt.
c) State Govt (s)
d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks/FI
f) Any Other...
Sub Total (A) (1) :

A
1

5948902
0
0

56353780
0
0

62302682

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5948902
0
0

56353780
0
0

62302682

5.85
0
0

55.39
0
0

61.24

5948902
0
0

61708270
0
0

67657172

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5948902
0
0

61708270
0
0

67657172

5.56
0
0

57.62
0
0

63.18

-0.29
 
 

2.23
 
 

1.94

Public Shareholding
Ins�tu�ons
a)  Mutual Funds
b)  Bank/FI
c)  Central Govt.
d)  State Govt (s)
e)  Venture Capital Funds
f)  Insurance Companies
g)  FIIs
h)  Foreign Venture Capital Funds
i)  Others (specify)
Sub Total (B) (1) :

B
1

8937
0
0
0
0

536004
0
0
0

544941

8950
850

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

9800

17887
850

0
0
0

536004
0
0
0

554741

0.02
0
0
0
0

0.53
0
0
0

0.55

8937
0
0
0
0

525204
0
0
0

534141

8950
850

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

9800

17887
850

0
0
0

525204
0
0
0

543941

0.02
0.00 

0
0
0

0.49
0
0
0

0.51

0.00 
0.00 

 
 
 

-0.04
 
 
 

-0.04

Foreign
a)  NRIs - Individuals
b)  Other- Individuals
c)  Bodies Corp.
d)  Banks/FI
e)  Any Other...
Sub Total (A) (2) :

2
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

Total Shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A)=(A) (1) + (A) (2)

62302682 0 62302682 61.24 67657172 0 67657172 63.18 1.94

37151
0
0

 

1135801

0
214354

1387306

1397106

2232952
0
0

 

20653961

14775090
1215884

38877887

39432628

2.19
0
0

 

20.30

14.52
1.20

38.21

38.76

1553194
0
0

 

19937723

15015595
1001511

37508023

38042164

37151
0
0

 

1130726

0
212787

1380664

1390464

1590345
0
0

 

21068449

15015595
1214298

38888687

39432628

1.49
0
0

 

19.67

14.02
1.13

36.31

36.82

-0.71
 
 
 

-0.63

-0.50
-0.06
-1.90

-1.94

Non-Ins�tu�ons
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual Shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital upto Rs.2 Lakh
Individual Shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs.2 Lakh
c) Others (specify) NRIs
  Sub-total (B) (2):
  Total Public shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

2
2195801

0
0

 
19518160

14775090
1001530

37490581

38035522

C Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
100338204 1397106 101735310 100.00 105699336 1390464 107089800 100.00 0
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ii) Shareholding of Promoters as on 31.03.2021

Sl. 
No

Name of the
Shareholder No. of 

Shares

No of Shares at the beginning 
the year  (01.04.2020)

%of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/  

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

Shareholding at the end of 
the year (31.03.2021)

%of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/  

encumbered 
to total 
shares

% of 
change in 

Share-
-holding 
during 

the year

1

2

3

4

5

M/s. Sree Rayalaseema Hi-Strength 
Hypo Limited
M/s. TGV Projects and Investments 
Private Ltd
M/s. Sree Rayalaseema Dutch 
Kassenbouw Private Ltd
M/s. Gowri Gopal Hospitals 
Private Ltd
M/s. Sree Rayalaseema Galaxy 
Projects Private Ltd

20.19

11.49

1.85

0.99

0.05

0.01

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

20544496

11694248

1881109

1005375

54662

19.18

10.92

1.76

0.94

0.05

0.01

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

-1.01

-0.57

-0.09

-0.05

0.00 

20544496

11694248

1881109

1005375

54662

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

M/s. TGV Securi�es Private Ltd

M/s. Brilliant Industries Private  Ltd 

Sri. T G Venkatesh

Smt.T  G Rajyalakshmi

Sri. T G Bharath

Smt. Jyothsna S Mysore

Smt. Boda Mourya

Total

14150

21159740

5390613

322384

129744

13361

92800

62302682

0.01 

20.80

5.30

0.32

0.13

0.01

0.09

61.24

0.00

0.17

0.30

0.32

0.13

0.01

0.09

1.04

14150

26514230

5390613

322384

129744

13361

92800

67657172

0.01

24.76

5.03

0.30

0.12

0.01

0.09

63.18

0.00

0.00

0.10

0.02

0.03

0.01

0.01

0.19

0.00 

3.96

-0.26

-0.02

-0.01 

0.00 

0.00

1.94

iii)  Change in Promoters Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No

No.of Shares 
at the 

beginning 
of the year 
(01.04.20) / 
end of the 

Year 
(31.03.21)

Shareholding

% of total 
shares of 

the 
Company

Date
Increase  

in 
Share

holding

Cumula�ve 
Shareholding 

during the Year 
(01.04.20) to 

(31.03.21)

Reason

No. of Shares 

% of 
total 

shares 
of the 

Company

1 M/s. Brilliant Industries 
Pvt Ltd.

21159740 20.80 20.05.2020 5354490 Preferen�al 
Allotment 26514230

26514230

24.76

24.76

Name of the
Shareholder
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Sl. 
No Reason

Cumula�ve 
Shareholding 

during the Year 
(01.04.20) to 

(31.03.21)

No. of Shares 

% of 
total 

shares 
of the 

Company

No.of Shares 
at the 

beginning 
of the year 
(01.04.20) / 
end of the 

Year (31.03.21)

Shareholding

756692
803236

0.74
0.75

% of total 
shares of 

the 
Company

Name of the
Shareholder

Increase / 
Decrease in 

Share
holding  

(during the 
year 

01.04.20 
to 

31.03.21

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Meherwan Adi Kotwal

M Seethamma

Life Insurance Corpora�on 
of  India

Ashok Kumar Giriraj Bansal

Shabir Nazmuddin Paratha

Sadhna Mehrotra

Shivswaroop Jagmohanlal 
Gupta

Bhar� Chetan Cholera

Lal Tolani

Anil Bhavanji Shah

636192
728612

0.63
0.68

509904
509904

0.50
0.48

525000
525000

0.52
0.49

0
417019

0.00
0.39

396400
379400

0.39
0.35

0
375000

0.00
0.35

345778
345778

0.34
0.32

347834
347834

0.34
0.32

0
332216

0.00
0.31

0.75

0.68

0.48

 0.49

 0.39

0.35

 0.35

0.32

0.32

 0.31

803236

728612

509904

 525000

 417019

379400

 375000

345778

347834

  332216

Purchase

Purchase

No Change

 No Change

 Purchase

Sale

 Purchase

No Change

No Change

 Purchase

46544

92420

 

17000

iv)  Shareholding Pa�ern of Top Ten Shareholders 
      (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) as on 31.03.2021
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(v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sl. 
No Reason

Cumula�ve 
Shareholding 

during the Year 
(01.04.20) to 

(31.03.21)

No. of Shares 

% of 
total 

shares 
of the 

Company

No.of Shares 
at the 

beginning 
of the year 
(01.04.20) / 
end of the 

Year 
(31.03.21)

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

% of total 
shares of 

the 
Company

For each of the 
Directors and KMP

Date wise 
Increase / 

Decrease in 
Shareholding 

specifying 
the reasons 

for increase / 
decrease 

(e.g., 
Allotment / 
Transfer / 
Bonus / 

Sweat Equity 
etc.)  (during 

the year 
01.04.20 to 

31.03.21

1

2

3

4

5

Sri T.G. Venkatesh

Dr.  M Asha Reddy

Sri. K. Karunakar Rao

Smt K. Naga Nirmala Rao

Sri V. Radhakrishna Murthy

At the end of the Year

53,90,613

2,850

550

0

8

 53,94,021

5.30

0.00 

0.00 

0.00

0.00 

5.30

0

0

0

0

0

0

No change

Sale

No change

Purchase

No Change

53,90,613

0

550

1,000

8

53,92,171

5.03

0.00 

0.00 

0.00

0.00 

5.03

(V)   INDEBTEDNESS    
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Sl.
No. Descrip�on

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposit Total 
Indebtedness

Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year
Addi�on
Reduc�on

Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

i
ii
iii

*
*

i
ii
iii

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

37371.79
0

13.62
37385.41

2138.27
0
0

2138.27

0
0
0
0

39510.06
0

13.62
39523.69

8494.00
1659.69

44207.16
0

12.56
44219.72

1400.00
194.94

3343.33
0
0

3343.33

9894.00
1854.63

47550.49
0

12.56
47563.05

0
0

0
0
0
0

(` in lakhs)
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELAL 

A) Remunera�on to Managing Director, Whole-�me Directors and /or Manager:

Sl.
No. Par�culars of Remunera�on

1

Sri Kamise�y 
Karunakar Rao

Sri Nalla 
Jesvanth Reddy

Sri Gopal 
Krishan

Total Amount          
(in Rs.)

ED (Fin. & Comml.) ED (Technical) ED (Technical)

Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
sec�on 17(1) of the Income-tax, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under sec�on 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Op�on
Sweat Equity
Commission
 - as % of Profit
others, specify
Others, please specify
Total  Ceiling as per the Act (*)

2
3
4

5

19,81,620

1,87,441

0
 
 
 
 
 
 

21,69,061

18,82,020

1,86,082

0
 
 
 
 
 
 

20,68,102

24,00000

1,20,000

0
 
 
 
 
 

 
25,20,000

62,63,640 

4,93,964

0

67,57,163

(*) Rs.617.23 lakhs (being 10% Profits of the Company as per Sec. 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

B. Remunera�on to Other Directors    

1

Sl.
No. Name of the Director

Total 
Amount          
(in Rs.)

* Others 
(Please 
Specify)

Commission

Fee for 
a�ending 
Board / 

Commi�ee 
Mee�ngs

Par�culars of  
Remunera�on during 

the period 
01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021

Independent Directors

Sri G. Krishna Murthy
Sri P.N. Vedanarayanan
Dr M. Asha Reddy
Sri J. Nagabhushanam

TOTAL (1)

64,000
36,000
67,500
72,000

2,39,500

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

64,000
36,000
67,500
72,000

2,39,500

2 Other Non-Execu�ve 
Directors

0 0-
-

-
-

- - --

TOTAL (2)

Total (B) =(1+2)
Total Managerial 
Remunera�on
Overall Ceiling as per 
the Act

2,39,500 2,39,500

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(*)

(*)  Rs. 6.17 Lakhs (being 1% of the net profit of the company calculated under Clause 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)
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C) Remunera�on to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / MANAGER /WTD.

Sl.
No. Par�culars of Remunera�on

1

Sri C. Rajesh 
Khanna

Sri V. Radha
krishna Murthy

Total Amount          
(in Rs.)

CFO Company Secretary

Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
sec�on 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) (c) Profits in lieu of salary under sec�on 
17(3) Income-tax Act,1961
Stock Op�on
Sweat Equity
Commission
 - as % of Profit
others, specify
Others, please specify
Total  

2
3
4

5

14,08,553
38,400

-

-

-
-
-
-
 

-
14,46,953

Key Managerial Personnel

6,77,992
38,400

-

-

-
-
-
-
 

-
7,16,392

20,86,545
76,800

-

-

-
-
-
-
 

-
 21,63,345

VII) PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : 

Type
Sec�on of the 

Companies 
Act

Brief 
Descrip�on

Details of 
penalty/ 

Punishment / 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority                
( RD /
NCLT/

COURT)

Appeal made 
if any 

(Give Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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ANNEXURE “H” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1 The Composi�on of the CSR Commi�ee 
1.   Sri G. Krishna Murthy
2.   Sri  K. Karunakar Rao
3.   Sri  Gopal Krishan

Rs. 7009.27   Lakhs

Rs.   140.19   Lakhs

Rs.     58.52   Lakhs

Rs.   198.71   Lakhs

Rs.   201.61   Lakhs

Rs.       2.90   Lakhs

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount men�oned in Item No. 2 above)

Add : Previous year un spent CSR amount 

Total CSR obliga�on

Less : Actual amount spent on CSR

Excess amount spent CSR carried forward to next year for set off

2

3

4

5

Sl.
No.

CSR Project 
or ac�vity 
iden�fied

Drinking Water 
to people of 
nearby areas

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects or 
programs 

(1) Local area or
(2) Specify the 

State and 
District where 

projects or 
programs was 

undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise 
(in Rs. lakhs)

Amount spent 
on the projects 

or programs 
Sub-heads:
(1) Direct 

expenditure on 
projects or 
programs

(2) Overheads
(in Rs. lakhs)

Cumula�ve 
expenditure 

upto the 
repor�ng 

period
(in Rs.lakhs)

Amount spent: 
Director or 

through 
implemen�ng 

agency
(in Rs. lakhs)

1

Temple 
Renova�on2

Health and well 
being of people3

Pollu�on control 
and Sanita�on
Old age 
pensions & 
Allevia�on of 
poverty.

4

5

Sports and 
Develop-ment6

7
Dona�on to 
preserve 
na�onal heritage

Provision of 
Drinking Water

Social Project

Social Project

Environmental
Stability

Eradica�on 
of poverty

Sports 
Educa�on
Protec�on of 
na�onal 
heritage 

Local area

Local area

Local area

Local area

Local area

Local area

Local area

Total

15.22

118.68

25.16

37.86

3.60

0.96

0.13

201.61

15.22

118.68

25.16

37.86

3.60

0.96

0.13

201.61

15.22

118.68

25.16

37.86

3.60

0.96

0.13

201.61

15.22

118.68

25.16

37.86

3.60

0.96

0.13

201.61

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
CA K KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)

Sd/-
N JESVANTH REDDY

Execu�ve Director  (Technical)
(DIN: 03074131)

Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021
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ANNEXURE “I” TO  THE  DIRECTORS’  REPORT
Informa�on pursuant to Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

(1) Role  of  the  remunera�on of each Director/KMP to the  median  remunera�on  of  all  the employees of the 
Company for the financial year:

Median remunera�on of all the employees of the Company for the Financial year 2020-21

The percentage increase in the median remunera�on of employees in the Financial year 2020-21

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2021

Rs.29,257/-

7.5 %

1033

Name of Director / KMP Ra�o of remunera�on to median remunera�on of all employees

Non-Execu�ve Directors –

Note: The ra�o of remunera�on to median  remunera�on  is  based on  remunera�on  paid during  the  period          
1st  April,  2020  to 31st  March,  2021.

(2) Average percen�le increase already made in the salaries of employees other than managerial  personnel in the 
last financial year and its comparison with the percen�le increase in the managerial remunera�on and 
jus�fica�on thereof and point out if there are any excep�onal circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remunera�on.

 Factors influencing remunera�on of managerial and non-managerial execu�ves is different.
(3) Affirma�on that the remunera�on is as per the remunera�on policy of the Company.
 It  confirmed  affirma�vely  that  the  remunera�on  to  execu�ves  is  as per remunera�on policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/-

CA K KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)

Sd/-
N JESVANTH REDDY

Execu�ve Director  (Technical)
(DIN: 03074131)

Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

Independent Directors
Sri G. Krishna Murthy
Sri P.N. Vedanarayanan
Dr M. Asha Reddy
Sri J. Nagabhushanam
Execu�ve Directors
Sri K. Karunakar Rao
Sri N. Jesvanth Reddy
Sri Gopal Krishan
Key Managerial Personnel
Sri V. Radhakrishna Murthy
Sri C. Rajesh Khanna

0.18
0.11
0.19
0.21

6.18
5.89
7.18

2.03
4.10
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ANNEXURE “J” TO THE  DIRECTORS’  REPORT
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE  FINANCIAL  YEAR  ENDED  31ST  MARCH,  2021

[Pursuant to Sec�on 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members,
M/s. TGV SRAAC Limited
(CIN : L24110AP1981PLC003077)
Kurnool – 518 004, (A.P.)

I have conducted the secretarial audit on the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate prac�ces by M/s. TGV SRAAC Limited (“the Company”), Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 
thereon.   Based on my verifica�on of M/s. TGV SRAAC  Ltd., books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 
representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the 
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us and 
maintained by the M/s. TGV SRAAC Ltd., (“The Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to 
the provisions of:
(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder and as amended upto date;
(ii)  The Securi�es Contract (Regula�on) Act, 1956 (`SCRA’) and the rules made hereunder;
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made thereunder to the  extent of   

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
(v)  The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(`SEBI Act’)
 a) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and  Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011;
 b)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)  Regula�ons, 2009; 
 c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Op�on Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) 
Regula�ons,  2014  (to  the  extent it  is  applicable to the  Company  during  the  Audit  period). 

 d) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2008 (to the extent 
it is applicable to the Company during the Audit period); 

 e) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regula�ons, 1993 
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regarding the Companies Act and dealing with Client  (to the extent it is applicable to the Company during the 
Audit period); 

 f) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2009  (to the extent it is 
applicable to the Company during the Audit period) and ;

 g) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 1998 (to the extent it is 
applicable to the Company during the Audit period).

(vi)  I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examina�on of the 
relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the company has complied with the 
following laws applicable specifically to the Company;

 (1) The Drugs and Cosme�c Act, 2002 and rules made thereunder; (b) The Environmental Protec�on Act, 1986 (c) 
The Indian Electricity Act, 2003 (d) The Indian Explosives Act, 1884 (e) The Indian Telegraph Act, 1885 (f) 
Factories Act, 1948 (g) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 (h) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 (i) The Minimum Wages 
Act, 1948 (j)  Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 (k) The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 1952 (l)  The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 (m)  The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (n) The Contract 
Labour (Regula�ons & Aboli�on) Act, 1970 (o) The Child Labour (Prohibi�on & Regula�on) Act, 1986 (p)  The 
Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act, 1946 (q) The Appren�ces Act, 1961 (r)  Equal Remunera�on Act, 
1976 (s) The Employment Exchange (Compulsory No�fica�on of Vacancies) Act, 1959 (t) Air (Preven�on and 
control of Pollu�on) Act, 1981.

  I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following :
  (i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India 
  (ii) Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, 
Standards etc. as men�oned above.
I further report that :
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve Directors, Non-Execu�ve 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composi�on of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate no�ce is given to all Directors to schedule the Board mee�ngs, Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
atleast seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the 
agenda items before the mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng.
Majority decision are carried through while the dissen�ng members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes of the Board and Commi�ees of the Board.
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and opera�ons 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines.
I further report that during the audit period the Company had the following events/ac�ons which have a major bearing on 
the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regula�ons, guidelines and standards.
1) The Board Allotment Commi�ee has allo�ed 53,54,490 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with a premium of Rs.27.01 per 

share on conversion of 53,54,490 fully paid conver�ble share warrants into equity shares in the ra�o of 1:1.  The 
Company has complied with all statutory requirements and obtained trading approval from BSE Ltd., subject to the 
condi�on of 3 years lock-in provision on these shares in pursuance to SEBI (ICDR) Regula�ons, 2018. 
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 (I) Public / Right / Preferen�al issue of shares / debentures / sweat Equity,  etc. - to the extent men�oned above in 
point (1).

 (ii) Redemp�on / buy-back of securi�es –- Nil
 (iii) Major decision taken by the members in pursuance to Sec�on 180 of the Companies, 2013 - Not Applicable.
 (iv) Merger  /  amalgama�on  /  reconstruc�ons,  etc., -- Not  Applicable.
 (v) Foreign  technical  collabora�ons  -  N.A.

For N. Ramaswamy & Associates
Company Secretaries

N. Ramaswamy 
Prac�cing Company Secretary

Sole Proprietor
PCS No. 5052

UDIN : F004408C000830178
Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

Note : This is to be read with our le�er of even date which is Annexed and form an integral part of this report.

ANNEXURE

To,

The Members
M/s. TGV SRAAC Limited 
Kurnool – 518 004, Andhra Pradesh

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.  Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit prac�ces and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verifica�on was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and prac�ces, we followed provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.  

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representa�on about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regula�ons and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regula�ons, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of procedure on test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For N. Ramaswamy & Associates
Company Secretaries

N. Ramaswamy 
Prac�cing Company Secretary

Sole Proprietor
PCS No. 5052

UDIN : F004408C000830178
Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

Sd/-

Sd/-
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ANNEXURE  “K“  TO   THE  DIRECTORS’  REPORT
CERTIFICATE  ON  NON-DISQUALIFICATION  OF  DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015)

To 
The Members
M/s TGV SRAAC Limited
Regd. Office : Gondiparla
Kurnool – 518 004 (A.P)
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of TGV SRAAC 
Limited and having CIN L24110AP1981PLC003077 and Registered Office at Gondiparla, Kurnool – 518 004 (A.P) 
(hereina�er referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Cer�ficate, in 
accordance with Regula�on 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub clause 10 (i) of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.
In my opinion and to the best of my informa�on and according to the verifica�ons (including Directors Iden�fica�on 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explana�ons furnished to us by the 
Company & its officers, I hereby cer�fy that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or con�nuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other 
Statutory Authority. 

Sl.
No. Name of Director DIN

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Gowraswamy Krishna Murthy
Pudugramam Neelakantan Vedanarayanan
Karunakar Rao Kamise�y
Jevanth Reddy Nalla
Gopal Krishan
Nagabhushanam Jagini
Mora Asha Reddy

00134828
00982697
02031367
03074131
05342348
07217668
07328122

Date of appointment 
in Company

30/11/1995
01/04/1994
07/08/2010
07/08/2010
07/11/2014
10/07/2015
29/01/2016

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verifica�on.  This cer�ficate 
is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effec�veness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For N. Ramaswamy & Associates
Company Secretaries

N. Ramaswamy 
Prac�cing Company Secretary

Sole Proprietor
PCS No. 5052

UDIN : F004408C000407525
Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 1st June, 2021

Sd/-
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ANNEXURE  “L“  TO  THE  DIRECTORS’  REPORT

Par�culars of Investments made under Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
during the year 2020-21.

Sl.
No. No. of Shares

1
2
3
4
5
6

Total

1,34,000
1,34,000
2,97,480

64,32,000
11,12,200

3,59,120
 84,68,800

Name of Company

M/s.  Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd., (APGPCL)
M/s.  Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd., (APGPCL)
M/s.  Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd., (APGPCL)
M/s.  Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd., (APGPCL)
M/s.  Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd., (APGPCL)
M/s.  Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd., (APGPCL)

Amount in 
Rs. Crore

2.00
2.00
4.44

54.24
9.34
3.01

75.03

Place : Hyderabad                                           
Date  : 26th August, 2021

    On behalf of the Board of Directors

CA K. KARUNAKAR RAO
Execu�ve Director & CEO

(DIN: 02031367)

N. JESVANTH REDDY
Execu�ve Director (Technical)

(DIN: 03074131)

Sd/- Sd/-
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To
The Members of
TGV SRAAC LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of TGV SRAAC Ltd (“the Company”), which comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the statement of profit and loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accoun�ng standards prescribed under 
sec�on 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, as amended, (“Ind AS”) 
and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
31stMarch, 2021, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibili�es for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these ma�ers.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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Key audit ma�ers How the ma�er was addressed in our audit

Allowance for credit losses
There is significant judgement involved in the 
calcula�ng of allowances for credit losses.
So, we have iden�fied this as a key audit ma�er.

Considering the pandemic rela�ng to COVID-19, the 
Company has, based on current available informa�on 
determined the pruden�al es�mate of provision for 
impairment of financial assets. Given the uncertainty 
over the poten�al macro-economic impact, the 
Company management has considered all available 
internal and external informa�on including credit 
reports and economic forecasts up to the date of 
approval of these financial results. Accordingly, the 
Company has made pruden�al es�mate of provision 
for expected credit loss on financial assets as at 
31stMarch, 2021.

The Company considers this provision to be adequate 
and expects to recover the carrying amount of these 
financial assets.

Performed process walkthrough and assessed the 
Company’s accoun�ng policies for impairment of 
financial assets and their compliance with Ind AS 109.

We tested the methodology for allowance of credit 
losses, completeness and accuracy of informa�on 
used for es�ma�ng probability of default and 
computa�on of allowance for expected credit losses.

Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosure in the 
financial statements.

Income tax

Income tax is a key audit ma�er because of the 
judgments and es�mates involved and the amount of 
income taxes is material to the financial statements 
as a whole.

The Company makes judgements and es�mates in 
connec�on with income taxes resul�ng in recogni�on 
of deferred tax assets and liabili�es as well as tax 
provisions.

We performed audit procedures on the calcula�on 
and valua�on of current tax and deferred tax.

Procedures include inquiring with management on 
the tax issues raisedby the tax authori�es and 
assessing their impact to thefinancial statements.

We evaluated the appropriateness of the recogni�on 
principles and the sufficiency of the given disclosures.
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Emphasis of ma�er

We draw a�en�on to Note 2(X) to the Ind AS financial statements, which describes the Company’s assessment 
to reflect the adverse business impact and uncertain�es arising from the COVID 19 pandemic. Based on these 
assessments, the management has concluded that the Company has determined the pruden�al es�mate of 
provision for impairment of financial assets.

Such es�mates or assessments are based on the current facts and circumstances and may not necessarily 
reflect the future uncertain�es and events arising from the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this ma�er.

Other Informa�on

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other informa�on. The other 
informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the prepara�on of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the accoun�ng Standards 
specified under sec�on 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other 
irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, 
relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Director is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accoun�ng unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of Financial Statement

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skep�cism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material 
misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presenta�on. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and 
�ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
iden�fy during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor’s report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure 
about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central  
Government of India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of sec�on 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a 
statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

 a) we have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examina�on of those books;

 c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

 d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards 
prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Act;

 e) on the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors of the Company as                    
on 31st March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 31st  March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164(2) of the Act;

 f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
the Company and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate report 
in”AnnexureB”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng 
effec�veness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements; 
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 g) with respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the 
requirements of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended: in our opinion and to the best of our 
informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the remunera�on paid by the Company to 
its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of sec�on 197 of the Act.

 h) with respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us:

  i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its 
financial statements - Refer Note 27 to the Ind AS financial statements;

  ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts; as such   
there were no material foreseeable losses thereon;

  iii. there are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and 
Protec�on Fund; therefore, delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 3rd June, 2021

for K S RAO & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn. No. 003109S
Sd/-

CA P.GOVARDHANA REDDY
Partner  

Membership No.029193
UDIN:21029193AAAAIJ4494
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i) in respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

 a) the Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details 
and situa�on of fixed assets;

 b) the Company has a program of verifica�on to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management 
during the year. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no material discrepancies 
were no�ced on such verifica�on;

 c) according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of the 
records of the Company, the �tle deeds of all immovable proper�es are held in the name of the 
Company except the �tle to the property of 12.17 acres of land situated in Bellary amoun�ng to Rs. 
15.29 Lakhs acquired by the Company from Karnataka Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB) is 
in the process of being transferred in the Company's name.

ii) in respect of Company’s inventory: the physical verifica�on of inventory has been conducted at reasonable 
intervals by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were no�ced on physical 
verifica�on and the small discrepancies, if any, have been properly dealt with in the books of account;

iii) according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other par�es covered in the register 
maintained under Sec�on 189 of the Act;

iv) in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Sec�ons 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and 
providing guarantees and securi�es, as applicable;

v) the Company has not accepted deposits from public during the year and does not have any unclaimed 
deposits as at 31stMarch, 2021 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company;

vi) the maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Sec�on 148(1) of the 
Act. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as prescribed by the Central Government under sub-sec�on (1) of 
Sec�on 148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made 
and maintained.

 We have, however, not made a detailed examina�on of the cost records with a view to determine whether 
they are accurate or complete;

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements’ sec�on of our report of even date)
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vii) according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

 a. the Company has generally been regular in deposi�ng undisputed statutory dues, including Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), Customs Duty, Cess and 
other material statutory as applicable, with the appropriate authori�es;

 b. there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in 
arrears as at 31stMarch, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable;

 c. details of dues of Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs, PF, Electricity, Water which have not been 
deposited as at 31st March, 2021 on account of dispute are given below:

Name of the 
Statute Nature of dues

Period to
which the
amount 
relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Amount 
(Rs. 

in lakhs)

AP VAT Act, 2005 Interest on delay payment of 
deferred sales tax 154.29*

2005-06 & 
2006-07

High Court of Andhra 
Pradesh, Amarava�

Karnataka Tax on 
entry of goods 
Act, 1979

Entry tax on purchase of 
machinery items and interest 1.78*

2006-07
2007-08
2009-10

Dy. Commissioner of 
Commercial Taxes, Bellary

Andhra Pradesh 
entry tax act, 
2001

Entry tax on purchase of 
Electrical Equipments 63.77*

2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

High Court of Andhra 
Pradesh, Amarava�

Indian Customs 
Act, 1962

Customs Duty claimed on raw
 materials

1,036.14* 2000-2006 Commissioner of customs, 
Chennai

Indian Customs 
Act, 1962

Finalisa�on of assessed bill of 
entries pertaining to KCL 7.05 2006-07

Dy. Commissioner of 
Customs, Alibag division 
Raigad, Maharastra

Indian Customs 
Act, 1962

An�–dumping duty on import 
of Barium Carbonate 32.69 2010-11

Joint commissioner of 
Customs, Chennai
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Name of the 
Statute Nature of dues

Period to
which the
amount 
relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Amount 
(Rs. 

in lakhs)

The Electricity 
Act, 2003

Fuel Surcharge
Adjustment(FSA)charges

871.93
651.87

2008-09
2009-10

Supreme Court of India

The Electricity 
Act, 2003

Interest on amount spending 
in court cases

1,437.14
From 

2014-15 to
March, 2018

High Court of Andhra 
Pradesh, Amarava�

The Electricity 
Act, 2003

Electricity Duty Demand 551.44
July, 2003-
 May, 2013

Supreme Court of India, 
Delhi

The Electricity 
Act, 2003

Fuel Surcharge 
Adjustment(FSA) charges 1,591.38 May & June 

2010 and 
October,
2011 to 

March,2012

High Court of Andhra 
Pradesh,Amarava�Levy of interest by APCPDCL 

on FSA Charges 598.17

The Electricity 
Act, 2003

Wheeling charges on wind 
genera�on

24.21
August, 

2002 Supreme court of India

The Electricity 
Act, 2003

Power supply made by 
APGPCL not credited fully in 
the power bills raised by 
APSPDCL

2,846.00
June 2020 

to 
March 2021

High Court of Andhra 
Pradesh, Amarava�

IGST ACT, 2017
Error in GST E Way Bill, 
Levied IGST & Extra 100% of 
IGST

5.17 February, 
2019

Joint Commissioner, Appeal 
IV, U�arakhand

Indian Customs 
Act, 1962

Differen�al duty on 
classifica�on of goods 
disputed (Lauric Acid)

9.63

10.51

2014-15

2014-15

Customs,Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal, 
Chennai

Assistant Commissioner 
Customs, Chennai

Employees 
Provident Fund 
and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 
1952

PF delay charges/
damages for belated
payments

15.34
May, 2002 

to 
Dec, 2007

Employees Provident Fund 
Appellate Tribunal, New 
Delhi.
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viii) in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial ins�tu�ons, banks and government. The 
Company has not issued any debentures;

ix) in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, money raised by way of term 
loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised. The 
Company has not raised moneys by way of public offer;

x) to the best of our knowledge and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no fraud by the 
Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been no�ced or reported during 
the year;

xi) in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and based on our examina�on 
of the records, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remunera�on in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of sec�on 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

xii) the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence repor�ng under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016 Order is not 
applicable;

xiii) in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company is in compliance 
with Sec�on 188 and 177 of the Act, where applicable, for all transac�ons with the related par�es and the 
details of related party transac�ons have been disclosed in the financial statements etc as required by the 
applicable accoun�ng standards;

xiv) in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and based on our examina�on 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferen�al allotment or private placement 
of fully or partly conver�ble debentures during the year under review.The company has made preferen�al 

Name of the 
Statute Nature of dues

Period to
which the
amount 
relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

Amount 
(Rs. 

in lakhs)

The Andhra 
Pradesh Irriga�on 
U�lisa�on and 
Command Area 
Development
Act, 1984

Increase in water rate made 
by Andhra Pradesh 
Government through GO for 
using river water

128.70

February, 
2014 to 
March, 
2021

High court of Andhra 
Pradesh, Amarava�

*Net of amounts paid under protest.

Disallowance of VAT Input Tax 
Credit, supplier has not paid 
tax

Appellate Deputy 
Commissioner, Tirupathi

AP VAT Act 1.48 June, 
2017
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allotment of Share Warrants and allotment of shares by conversion of warrants during the year under 
review. The requirements of sec�on 42 of the Act, have been complied with and the amounts raised have 
been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised;

xv) in our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, during the year the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transac�ons with its directors or persons connected with its directors 
and hence provisions of Sec�on 192 of the Act, are not applicable;

xvi) the Company is not required to be registered under Sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 3rd June, 2021

Sd/-       

for K S RAO & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn. No. 003109S

 
CA P.GOVARDHANA REDDY

Partner  
Membership No.029193

UDIN:21029193AAAAIJ4494
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Subsec�on 3 of 
Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial statements of TGV SRAAC Ltd (“theCompany”) as 
of 31st March, 2021 in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control with reference to financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company 
considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng 
records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial repor�ng 
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Audi�ng prescribed under Sec�on143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system with reference to financial statements and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements’ sec�on of our report of even date)
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company’s internal 
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that(1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and 
disposi�ons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as 
necessary to permit prepara�on of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accoun�ng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisa�ons of management and directors of the company; and (3)provide reasonable assurance 
regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on, use,or disposi�on of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management over ride of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in 
condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the Company has, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were opera�ng effec�vely as at            
31st March, 2021, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by 
the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Sd/-

for K S RAO & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn. No. 003109S

CA P.GOVARDHANA REDDY
Partner  

Membership No.029193
UDIN:21029193AAAAIJ4494

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 3rd June, 2021

68

TGV SRAAC LIMITED



Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2021

Par�culars Note
No

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

ASSETS
Non-current assets 
 Property, Plant and Equipment
 Right-to-use assets on lease
 Capital work-in-progress
 Investment proper�es
 Financial assets
  - Investments
  - Other financial assets
 Other non-current assets 
 Total Non-current assets
Current assets 
 Inventories 
 Financial assets
  - Trade receivables
  - Cash and cash equivalents
  - Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
  - Other financial assets
 Other current assets 
 Total Current assets

3
28
3
4

5(a)
5(b)

6

7

8(a)
8(b)
8(c)
8(d)

9

 75,580.39 
 1,810.85 

 12,509.02 
 7.05 

 8,861.34 
 924.10 

 2,158.79 
 1,01,851.54 

 11,607.56 

 9,918.63 
 3,246.95 
 7,394.48 
 9,479.02 
 1,791.89 

 43,438.53
TOTAL ASSETS

 78,696.44 
 2,069.44 
 2,935.23 

 7.05 

 769.28 
 3,087.71 
 1,231.93 

 88,797.08 

 12,720.34 

 8,269.92 
 672.24 

 6,223.10 
 9,372.83 
 1,420.46 

 38,678.89 
 1,45,290.07  1,27,475.97 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
 Equity Share capital     
 Other equity
 Total Equity
Liabili�es
Non-current liabili�es 
 Financial liabili�es
  -Borrowings
  -Lease liability
  -Other financial liabili�es
 Deferred tax liabili�es (Net)
 Deferred Government grants
 Total Non-current liabili�es
Current liabili�es 
 Financial liabili�es
  - Borrowings
  - Trade and other payables
 (A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 
 (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
 small enterprises
  - Lease liability
  - Other financial liabili�es
Other current liabili�es 
Provisions 
Current tax liability (Net)
Total Current liabili�es

10(a)
10(b)

11(a)
28

11(b)
12
13

11(c)
11(d)

28
11(e)

14
15
16

 10,713.26 
 50,307.90 
 61,021.16 

 25,327.47 
 1,847.28 
 6,477.89 
 8,363.39 

 27.93 
 42,043.96 

 19,373.32 

 703.75 
 6,909.66 

 
387.20 

 10,073.97 
 4,422.93 

 32.63 
 321.49 

 42,224.95 

 10,177.81 
 43,478.83 
 53,656.64 

 17,646.38 
 2,005.98 
 6,281.98 
 9,762.94 

 58.96 
 35,756.24 

 19,037.87 

 961.00 
 4,588.83 

 
368.33 

 7,352.05 
 4,863.69 

 86.38 
 804.94 

 38,063.09 
TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

 84,268.91 
 1,45,290.07 

 73,819.33 
 1,27,475.97 

General informa�on
Summary of significant accoun�ng policies
See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

1.
2.

As per our a�ached report of even date
for K S RAO & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 003109S
                 Sd/-
(CA P.GOVARDHANA REDDY)
Partner  
Membership No.029193
Place: Hyderabad
Date :  3rd June,2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
CA K KARUNAKAR RAO

Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.) & CEO

Sd/-
N JESVANTH REDDY

Execu�ve Director  (Technical)

Sd/-
CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY

Company Secretary  

Sd/-
CA C. RAJESH KHANNA

Vice President (Fin. & Accts) & CFO
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2021   

Par�culars Note
No

Year ended
31st March, 2021

Year ended
31st March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

I  Revenue from opera�ons
II  Other income
III Total revenue (I + II)
IV Expenses
  Cost of materials consumed 
  Purchase of stock-in-trade
  Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and     
  stock-in-trade
  Employee benefit expense 
  Finance cost 
  Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense 
  Power and fuel
  Other expenses
  Total expenses (IV)
V  Profit/ (loss) before excep�onal items and tax (III-IV)
VI Excep�onal items
VII Profit/ (loss) before tax (V-VI)
  Current tax
  Deferred tax
  Earlier years Income Tax     
VIII Tax expense
IX Profit/ (loss) for the period from con�nuing opera�ons (VII-VIII)
X  Profit/ (loss) from discon�nuing opera�ons
XI  Tax expense of discon�nuing opera�ons
XII Profit/ (loss) from discon�nuing opera�ons (a�er tax) (X-XI)
XIII Profit/ (loss) for the period (IX+XII)
XIV Other comprehensive income
  Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or 
  loss in subsequent periods:
  Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
  Tax effect
  Net gains/(losses) on FVTOCI equity securi�es
XV Total comprehensive income for the period (XIII+XIV)
XVI Earnings per equity share (for con�nuing opera�ons)
  a) Basic 
  b) Diluted 
XVII Earnings per equity share (for discon�nuing opera�ons)
  a) Basic 
  b) Diluted 
XVIII Earnings per equity share 
  (for con�nuing & discon�nuing opera�ons)
  a) Basic 
  b) Diluted

17
18

19(a)

19(b)
20
21
3

22

23
23

32

24

25

25

 1,00,871.99 
 987.54 

 1,01,859.53 

 36,152.99 
 43.00 

 
158.53

 4,816.79 
 3,937.28 
 6,318.03 

 30,596.14 
 14,950.22 
 96,972.98 

 4,886.55 
 -   

 4,886.55 
 900.00 
 959.12 

 55.68 
 1,914.80 
 2,971.75 

 (76.51)
 -   

 (76.51)
 2,895.24 

 
35.53 

 (12.42)
 588.81 

 3,507.16 

 2.79 
 2.79 

 (0.07)
 (0.07)

 
2.72 

 2.72 

 1,04,026.19 
 814.18 

 1,04,840.37 

 30,963.37 
 -   

 
(261.72)   

 5,313.25 
 3,905.19 
 5,628.62 

 37,495.73 
 15,316.75 
 98,361.19 

 6,479.18 
 -   

 6,479.18 
 1,190.00 

 299.41 
 186.62 

 1,676.03 
 4,803.15 

 (75.70)
 -   

 (75.70)
 4,727.45 

 (29.19)
 10.20 

 (212.22)
 4,496.24 

 4.96 
 4.70 

 (0.08)
 (0.07)

 
4.88 

 4.62 
General informa�on
Summary of significant accoun�ng policies
See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

1.
2.

As per our a�ached report of even date
for K S RAO & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 003109S
                 Sd/-
(CA P.GOVARDHANA REDDY)
Partner  
Membership No.029193
Place: Hyderabad
Date :  3rd June,2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
CA K KARUNAKAR RAO

Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.) & CEO

Sd/-
N JESVANTH REDDY

Execu�ve Director  (Technical)

Sd/-
CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY

Company Secretary  

Sd/-
CA C. RAJESH KHANNA

Vice President (Fin. & Accts) & CFO
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As per our a�ached report of even date
for K S RAO & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 003109S
                 Sd/-
(CA P.GOVARDHANA REDDY)
Partner  
Membership No.029193
Place: Hyderabad
Date :  3rd June,2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
CA K KARUNAKAR RAO

Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.) & CEO

Sd/-
N JESVANTH REDDY

Execu�ve Director  (Technical)

Sd/-
CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY

Company Secretary  

Sd/-
CA C. RAJESH KHANNA

Vice President (Fin. & Accts) & CFO

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Par�culars Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
march 31, 2020

Cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es
Profit before tax from con�nuing opera�ons
Profit/(loss) before tax from discon�nued opera�ons
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
 Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expenses
 Interest income
 Allowance for expected credit loss on trade receivables
 Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss
 Dividend income on investments made
 Interest expenses
 Interset on lease liability
 Interest expense due to amor�sa�on of financial liability & deferred sales tax recognised
 Income due to deferred sales tax recognised & capital subsidy recognised
Opera�ng profit before working capital changes
Working capital adjustments:
 (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables
 (Decrease)/Increase in current financial liabili�es
 (Decrease)/Increase in other current liabili�es
 (Decrease)/Increase in non-current financial liabili�es
 (Decrease)/Increase in short term provisions
 (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
 (Increase)/Decrease in inventories
 (Increase)/Decrease in current financial assets
 (Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
 (Increase)/Decrease in non-current financial assets
 (Increase)/Decrease in non-current assets
Cash generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es
Direct taxes paid (net)
Net cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es (A)
Cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es
 Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP
 Sales/(Purchase) of investment
 Interest received
 Dividend received
 Deposits matured/(placed) during the year
 Redemp�on/(Investment) of margin money deposit
Net cash flow from/ (used in) inves�ng ac�vi�es (B)
Cash flows from financing ac�vi�es
 Proceeds from equity (share warrant applica�on/Call money)
 Repayment of preference shares
 Interest paid
 (Repayment)/Proceeds of long term borrowings
 (Repayment)/Proceeds from short term borrowings
 Payment of lease liability
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing ac�vi�es (C)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Components of cash and cash equivalents
 Cash on hand
 Cheques on hand
 Balances with banks
 - in Current Account
 Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Total cash and cash equivalents

(` in lakhs)

 4,886.55 
 (76.51)

 4,810.04 

 6,318.03 
 (557.37)

 -   
 (260.64)

 (6.12)
 3,626.09 

 248.28 
 62.91 

 (31.03)
 14,210.19 

 2,063.58 
 (1,363.88)

 (440.76)
 195.92 
 (18.22)

 (1,647.27)
 1,112.79 

 26.57 
 (371.43)
 1,758.10 
 (926.86)

 14,598.73 
 (1,439.13)
 13,159.60 

 (12,517.19)
 (3,487.60)

 424.62 
 6.12 

 (881.76)
 115.90 

 (16,339.91)

 1,486.27 
 (0.30)

 (3,626.09)
 7,688.62 

 594.65 
 (388.11)
 5,755.04 
 2,574.72 

 672.23 
 3,246.95 

 2.24 
 -   

 557.83 
 2,686.88 
 3,246.95 

 6,479.18 
 (75.70)

 6,403.48 

 5,628.62 
 (523.88)

 23.00 
 110.68 
 (4.89)

 3,559.50 
 263.81 

 81.88 
 (37.62)

 15,504.57 

 775.92 
 (1,590.91)

 1,155.77 
 428.06 
 (4.18)

 1,607.95 
 (3,729.86)

 (25.36)
 825.77 

 (312.66)
 (550.86)

 14,084.22 
 (1,872.75)
 12,211.47 

 (15,708.16)
 -   

 416.96 
 4.89 

 (145.34)
 (3,343.33)

 (18,774.98)

 1,411.96 
 (2.63)

 (3,559.50)
 5,283.60 
 3,751.30 
 (368.72)
 6,516.01 

(47.50)
 719.73 
 672.23 

3.77 
 45.00 

 231.13 
 392.34 
 672.23 

Note :
The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in Ind AS-7 "Statement of Cash Flows"
Previous Year's figures have been regrouped /rearranged to confirm to the current year's presenta�on, wherever necessary.
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Statement of changes in equity  

a. Equity share capital Note Amount

(` in lakhs)

As at 31st Mar 2019
Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at 31st Mar 2020
Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at 31st Mar 2021

10 (a)

10 (a)

 9,669.13 
 508.68 

 10,177.81 
 535.45 

 10,713.26 

Balance at 31st March, 2019
Changes in equity for the period ended 31st, March 2020
Exercise of share warrants
Transfer from retained earnings
Transfer from OCI
lease assets
Profit for the year
Transfer to general reserve
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
Gains/(losses) on arising from actuarial gain/loss on gratuity
Transfer to retained earnings
Share warrant applica�on money received
Shares issued during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2020
Changes in equity for the period ended 31st, March 2021
Exercise of share warrants
Transfer from retained earnings
Transfer from OCI
Profit for the year
Transfer to general reserve
MAT credit en�tlement
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
Gains/(losses) on arising from actuarial gain/loss on gratuity
Transfer to retained earnings
Share warrant applica�on money received
Shares issued during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2021

b. Other Equity

Par�culars
Other 

reserve 
(see note 

10(b))
Notes

Securi�es 
premium 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Reserves and Surplus Items of Other 
Comprehensive income

FVOCI - 
equity 

instruments

OCI - 
Actuarial 

gain / loss 
on gratuity

Money 
received 
against 
share 

warrants

Total 
other 
equity

As per our a�ached report of even date
for K S RAO & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 003109S
                 Sd/-
(CA P.GOVARDHANA REDDY)
Partner  
Membership No.029193
Place: Hyderabad
Date :  3rd June,2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
CA K KARUNAKAR RAO

Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.) & CEO

Sd/-
N JESVANTH REDDY

Execu�ve Director  (Technical)

Sd/-
CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY

Company Secretary  

Sd/-
CA C. RAJESH KHANNA

Vice President (Fin. & Accts) & CFO

10(b)(i) 
10(b)(iii)
10(b)(iv) 
10(b)(iv) 
10(b)(iv) 
10(b)(iv) 
10(b)(v)
10(b)(v)
10(b)(v)
10(b)(v)
10(b)(v)

10(b)(i) 
10(b)(iii)
10(b)(iv) 
10(b)(iv) 
10(b)(iv) 

2(W) 
10(b)(v)
10(b)(v)
10(b)(v)
10(b)(v)
10(b)(v)

 4,513.04 

 1,373.93 
 -   
 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 5,886.97 

 1,446.25 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 7,333.22 

 8,446.10 

 -   
 -   

 (18.99)
 (156.29)
 4,727.45 

 (2,500.00)
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 10,498.27 

 -   
 -   

 23.11 
 2,895.24 

 (2,500.00)
 2,371.09 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 13,287.71 

 23,500.07 

 -   
 2,500.00 

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 26,000.07 

 -   
 2,500.00 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 28,500.07 

 810.31 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

 (212.22)
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 598.09 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 588.81 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 1,186.90 

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   

 -   
 (18.99)

 18.99 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 23.11 
 (23.11)

 -   
 -   
 -   

 966.08 

 -   
 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 1,411.96 
 (1,882.62)

 495.42 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 1,486.27 
 (1,981.69)

 0.00 

 38,235.60 

 1,373.93 
 2,500.00 

 (18.99)
 (156.29)
 4,727.45 

 (2,500.00)
 (212.22)

 (18.99)
 18.99 

 1,411.96 
 (1,882.62)
 43,478.82

 1,446.25 
 2,500.00 

 23.11 
 2,895.24 

 (2,500.00)
 2,371.09 

 588.81 
 23.11 

 (23.11)
 1,486.27 

 (1,981.69)
 50,307.90 
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Note 1: General Informa�on

TGV SRAAC LIMITED (formerly known as Sree Rayalaseema Alkalies and Allied Chemicals Limited) 
incorporated on 24th June, 1981 is the flagship company of the TGV Group. It is the leading producer of Chlor-
Alkali products, Chloromethane and also manufactures Castor Deriva�ves and Fa�y Acids.

The Company is a public limited company domiciled in India. The equity shares of the Company are listed on 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Director’s on 3rd June, 2021.

Note 2: Significant Accoun�ng Policies

A. Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS) as 
no�fied under the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017, 
Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019.

B. Basis of prepara�on and presenta�on of financial statements

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accoun�ng 
Principles on accrual basis of accoun�ng and the historical cost conven�on basis except for certain financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each repor�ng period, as explained in the 
accoun�ng policies below.

C. Current versus non-current classifica�on

 The Company presents assets and liabili�es in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classifica�on. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Ÿ  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal opera�ng cycle
Ÿ  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Ÿ  Expected to be realised within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period, or
Ÿ  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to se�le a liability for at least twelve 

months a�er the repor�ng period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
Ÿ It is expected to be se�led in normal opera�ng cycle
Ÿ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
Ÿ It is due to be se�led within twelve months a�er the repor�ng period, or

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021  
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Ÿ There is no uncondi�onal right to defer the se�lement of the liability for at least twelve months a�er the 
repor�ng period

D. Use of es�mates and judgements

The prepara�on of the financial statements requires that the Management to make es�mates and assump�ons 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es, disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es as at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the repor�ng period. The 
recogni�on, measurement, classifica�on or disclosure of an item or informa�on in the financial statements is 
made relying on these es�mates.

The es�mates and judgements used in the prepara�on of the financial statements are con�nuously evaluated 
by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assump�ons and factors (including 
expecta�ons of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the exis�ng circumstances. 
Actual results could differ from those es�mates.

Any revision to accoun�ng es�mates is recognised prospec�vely in current and future periods. The cri�cal 
accoun�ng judgements and key es�mates followed by the Company for prepara�on of financial statements is 
described in Note 2(W).

E. Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land is carried at historical cost. Other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated deprecia�on. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on of 
the items.

Advances paid towards the acquisi�on of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet 
date is classified as capital advances under Other Non-Current Assets and the cost of the assets not put to use 
before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures rela�ng to property, 
plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these 
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are 
recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated 
deprecia�on are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or re�rement of the asset and the resultant 
gains or losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the 
lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell. 

F. Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their es�mated useful lives as specified in 
Schedule II to the Companies act, 2013 using the straight-line method in respect of plant and machinery and 
buildings and in respect of other assets on wri�en down value method. 

Deprecia�on is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and proper�es under 
construc�on) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. 

The es�mated useful lives, residual values and deprecia�on method are reviewed at the end of each repor�ng 
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period, with the effect of any changes in es�mate accounted for on a prospec�ve basis. The useful life as 
prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act have been followed except in respect of the following 
categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, 
taking into account the nature of the asset, the es�mated usage of the asset, the opera�ng condi�on of the 
asset, past history of replacement, an�cipated technological changes, manufacturers warran�es and 
maintenance support, etc:
Ÿ Con�nuous process plant – 18 years
Ÿ Thermal power plant – 13 years
Ÿ  Chlorine cylinders – 5 years
Ÿ Membranes – 5 years
Ÿ Soap plant – 15years

G. Investment proper�es

Investment proper�es are measured ini�ally at cost, including transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al 
recogni�on, investment proper�es are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia�on and accumulated 
impairment loss, if any.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of 
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evalua�on of the 
technical experts.

Investment proper�es are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of 
derecogni�on.

H. Non-current assets held for sale/ distribu�on to owners and discon�nued opera�ons

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/ distribu�on to owners if their 
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale/ distribu�on rather than through con�nuing use. 
Ac�ons required to complete the sale/ distribu�on should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to 
the sale/ distribu�on will be made or that the decision to sell/ distribute will be withdrawn. Management must 
be commi�ed to the sale/distribu�on expected within one year from the date of classifica�on.

For these purposes, sale transac�ons include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets 
when the exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale/ distribu�on classifica�on is 
regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available for immediate sale/ distribu�on in its present 
condi�on, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales/distribu�on of such assets (or disposal 
groups), its sale/ distribu�on is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company 
treats sale/ distribu�on of the asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

Ÿ The appropriate level of management is commi�ed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),
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Ÿ An ac�ve programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been ini�ated,
Ÿ The asset (or disposal group) is being ac�vely marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in rela�on to its 

current fair value,
Ÿ The sale is expected to qualify for recogni�on as a completed sale within one year from the date of 

classifica�on and
Ÿ Ac�ons required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be 

made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale/for distribu�on to owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower of 
their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell/ distribute. Assets and liabili�es classified as held for 
sale/distribu�on are presented separately in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/ distribu�on to owners are 
not depreciated or amor�sed.

A disposal group qualifies as discon�nued opera�on if it is a component of an en�ty that either has been 
disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:
Ÿ Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of opera�ons,
Ÿ Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of 

opera�ons
Ÿ Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discon�nued opera�ons are excluded from the results of con�nuing opera�ons and are presented as a single 
amount as profit or loss a�er tax from discon�nued opera�ons in the statement of profit and loss.

Addi�onal disclosures are provided in Note 32. All other notes to the financial statements mainly include 
amounts for con�nuing opera�ons, unless otherwise men�oned.

I. Impairment of Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment tes�ng, the 
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an 
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets. 

In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash genera�ng unit to which the asset belongs. If 
such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and 
is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the es�mated recoverable amount 
of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss if there has been a change in the 
es�mates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its 
revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined (net of any accumulated amor�za�on or deprecia�on) had no impairment loss been 
recognized for the asset in prior years.
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J. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one en�ty and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another en�ty.

• Financial assets

Ini�al recogni�on and measurement

All financial assets are recognised ini�ally at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transac�on costs that are a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

Ÿ Financial assets at amor�sed cost

Ÿ Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at amor�sed cost

A ‘Financial asset’ is measured at the amor�sed cost if both the following condi�ons are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold assets for collec�ng contractual cash 
flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. A�er ini�al measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve interest rate (EIR) method. Amor�sed cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisi�on and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amor�sa�on is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade receivables. For more 
informa�on on receivables, refer to Note 8.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for 
trading and con�ngent considera�on recognised by an acquirer in a business combina�on to which Ind AS103 
applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable 
elec�on to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.

The Company makes such elec�on on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classifica�on is made on ini�al 
recogni�on and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 
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P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumula�ve gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the P&L.

Derecogni�on

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) 
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obliga�on to pay 
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and 
either

(a)  the Company has transferred substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

(b)  the Company has neither transferred nor retained substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset but has 
transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets 
which are not fair valued through profit or loss.

The Company follows “Simplified approach” for recogni�on of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. 

The applica�on of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on life�me ECLs at each repor�ng date, right from its ini�al 
recogni�on.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, 
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from ini�al recogni�on in which case those are 
measured at life�me ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the repor�ng date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment 
gain or loss in profit or loss.

As a prac�cal expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on 
por�olio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the 
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking es�mates. At every repor�ng date, the 
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking es�mates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in 
the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L.

78

TGV SRAAC LIMITED



• Financial liabili�es

Ini�al recogni�on and measurement

All financial liabili�es are recognised ini�ally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly a�ributable transac�on costs.

The Company’s financial liabili�es include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdra�s.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabili�es depends on their classifica�on, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. A�er ini�al recogni�on, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabili�es are derecognised as well as through the EIR amor�sa�on 
process.

Amor�sed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisi�on and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amor�sa�on is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. 

Derecogni�on

A financial liability is derecognised when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an exis�ng financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substan�ally different terms, 
or the terms of an exis�ng liability are substan�ally modified, such an exchange or modifica�on is treated as the 
derecogni�on of the original liability and the recogni�on of a new liability. The difference in the respec�ve 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

K. Investment in associates

An associate is an en�ty over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to 
par�cipate in the financial and opera�ng policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over 
those policies.

Such investments in which the Company has no significant influence are accounted under Ind AS 109 at fair 
value and the Company may make an irrevocable elec�on to present in other comprehensive income 
subsequent changes in the fair value. 

The Company makes such elec�on on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classifica�on is made on ini�al 
recogni�on and is irrevocable.
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If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumula�ve gain or loss within equity.

L. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value a�er providing for obsolescence. Costs of 
inventories are determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents the es�mated selling 
price for inventories less all es�mated costs of comple�on and costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of 
inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing 
overheads incurred in bringing them to their respec�ve present loca�on and condi�on.

M. Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

N. Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

• Current Tax: 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘Profit Before Tax’ as 
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deduc�ble in other years and items that are never taxable or deduc�ble. The Company’s current tax is 
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the end of the repor�ng period.

• Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabili�es in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computa�on of taxable profit. Deferred 
tax liabili�es are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deduc�ble temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deduc�ble temporary differences can be 
u�lised. Such deferred tax assets and liabili�es are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the 
ini�al recogni�on (other than in a business combina�on) of assets and liabili�es in a transac�on that affects 
neither the taxable profit nor the accoun�ng profit. In addi�on, deferred tax liabili�es are not recognised if the 
temporary difference arises from the ini�al recogni�on of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each repor�ng period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset 
to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabili�es and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which 
the liability is se�led or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
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substan�vely enacted by the end of the repor�ng period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabili�es and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the repor�ng period, to recover or se�le the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabili�es.

• Current and Deferred Tax for the Year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in 
Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity respec�vely.

O. Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the 
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all a�ached condi�ons.

Grants related to revenue items are presented as part of profit or loss under general heading such as other 
income or they are deducted in repor�ng the related expenses. Government grants rela�ng to the purchase of 
property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabili�es as deferred income and are credited to 
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other 
income.

Government grants that are receivable as compensa�on for expenses or losses already incurred or for the 
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the company with no future related costs are recognized in 
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant, measured 
as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest 
rates.

P. Provisions, Con�ngent liabili�es and Commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to se�le the obliga�on, and a reliable es�mate can be 
made of the amount of the obliga�on.

If the effect of the �me value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Con�ngent liability is disclosed in the case of;

• A present obliga�on arising from past events, when it is not probable that an ou�low of resources will not be 
required to se�le the obliga�on.

• A present obliga�on arising from past events, when no reliable es�mate is possible

• A possible obliga�on arising from past events, unless the probability of ou�low of resources is remote
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Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to par�es for comple�on of 
assets. Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es, con�ngent assets and commitments are reviewed at each repor�ng 
period.

Con�ngent asset

Wherever there is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
en�ty. A con�ngent asset is disclosed when the inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Q. Revenue Recogni�on

Effec�ve 1st April, 2018 the Company has applied Ind AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers which 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be 
recognised.

Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue. The impact of the adop�on of the standard on the financial statements 
of the Company is insignificant.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the products being sold is transferred to our customer 
and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obliga�ons.

The Performance Obliga�ons in our contracts are fulfilled at the �me of dispatch, delivery or upon formal 
customer acceptance depending on customer terms.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the considera�on received or receivable, a�er deduc�on of any trade 
discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or du�es collected on behalf of the government such as goods and 
services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to es�mate the provision for such discounts and rebates.

Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not occur.

Our customers have the contractual right to return goods only when authorised by the Company. An es�mate is 
made of goods that will be returned and a liability is recognised for this amount using a best es�mate based on 
accumulated experience.

Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements with the customers as the 
service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obliga�ons.

Interest income is recognized using the effec�ve interest rate (EIR) method.

Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

R. Leases 

Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ was no�fied on 30th March, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 ‘Leases’, including appendices 
thereto. Ind AS 116 is effec�ve for annual periods beginning on or a�er 1st April, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the 
principles for the recogni�on, measurement, presenta�on and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to 
account for all leases under a single on-Balance Sheet model similar to the accoun�ng for finance leases under 
Ind AS 17.
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The standard includes two recogni�on exemp�ons for lessees – leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal 
computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement 
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset 
represen�ng the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will 
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the deprecia�on expense on 
the right-of-use asset.

Lease is ‘a contract or part of a contract that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period 
of �me in exchange for considera�on’. An underlying asset has been defined to mean an asset that is the subject 
of lease, for which the right to use that asset has been provided by a lessor or lessee.

Measurement of lease liability

On the date of transi�on lease liability is measured at present value of lease payments that are not paid as at the 
date of transi�on. 

A�er the transi�on date lease liability is measured at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve interest method.

Subsequently the company measures the lease liability by increasing the carrying the amount to reflect the 
interest on the lease liability; reducing the carrying amount of reflect the lease payments made; and re-
measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifica�ons or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments.

The Company uses the incremental borrowing rate which is the rate of interest that a lessee would have to pay 
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value of the 
right-to-use asset in a similar economic environment.

Right-of-use asset (ROU)

This is measured as lease liability adding any ini�al direct costs, prepaid lease payments, cost to dismantle or 
restore less lease incen�ves.

A�er the commencement date, the Company measures the ROU at cost:

• Less any accumulated deprecia�on and any accumulate impairment losses; and 

• Adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability on subsequent to lease commencement date

A Company applies the deprecia�on requirement in Ind AS 16 while deprecia�ng ROU asset. The said asset is 
depreciated over a period of lease term unless in case where ownership of underlying asset is transferred. In 
such case, the asset is depreciated over the useful life of underlying asset. Also, impairment requirements as per 
Ind AS 36 is applied by the Company.
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S. Foreign Currencies

(i)  Func�onal Currency:

 The func�onal currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented in 
Indian rupees (rounded off to lakhs).

(ii)  Transac�ons and transla�ons:

 In preparing the financial statements, transac�ons in currencies other than the Company’s func�onal 
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the 
transac�ons. At the end of each repor�ng period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

 Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

 Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise 
except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings rela�ng to assets under construc�on for 
future produc�ve use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an 
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

T. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc�on of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substan�al period of �me to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added 
to the cost of those assets, un�l such �me as the assets are substan�ally ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connec�on with the borrowing of 
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs.

U. Employee Benefits

Short term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of Bonus, Ex-gra�a, Leave 
Travel Allowance, Reimbursement of Medical Expenses, Personal Accident Policy, Deposit Linked Insurance 
Policy are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

Post-Employment Benefits:

(i)  Defined Contribu�on Plan:
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 The Company’s contribu�on paid / payable during the year to Provident Fund, Superannua�on Fund and 
other welfare funds are considered as defined contribu�on plans.

 The Contribu�on paid / payable under these plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during 
the period in which the employee renders the services. 

(ii)  Defined Benefit Plans:

 The Gratuity Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corpora�on of India through a Trust is considered as 
defined benefit plan. The present value of the obliga�on is determined based on actuarial valua�on using 
the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

 The fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obliga�on under the defined benefit plan to 
recognise the obliga�on on net basis.

 Gains or losses on the curtailment or se�lement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the 
curtailment or se�lement occurs.

(iii) Long term Employee Benefits:

 The obliga�on for long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences, long service 
awards, etc. is recognised in the same manner as in the case of defined benefit plans as men�oned in (b) (ii) 
above except that the actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

V. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit or loss a�ributable to equity shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The Company has 
made preferen�al allotment of Share Warrants conver�ble into equity shares. The warrants that are yet to be 
converted are treated as dilu�ve shares.

Es�mates and assump�ons 

The prepara�on of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, es�mates 
and assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabili�es, and the 
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es. 

Uncertainty about these assump�ons and es�mates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabili�es affected in future periods.

Revenue recogni�on: 

The Company applies judgement to determine whether each product or services promised to a customer are 
capable of being dis�nct, and are dis�nct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised product or services 
are combined and accounted as a single performance obliga�on. The Company allocates the arrangement 
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considera�on to separately iden�fiable performance obliga�on deliverables based on their rela�ve stand-
alone selling price. Because the financial repor�ng of these contracts depends on es�mates that are assessed 
con�nually during the term of these contracts, recognized revenue and profit are subject to revisions as the 
contract progresses to comple�on.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment:

The Company reviews the useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment at the end of each 
repor�ng period. This reassessment may result in change in deprecia�on expense in future periods. 

Allowance for expected credit losses:

Note 2(J) describes the use of prac�cal expedient by compu�ng the expected credit loss allowance for trade 
receivables based on provision matrix. The expected credit allowance is based on the aging of the days 
receivables which are past due and the rates derived based on past history of defaults in the provision matrix.

Fair value of investments:

The Company has invested in the equity instruments of various companies. However, the percentage of 
shareholding of the Company in such investee companies is very low and hence, it has not been provided with 
future projec�ons including projected profit and loss account by those investee companies. Hence, the 
valua�on exercise carried out by the Company with the help of available historical annual reports and other 
informa�on in the public domain. 

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the losses can be u�lised. Significant management judgement is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely �ming and the level 
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Con�ngent liability judgement:

Note 27 describes claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt. Con�ngencies may arise from the 
ordinary course of business in rela�on to claims against the Company, including legal, contractor and other 
claims. By their nature, con�ngencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or 
fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and poten�al quantum of con�ngencies inherently involve the 
exercise of significant judgement and the use of es�mates regarding the outcome of future events.

W.  Change in accoun�ng policy:

During the previous years the Company has not recognised minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit as deferred tax 
asset as it was not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the MAT credit will be 
u�lised.

For the year ended 31st March, 2021 the Company has recognised the unused brought forward MAT credit 
pertaining to previous years, as deferred tax asset to the extent it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
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available against which the MAT credit will be u�lised. 

As it is a change in accoun�ng policy and imprac�cable to determine the period of specific effects, the Company 
has resorted to increase opening retained earnings by Rs. 2,371.09 Lakhs and correspondingly decrease 
deferred tax liability by Rs.2,371.09 Lakhs (net of deferred tax asset) as per Ind AS 12- Income taxes and Ind AS 8 
Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and Errors. 

Current Tax expense for the quarter/year ended 31st March, 2021 has been recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss a�er u�lising MAT credit of Rs.98 Lakhs.

X. COVID-19 impact:

The outbreak of COVID 19 pandemic across the globe and in lndia has contributed to a significant decline and 
vola�lity in the gobal and Indian markets and slowdown in the economic ac�vi�es. 

The management in this regard, has carefully considered the circumstances and risk exposures arising from the 
COVID 19 situa�on for developing es�mates on the basis of all available informa�on in its assessment of impact 
thereof on its financial repor�ng.

The extent to which the COVID 19 pandemic will impact the Company's future results will depend on 
developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new informa�on concerning the 
severity of the COVID 19 pandemic and any ac�on to contain its spread or mi�gate its impact by the 
government. 

The Company will con�nue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic condi�ons.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021  

Note 4: Investment property

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Addi�ons
Closing gross carrying amount
Accumulated deprecia�on
Opening accumulated deprecia�on
Deprecia�on charge
Closing accumulated deprecia�on
Net carrying amount

 7.05 
 -   

 7.05 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 7.05 

 7.05 
 -   

 7.05 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 7.05 

Fair value  As at 31st March,  2021  As at 31st March,  2020

Investment proper�es 52.15 52.15

Es�ma�on of fair value  

The Company obtains independent valua�ons for its investment proper�es at least annually. The best evidence of fair 
value is current prices in an ac�ve market for similar proper�es. Where such informa�on is not available, the 
Company considers informa�on from a variety of sources including:  

Current prices in an ac�ve market for proper�es of different nature or recent prices of similar proper�es in less ac�ve 
markets, adjusted to reflect those differences  

The main input used is the price per square metre as per state government's registra�on and stamps department rate 
for the property. All resul�ng fair value es�mates for investment proper�es are included in level 2.  

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Investment in Other Companies
Investment in equity instruments at fair value 
through other comprehensive income (fully paid)
Quoted
2,44,749(March 31, 2020: 2,44,749) equity shares of 
Sree Rayalaseema Hi-Strength Hypo Ltd
839(March 31, 2020: 839) equity shares of Indian Bank
Unquoted
"98,62,400(March 31, 2020: 13,93,600) equity shares of 
Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd 
(13,93,600 shares pledged with financial ins�tu�ons)"
Total equity investments

 578.46 

 0.98 

 8,280.00 
 8,859.44 

Note 5: Financial assets

5 (a) Non-current Investments
(` in lakhs)

 176.83 

 0.36 

 590.19 
 767.38 
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Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Investment in government securi�es carried at amor�sed cost
Unquoted
Na�onal Saving Cer�ficates
Total non-current investments
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of un-quoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

 1.90 
 8,861.34 

 579.44 
 8,281.90 

 -   

 1.90 
 769.28 
 177.19 
 592.09 

 -   

(` in lakhs)

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Security Deposits with Power Distribu�on Corpora�on Ltd
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity
Rent advance
Total

5(b) Other non-current financial assets
(` in lakhs)

 899.84 
 16.91 

 7.35 
 924.10 

 2,658.36 
 422.42 

 6.93 
 3,087.71 

Par�culars

Par�culars

 As at 31st March, 2021 

 As at 31st March, 2021 

 As at 31st March, 2020

 As at 31st March, 2020

Capital Advances
Amount paid under protest
Advances to related par�es
Total

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stores and spares, Chemicals, fuel and packing materials 
Scrap and other disposals
Goods in transit
Raw materials
Stores and spares
Total

Note 6: Other non-current assets

Note 7: Inventories

(` in lakhs)

(` in lakhs)

 939.39 
 5.00 

 1,214.40 
 2,158.79 

 3,425.95 
 650.54 

 1,021.89 
 5,047.88 

 56.96 

 544.30 
 860.04 

 11,607.56 

 1,226.72 
 5.21 

 -   
 1,231.93 

 1,793.09 
 459.51 

 1,410.62 
 4,933.40 

 17.78 

 432.80 
 3,673.14 

 12,720.34 
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Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Unsecured-considered good*
Unsecured-considered doub�ul
Less: Bad debts wri�en off

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and
doub�ul debts a�er write off of bad debts)**
Total trade receivables

Note 8 (a): Trade receivables
(` in lakhs)

 9,918.63 
 120.00 
 (27.43)

 10,011.20 

 (92.57)
 9,918.63 

 8,269.92 
 120.00 

 -   
 8,389.92 

 (120.00)
 8,269.92 

(*Refer note 30(b) for related party trade receivables).  

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with 
any other person.  

No interest is charged on Trade Receivables for delay in payment beyond credit period from the due date of the 
Invoice.  

The Company has used a prac�cal expedient by compu�ng the expected credit loss allowance for Trade Receivables 
based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for 
forward looking informa�on. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are 
due and the rates are given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the Repor�ng Period is as 
follows :  

Aging:  As at 31st March, 2021 

With credit period
Upto 60 days past due
61-90 days past due
91-180 days past due
more than 180 days past due

0.25% 
0.50% 
1.00% 
5.00% 

10.00% 

Aging of receivables

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

With credit period
Upto 60 days past due
61-90 days past due
91-180 days past due
more than 180 days past due
Total trade receivables (before impairment allowance)

(` in lakhs)

 5,943.28 
 3,253.70 

 489.83 
 220.39 
 104.00 

 10,011.20 

 4,021.51 
 2,661.02 
 1,042.28 

 557.52 
 107.59 

 8,389.92 
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Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 
"Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance on trade r
eceivablescalculated at life�me expected credit losses"
Balance at the end of the year

Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance(ECL) :
(` in lakhs)

 120.00 

 (27.43)
 92.57 

 97.00 

 23.00 
 120.00 

**The allowance for expected credit losses for the year includes addi�onal provision for doub�ul debts apart 
from provision made based on above matrix. 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Balances with banks in current account
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cheques on hand
Cash on hand
Total

(` in lakhs)

 557.83 
 2,686.88 

 -   
 2.24 

 3,246.95 

 231.13 
 392.34 

 45.00 
 3.77 

 672.24 

Note 8 (b): Cash and cash equivalents

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Deposits with maturity of more than three months but less than 
12 months
Margin money with banks
LC-Margin deposit with bank
Total

(` in lakhs)

 3,088.34 
 4,306.08 

 0.06 
 7,394.48 

Note 8 (c): Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

 1,801.06 
 4,421.95 

 0.09 
 6,223.10 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Tender/Security/Telephone Deposits
Sales tax, Power and export Incen�ves Receivable
Interest receivable on deposits
Advances to related par�es
Deriva�ve asset
Total

(` in lakhs)
Note 8 (d): Other financial assets

 77.98 
 8,854.03 

 339.92 
 207.09 

 -   
 9,479.02 

 129.17 
 8,796.94 

 207.17 
 207.75 

 31.80 
 9,372.83 

92

TGV SRAAC LIMITED



Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Advances to related par�es
Advance to Suppliers
Advance to Employees
Advance to Contractors & Transporters
Prepaid Insurance and other Expenses
Advance Excise Du�es/CENVAT/VAT/Service tax 
Security deposit adjustable against power charges
Other Advances
Total

Note 9: Other current assets
(` in lakhs)

 8.64 
 893.75 

 90.37 
 56.51 

 314.85 
 29.46 

 345.32 
 52.99 

 1,791.89 

 58.56 
 701.03 

 94.36 
 29.14 

 398.52 
 29.28 

 -   
 109.57 

 1,420.46 

Break up of financial assets carried at amor�sed cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income    

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Financial assets carried at amor�sed cost
 - Trade receivables
 - Cash and cash equivalents
 - Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
 - Investments in government securi�es
 - Other financial assets
                                                                                           (A)

(` in lakhs)

 -   
 -   
 -   

 1.90 
 924.10 
 926.00 

Non-Current
 As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Current

 -   
 -   
 -   

 1.90 
 3,087.71 
 3,089.61 

 9,918.63 
 3,246.95 
 7,394.48 

 -   
 9,479.02 

 30,039.08

 8,269.92 
 672.24 

 6,223.10 
 -   

 9,372.83 
 24,538.09 

Financial assets carried at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 
 - Investments 8,859.44

8,859.44
767.38 
767.38 (B)

Total financial assets                                                 (A+B) 9,785.44 3,856.99 30,039.08 24,538.09 
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Par�culars  As at 31st
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

(a) Authorised Share Capital :
13,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(as at 31st march 2020- 11,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
NIL Cumula�ve Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each
(as at 31st march 2020- 1,90,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each)
(b) Issued:
 10,72,69,886 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each issued 
(as at 31st march 2020- 10,19,15,396 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
(c) Subscribed and fully paid
10,70,89,800 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid
(as at 31st march 2020-10,17,35,310 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
(d) Subscribed & Not Fully Paid (forefeited)
1,80,086 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
(as at 31st march 2020- 1,80,086 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each)
 Total 

Note 10: Equity share capital and other equity

10 (a) Equity share capital

 13,000.00 

 -   

 10,726.99 

 10,708.98 

 4.28 

 10,713.26 

 11,100.00 

 1,900.00 

 10,191.54 

 10,173.53 

 4.28 

 10,177.81 

Reconcilia�on of the number of equity shares outstanding

Par�culars  As at 31st
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

At the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Less: Bought back during the year
 At the end of the year 

(Shares in Numbers)

 10,17,35,310 
 53,54,490 

 10,70,89,800 

 9,66,48,545 
 50,86,765 

 -   
 10,17,35,310 

Terms/ rights a�ached to equity shares    

"The company has only one class of equity shares having face value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is en�tled to one vote per share.  In the event of liquida�on of the company, the holders of equity shares 
will be en�tled to receive remaining assets of the company, a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al amounts. The 
distribu�on will be in propor�on to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders."    
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Name of the shareholder  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020

Sree Rayalaseema Hi-Strength Hypo Limited
TGV Project & Investaments Private Limited
Brilliant Industries Private Limited
Sri T G Venkatesh
Total

Note 10 (a) Equity share capital 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company 

No of shares % of holding No of shares % of holding

 2,05,44,496 
 1,16,94,248 
 2,65,14,230 

 53,90,613 
 6,41,43,587 

19.18%
10.92%
24.76%

5.03%
59.89%

20.19%
11.49%
20.80%

5.30%
57.78%

 2,05,44,496 
 1,16,94,248 
 2,11,59,740 

 53,90,613 
 5,87,89,097 

As per records of the Company including its register of share holders/members and other declara�ons received from 
share holders regarding benificial interest, the above share holding represents legal ownership of shares as at balance 
sheet date.    

Out of Equity shares issued, subscribed and fully paid up 2,86,10,955 No. of equity shares of Rs.10/-each alloted on 
preferen�al allotment to Financial Ins�tu�ons IDBI/IFCI by conver�on of 15% Rupee/F.C loans and Debentures on 
8th March, 2005.The company has alloted 1,45,80,000 number of equity shares of Rs.10/- each on 8th March, 2005 
and 54,20,000 on 25th April, 2006 to promotors group on preferen�al allotment by conversion of 2,00,00,000 fully 
paid share warrants issued on 8th March, 2005.    

The Company has alloted 39,36,042 number of equity shares of Rs.10/- each on 5th April, 2014 and 37,39,240 
number of Equity shares on 27th April, 2013 and 35,52,278 number of Equity Share on 10th Dec, 2012 to promotors 
group by conversion of 1,12,27,560 ShareWarrants alloted on 19th Nov, 2012 on preferen�al basis.    

The Company has  alloted 45,90,805 equity shares of Rs,10/- each on 08th July, 2017,  43,61,265 number of equity 
share of Rs.10/- on 27th Jan, 2017 and 41,43,202 number of equity share of Rs.10/-each on 29th Jan, 2016 at a 
premium of Rs.7.02 to promotors group by conversion of 1,30,95,272 share warrants alloted on 13th Jan, 2016 on 
preferen�al basis.    

The Company has  alloted 48,32,427 equity shares of Rs,10/- each on 14th March,2019 at a premium of Rs.27.01 to 
promotors group by conversion out of 1,52,73,682 share warrants alloted on 27th January, 2019 on preferen�al basis.    

The Company has alloted 50,86,765 equity shares of Rs,10/- each on 14th March,2020 at a premium of Rs.27.01 to 
promotors group by conversion out of 1,52,73,682 share warrants alloted on 27th January, 2019 on preferen�al basis.    

During the year the Company has  alloted 53,54,490 equity shares of Rs,10/- each on 20th May, 2020 at a premium of 
Rs.27.01 to promotors group by conversion out of 1,52,73,682 share warrants alloted on 27th January, 2019 on 
preferen�al basis.    
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Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

(i) Share premium
(ii) General reserve
(iii) Retained earnings
(iv) Reserve for other comprehensive income items
(v) Money received against share warrants
Total

10 (b) Other Equity
(` in lakhs)

 7,333.22 
 28,500.07 
 13,287.71 

 1,186.90 
 -   

 50,307.90 

 5,886.97 
 26,000.07 
 10,498.27 

 598.09 
 495.42 

 43,478.82 

Reserves and Surplus

(i) Share premium

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Opening balance
Issue of equity shares by exercise of share warrants
Closing balance

(` in lakhs)

 5,886.97 
 1,446.25 
 7,333.22 

 4,513.04 
 1,373.93 
 5,886.97 

(ii) General Reserve

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Opening balance
Transfer from Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
Closing balance

(` in lakhs)

 26,000.07 
 2,500.00 

 28,500.07 

 23,500.07 
 2,500.00 

 26,000.07 

(iii) Retained earnings

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Opening balance
MAT credit en�tlement (refer note 2(W))
Lease assets
Net profit for the period
Transfer to General Reserve
Transfer from Reserve for other comprehensive Income
Closing balance

(` in lakhs)

 10,498.27 
 2,371.09 

 -   
 2,895.24 

 (2,500.00)
 23.11 

 13,287.71 

 8,446.10 
 -   

 (156.29)
 4,727.45 

 (2,500.00)
 (18.99)

 10,498.27 
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Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Change in fair value of FVOCI - equity instruments (Net of taxes)
 - Opening balance 
 - Net gains/(losses) on FVTOCI equity securi�es during the year 
 - Closing balance 
" Other Comprehensive income arising from actuarial gain/loss 
on defined benefit obliga�on (Net of taxes) "
 - Opening balance 
 - Gains/(losses) on arising from actuarial gain/loss on gratuity 
 - Transfer to retained earnings 
 - Closing balance 
 Total Closing balance 

(iv) Reserve for items of Other Comprehensive income
(` in lakhs)

 598.09 
 588.81 

 1,186.90 

 -   
 23.11 

 (23.11)
 -   

 1,186.90 

 810.31 
 (212.22)

 598.09 

 
-   

 (18.99)
 18.99 

 -   
 598.09 

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

 Opening balance 
 Share warrant applica�on money received 
 Shares issued during the year 
 Closing balance 

(v) Money received against share warrants
(` in lakhs)

 495.42 
 1,486.27 

 (1,981.69) 
 -   

 966.08 
 1,411.96 

 (1,882.62)
 495.42 

Nature and purpose of  reserves  

Securi�es premium reserve  

Securi�es premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is u�lised in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act.  

Fair value of Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)  

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securi�es in other 
comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI equity investments reserve within equity. 
The Comapany transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securi�es are 
derecognised.  

General Reserve  

The General Reserve is used from �me to �me to transfer profits from Retained Earnings for appropria�on purpose. 
As General Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of Equity to another and is not an item of other 
comprehensive income, items included in the General reserve will not be reclasified subsequently to profit or loss.  
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Note 11 (a): Long Term Borrowings

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March,2021 

 As at 31st 
March,2020

 Non-current borrowings 
 Secured 
 Term Loans 
 From ins�tu�ons 
 IFCI Ltd* 
 From Banks ** 
 Working capital Term Loans 
 From banks*** 
  LC payable to banks for capital good recieved 

 UnSecured 
" Deferred Payment liabili�es (Sales Tax deferrment/loan sanc�oned as per 
State Incen�ve Schemes) (Repayable from the year 2018-19 to 2023-24) "

 Total 

(` in lakhs)

 187.07 
 4,900.83 

4,843.31 
 15,103.59 
 25,034.80 

 292.67 

 292.67 
 25,327.47 

 1,308.89 
 -

   
 3,217.43 

 12,684.71 
 17,211.03 

 435.35 

 435.35 
 17,646.38 

Terms of repayment  
"*IFCI Ltd. Corporate Term Loan (Rs. 10000 Lakhs Loan is repayable in 48 monthly Instalments from Oct, 2016 and Rs. 4500 Lakhs loan 
is repayable in 48 monthly Instalments from December, 2017 and both loans carries interest rate of Base rate + 1.50%p.a).
** Indian Bank Term Loan (Rs. 10000 Lakhs sanc�oned for Chloromethanes expansion is repayable in 20 quarterly instalment from 
June 2022 at interest rate of 1 Year MCLR+0.70%) but disbursement is made for Rs. 5000 Lakhs."  
"***Working Capital term loans availed from IDBI Bank Ltd. (Rs. 629 lakhs repayable in 36 monthly instalments from April, 2015 and 
Rs.1571 Lakhs loan repayable in 20 Quarterly instalments from October, 2015 and both loans carries interest rate of Base rate + 
3.80%p.a), 
Punjab Na�ona Bank (earlier United Bank of India) (Rs. 479 lakhs repayable in 36 monthly instalments from July, 2015 and Rs. 1198 
lakhs repayable in 20 quarterly instalments from January, 2016 and both loans carries interest rate of Base rate + 4.50%p.a), 
The Federal Bank Ltd. (Rs. 122 lakhs repayable in 36 monthly instalments from August, 2015 and Rs. 305 lakhs repayable in 20 
quarterly instalments from April, 2016 and both loans carries interest rate of Base rate + 3.80%p.a) and 
The Indian Bank (Rs. 5000 lakhs repayable in 60 monthly instalments from Febuary, 2019 at interest rate of MCLR 1year + Spread 
3.15%p.a)."  
"COVID working capital term loans availed from Indian Bank Rs 867 lakhs is repayable in 30 monthly instalments star�ng from April 
2021 at interest rate of 1 Year MCLR., South Indian Bank Limited Rs. 75 lakhs is repayable in 12 monthly instalments star�ng from Dec 
2020 at interest rate of MCLR +1.85. GECLs working capital term loans availed from Indian Bank Rs. 953 lakhs are repayable in 48 
monthly instalments star�ng from Feb 2022 at interest rate of 1 Year MCLR+1%, IDBI Bank Ltd. Rs. 957  lakhs is repayable in 48 
monthly instalments star�ng from Jan 2022 at interest rate of MCLR + 1%, Punjab Na�onal Bank Rs. 225  lakhs is repayable in 48 
monthly instalments star�ng from Jan 2022 at interest rate of MCLR +1%, and South Indian Bank Limited Rs. 86  lakhs is repayable in 
48 monthly instalments star�ng from March 22 at interest rate of MCLR +1%."  
Security  
Term loans : "The above Corporate Term Loan from IFCI Ltd is secured by first pari passu charge on immovable / movable assets of the 
company both present and future (excluding the project assets of Chloromethanes Project which are exclusively charged to Banks) 

There is no default as at 31st March, 2021 and 31st March 2020, in repayment of loans and interest payments on Term Loans.  
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and further guaranteed by Shri.T.G.Venkatesh.The above Term Loan from Banks i.e., Indian Bank is secured by first pari passu charge 
on all fixed assets of the company including fixed assets of Chlorometahnes expansion project (excluding specific LC charges). "  
Working capital Term loans : "The above Working capital term loans from banks by IDBI Bank Ltd., The Federal Bank Ltd. and Punjab 
Na�onal Bank  are secured by first pari passu charge on current assets i.e., specific lien on incen�ves and first pari passu charge on 
en�re fixed assets of the company excluding assets pertaining to Chloromethanes Project, Fa�y Acid & Potassium Hydroxide Plant 
and personal guarantee of Shri. T.G.Venkatesh.For Indian Bank working capital term loan pari passu first charge on exis�ng fixed 
assets of the Company and specific lien on government incen�ves receivable and personal guarantee of  Shri. T.G.Venkatesh.For 
COVID / GECLs term loans from Banks India Bank, IDBI Bank, Punjab Na�onal Bank and South Indian Bank shall rank 2nd charge with 
exis�ng credit faciliites."  
Le�er of credit : Le�ers of credit for capital goods secured by exclusive charge on specific asset procured and guaranteed by Shri 
T.G.Venkatesh.  

Note 11 (b): Other non-currnet financial liabili�es

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Trade Deposits from Dealers/customers  
" Liabili�es for future outcome of disputed dues considering present 
obliga�on and probable future ou�lows: "
Customs duty payable recognised as Excep�onal item 
Fuel surcharge adjustment(FSA) and Electricity duty payable 
Surcharges/Interest payable on power charges,excise duty,  
Sales  tax and other dues 
Total 

(` in lakhs)

 560.00 

 1,097.12 
 2,142.83 

 
2,677.94 

 6,477.89 

 803.50 

 1,097.12 
 2,142.83 

 2,238.53 
 6,281.98 

Note 11 (c) Current borrowings

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

 Secured 
 From banks 
 Working capital demand loans 
 Cash Credits  
 Bill Discoun�ng  
" Le�ers of Credit issued by Banks to Creditors
(Payable to Banks on due dates of Le�ers of Credit) "
 Un-Secured 
 Finance from TReDS (reverse factoring) 
 Un secured loan from NBFC 
 From Others 
" Sale/Purchase Bills Discounted with Can Bank Factors Ltd
(Payable on due dates of Bills/factors) "
 Total 

(` in lakhs)

 538.84 
 1,234.88 

 68.57 
 

13,625.60 

 1,436.55 
 1,400.00 

 1,068.88 
 19,373.32 

 549.24 
 1,288.59 
 1,496.51 

13,136.01 

 1,530.46 
 -   

 1,037.06 
 19,037.87 
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There is no default as at 31st March, 2021, 31st March 2020, in repayment of loans and interest payments on Working 
capital Loans, Le�ers of Credit issued and Bills discounted with Banks and others.  

 Security   

a)   Short Term Loans from Banks:The above Working Capital Demand Loans and Cash Credits are with various banks 
at interest rate of MCLR plus Spread. Spread varies from 2.30% to 4.55%.The Working Capital Demand Loans, 
Cash Credits and Bills discounted by Banks are secured by 1st pari passu charge by way of hypotheca�on of 
inventories and receivable of the Company and further secured by 2nd pari passu charge on land, building and 
Plant and machinery and guaranteed by Shri T.G.Venkatesh.

b)  Le�ers of Credit from Banks:The above Le�er of credit facility availed from Banks were secured by 1st pari passu 
by way of hypotheca�on of inventories and receivable of the Company and further secured by 2nd pari passu 
charge on land, building and Plant and machinery and Le�ers of credit for capital goods secured by exclusive 
charge on specific asset procured and guaranteed by Shri T.G.Venkatesh.

c)  Bills discounted with Can Bank Factors Ltd:The above Sale Bill discoun�ng facility from Can Bank Factors ltd is 
secured by second charge on respec�ve fixed assets of the Company ranking pari passu with charges already 
created/ to be created by the Company and further guaranteed by Shri T.G.Venkatesh and purchase bill 
discoun�ng facility sanc�oned by Can Bank Factors Ltd are secured by 2nd pari passu charge on fixed assets of the 
company."  

Note 11 (d): Trade payables

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

 For Suppliers* 
 For Services* 
 Total 

(` in lakhs)

 5,748.51 
 1,864.90 
 7,613.41 

 2,837.98 
 2,711.85 
 5,549.83 

*(Refer Notes 35 for details of Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”)  (Refer Note 30(b) for related party trade payables). 
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Note 11 (e): Other curent financial liabili�es

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Current maturi�es of long term debt* 
Secured 
Term Loans from IFCI 
Term Loans from Banks 
Interest accrued but not due on term loans 
UnSecured 
Deferred Payment liabili�es*  (Sales Tax deferrment/loan 
sanc�oned as per State Incen�ve  Schemes)
Un-claimed Preference shares redemp�on warrants 
Others 
Dues to Banks (Cheques issued in current accounts) 
Employees Salaries,Bonus and P F/ ESI recoveries  and 
contribu�ons to Superannua�on Fund
Payable for capital goods 
Power charges and other expenses payable 
Amount payable for purchase of APGAS shares 
Total 

(` in lakhs)

 1,125.00 
 1,510.59 

 12.56 

 190.57
 

 135.48 

 -   
 

502.72 
 559.52 

 2,021.88 
 4,015.65 

 10,073.97 

 1,812.64 
 840.71 

 13.62 

 120.13 

 135.78 

 37.80 

 496.06 
 595.88 

 3,299.43 
 -   

 7,352.04 

There were no current maturi�es of Finance Lease Obliga�ons, Interest accrued and due on borrowings, unpaid 
Dividends, unpaid matured Debentures or Deposits and interest accrued thereon, Income received in advance and 
Applica�on money received for allotment of securi�es and due for refund.  

 *Represents repayments falling due in next twelve months.   

Note 12: Deferred tax liability

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

The balance comprises temporary differences a�ributable to: 
Deferred tax liabili�es 
Property, plant and equipment 
Less: 
Deferred tax assets 
Unabsorbed deprecia�on/losses and expenses allowable  U/s 43B of IT Act
Borrowing costs measured at amor�sed cost 
Provision for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
Employee benefits - Gratuity 
MAT Credit En�tlement (refer Note 2(W)) 
Net deferred tax liability 

(` in lakhs)

 12,241.28 

 (1,545.44)
 (4.71)

 (41.61)
 (13.08)

 (2,273.05)
 8,363.39 

 11,230.44 

 (1,390.43)
 (9.96)

 (41.61)
 (25.50)

 -   
 9,762.94 
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Reconcilia�on of net deferred tax liabili�es

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Opening balance as at the beginning of the year 
Recognised in statement of profit and loss during the period 
Recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) during the period
Recognised in retained earnings (refer note 2(W)) 
Closing balance as at end of the year 

(` in lakhs)

 9,762.94 
 959.12 

 12.42 
 (2,371.09)

 8,363.39 

 9,473.73 
 299.41 
 (10.20)

 -   
 9,762.94 

Note 13: Government grants

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

 Deferred sales tax loan 
 Capital subsidy 
 Closing balance 

(` in lakhs)

 23.54 
 4.39 

 27.93 

 52.33 
 6.63 

 58.96 

Note 14: Other current liabili�es

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

 Statutory Dues towards GST, VAT,TDS etc 
 Advances from customers 
 Total 

(` in lakhs)

 816.80 
 3,606.13 
 4,422.93 

 1,931.68 
 2,932.01 
 4,863.69 

Note 15: Provisions

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

 Provision for Leave obliga�ons 
 Provision for Gratuity 
 Total 

(` in lakhs)

 19.15 
 13.48 
 32.63 

 17.87 
 68.51 
 86.38 

Note 16: Current tax liability (Net)

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

 Current tax liability 
 Provision for income tax 
 Current tax asset 
 Tax deducted at source 
 Advance tax 
 Closing balance 

(` in lakhs)

 900.00 

 68.51 
 510.00 
 321.49 

 1,197.56 

 57.62 
 335.00 
 804.94 
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Break up of financial liabili�es carried at amor�sed cost

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Financial liabili�es carried at amor�sed cost
- Borrowings
- Lease liabili�es
- Trade and other payables
- Other financial liabili�es
Total financial liabili�es

(` in lakhs)

 25,327.47 
 1,847.28 

 6,477.89 
 33,652.64 

Non-Current
 As at 31st 

March, 2021 
 As at 31st 

March, 2020

Current

 17,646.38 
 2,005.98 

 -   
 6,281.98 

 25,934.34 

 19,373.32 
 387.20 

 7,613.41 
 10,073.97 
 37,447.90 

 19,037.87 
 368.33 

 5,549.83 
 7,352.05 

 32,308.08 

Note 17: Revenue from opera�ons

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Sale of products
Other opera�ng revenue
Process charges
Export Incen�ves
Freight/handing charges Receipts
Amor�sa�on of sales tax loan
Total

(` in lakhs)

 99,825.44 

 151.39 
 156.02 
 708.11 

 31.03 
 100,871.99 

 103,051.62 

 169.13 
 152.12 
 615.70 

 37.62 
 104,026.19 

Note 18: Other income

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Interest on Bank and other deposits and customers
Dividend Income
Net gain on Foreign exchange  
Rent Receipts 
Creditors wri�en back
Vivad se viswas scheme benefit
Other Receipts
Total

(` in lakhs)

 557.37 
 6.12 

 364.41 
 12.42 
 24.63 

 -   
 22.59 

 987.54 

 523.88 
 4.89 

 -   
 11.52 
 51.71 

 190.48 
 31.70 

 814.18 

Note 19 (a): Cost of  materials consumed

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Consump�on of raw materials 
Consump�on of chemicals
Consump�on of packing materials
Total

(` in lakhs)

 33,390.52 
 1,765.54 

 996.93 
 36,152.99 

 28,137.51 
 1,912.51 

 913.35 
 30,963.37 
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Note 19 (b): Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Opening Stock
Finished Goods
Stock-in-process
Scrap & Disposables
Total Opening Stock
Closing Stock
Finished goods
Stock-in-process
Scrap & Disposables
Total Closing Stock
Total changes in inventories of work-in-progress, 
stock-in-trade and finished goods

(` in lakhs)

 1,410.62 
 459.51 

 17.78 
 1,887.91 

 1,021.88 
 650.54 

 56.96 
 1,729.38 

 158.53 

 1,070.91 
 543.04 

 12.24 
 1,626.19 

 1,410.62 
 459.51 

 17.78 
 1,887.91 

 (261.72)

Note 20: Employee Benefit Expense

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Salaries, Wages,Bonus and Allowances
Contribu�on to ESI & Provident Fund 
Contribu�on to Gratuity & Superannua�on Schemes
Staff Welfare expenses
Total

(` in lakhs)

 4,069.47 
 119.91 

 92.09 
 535.32 

 4,816.79 

 4,394.50 
 128.32 

 89.51 
 700.92 

 5,313.25 

Note 21: Finance cost

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Interest expenses
On Term loans
On Working capital loans/Cash credits/NBFC loan
On Purchase/ Sale bills discoun�ng 
Interest on Trade deposits
Interest on power bills
Interest /Surcharge payable to APSPDCL
On Others
Other borrowing cost
Working capital renewal and loan processing charges
Interset on lease liability
Total

(` in lakhs)

 869.08 
 361.69 

 1,215.93 
 137.50 
 129.49 
 434.25 
 286.53 

 254.53 
 248.28 

 3,937.28 

 1,221.58 
 239.17 

 1,258.88 
 98.31 

 133.81 
 354.78 
 135.41 

 199.44 
 263.81 

 3,905.19 
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Note 22: Other Expenses

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Consump�on of stores and spares
Rent including Lease Rents
Insurance
Repairs & Maintenance
  a) Buildings
  b) Plant  & Machinery
  c) Others
Rates & Taxes
Processing Charges
Travelling and conveyance
Prin�ng and sta�onery
Postage Telegrams and Telephones
Directors si�ng fee
Directors Travelling
Remunera�on to Auditors
           Audit -Fee      
           Fee for Cer�fica�ons
           Cost Audit Fee
Freight Inward & Material handling charges
Freight outward & Ocean freight
Commission on sales
Other Selling expenses
Adver�sement
Fee and Expenses
Bank Charges
Service Charges
Legal Expenses
Research and Development /Lab Expenses
Water Charges
Provision for Bad Debts/Expected credit loss 
Net Loss(Gain) on Exchange fluctua�ons 
Other Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 
Dona�ons
Amounts charge off
Total

(` in lakhs)

 2,397.54 
 334.68 
 269.51 

 531.72 
 2,668.23 

 521.34 
 7.94 

 10.12 
 296.03 

 29.97 
 29.15 

 2.40 
 2.35 

 16.00 
 0.70 
 1.50 

 1,136.52 
 3,899.63 

 316.82 
 276.86 

 6.60 
 77.92 

 837.76 
 595.77 

 25.93 
 23.25 
 52.07 

 -   
 -   

 361.67 
 201.61 

 11.90 
 6.73 

 14,950.22 

 2,980.71 
 334.48 
 138.21 

 421.11 
 2,531.87 

 507.48 
 18.02 
 14.18 

 447.03 
 44.46 
 35.28 

 2.49 
 40.61 

 16.00 
 -   

 1.50 
 1,048.17 
 2,988.71 
 1,066.99 

 366.08 
 60.78 
 65.71 

 540.98 
 676.42 

 38.63 
 13.95 
 59.41 
 23.00 

 225.32 
 438.35 

 65.04 
 6.88 

 98.90 
 15,316.75 
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Note 23: Tax Expenses

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

a) Income tax expense
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Total current tax expenses
Deferred tax
Decrease/(Increase) in deferred tax assets
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred tax liabili�es
MAT credit availed during the year
Total Deferred tax expense/(benefit)
Income tax expenses

(` in lakhs)

 900.00 
 55.68 

 955.68 

 (149.76)
 1,010.84 

 98.04 
 959.12 

 1,914.80 

 1,190.00 
 186.62 

 1,376.62 

 (753.12)
 1,052.53 

 -   
 299.41 

 1,676.03 

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accoun�ng profit as follows :

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Profit/(loss) before tax from con�nuing opera�ons
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discon�nued opera�on
Total profit/(loss) before taxes
Increase/decrease in net profit before taxes on account of:
Exempt income
Deprecia�on as per books
Deprecia�on as per income tax act, 1961
Expenses not allowed under income tax act, 1961
Expenses that are allowed on payment basis as per Sec.43B
Ind AS adjustments
Investment allowance as per income tax act, 1961
Profit/(Loss) under income from business
Applicable tax rate under normal Provisions
Tax under normal Provisions of Income tax act, 1961 (A)

(` in lakhs)

 4,886.55 
 (76.51)

 4,810.04 

 6,096.68 
 (8,989.43)

 209.86 
 439.42 
 150.63 

 -   
 2,717.20 

34.94%
 949.50 

 6,479.18 
 (75.70)

 6,403.48 

 (4.89)
 5,412.36 

 (8,424.45)
 76.51 

 251.06 
 192.84 

 -   
 3,906.91 

34.94%
 1,365.23 

Tax under MAT Provisions of Income tax act, 1961 (B)

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Profit/(loss) before tax from con�nuing opera�ons
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discon�nued opera�on
Total profit/(loss) before taxes
Applicable tax rate under MAT Provisions
Tax payable under MAT Provisions as per 
applicable tax rate
Increase/(decrease) in tax on account of
  Exempt income
  Ind AS adjustments
Taxable under MAT Provisions (B)

(` in lakhs)

 4,886.55 
 (76.51)

 4,810.04 
17.47%

840.41

 -   
11.05

 851.46 

 6,479.18 
 (75.70)

 6,403.48 
17.47%

1118.82

 (0.86)
13.96

 1,131.92 
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Tax payable (higher of (A), (B) as computed above)
MAT Credit availed (A) - (B)
Interest provided for
Total tax payable normal Provisions of Income tax act, 1961 
Earlier Year tax liability
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

 949.50 
 (98.04)

 48.54 
 900.00 

 55.68 
 955.68 

 1,365.23 
 (233.31)

 58.08 
 1,190.00 

 186.62 
 1,376.62 

Note 24: Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan
Tax effect on gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan
Net gains/(losses) on FVTOCI equity securi�es
Total

(` in lakhs)

 35.53 
 (12.42)
 588.81 
 611.92 

 (29.19)
 10.20 

 (212.22)
 (231.21)

Note 25: Earning Per Share (EPS)

Par�culars Year Ended
31st March, 2021 

Year Ended
31st March, 2020

EPS from con�nuing opera�ons
   Net Profit A�er Tax available for Equity Shareholders
   Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
   Basic Earning per Share
   Diluted Earning per Share
EPS from discon�nuing opera�ons
   Net Profit A�er Tax available for Equity Shareholders
   Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
   Basic Earning per Share
   Diluted Earning per Share
EPS from con�nuing & discon�nuing opera�ons
   Net Profit A�er Tax available for Equity Shareholders
   Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
   Basic Earning per Share
   Diluted Earning per Share

(` in lakhs)

 2,971.75 
 10,63,70,978 

 2.79 
 2.79 

 (76.51)
 10,63,70,978 

 (0.07)
 (0.07)

 2,895.24 
 10,63,70,978 

 2.72 
 2.72 

 4,803.15 
 9,68,98,714 

 4.96 
 4.70 

 (75.70)
 9,68,98,714 

 (0.08)
 (0.07)

 4,727.44 
 9,68,98,714 

 4.88 
 4.62 
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26. Employee Benefits:

A) Defined Contribu�on Plans

The Company makes Provident Fund and Superannua�on Fund contribu�ons which are defined contribu�on 
plans, for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified 
percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognized Rs.103.05 Lakhs (Previous year 
Rs.107.88 Lakhs) for Provident Fund contribu�ons and Rs.41.32 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.40.94 Lakhs) for 
Superannua�on Fund contribu�ons in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contribu�on payable to these plans 
by the Company is at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.  

B) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company’s obliga�on towards the Gratuity Fund is a defined benefit plan and is funded with Life Insurance 
Corpora�on of India. The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefits scheme and the 
amount recognized in financial statement as per Actuarial Valua�on:

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

1. Changes in present value of Obliga�ons
    Present value at the beginning of the year
    Interest cost
    Current Service Cost
    Benefits paid
    Actuarial (gain)/loss on obliga�ons
    Present value at the end of the year

680.81
47.66
44.45

(40.32)
(33.94)
698.66

587.83
41.14
45.23

(30.50)
37.11

680.81

2. Changes in fair value of planned assets
 Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
    Expected return on plan assets
    Contribu�ons
    Benefits paid  
 Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets
 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

612.30
42.86
68.74

(40.32)
1.59

685.18

542.04
37.94
54.89

(30.50)
7.91

612.30

3. Amount recognized in the balance sheet
    Present value of obliga�ons as at the end of year
    Fair value of plan assets as at the end of year
    Net asset/(liability) recognized in balance sheet

698.66
685.18
(13.48)

680.81
612.30
(68.51)
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4. Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit &   Loss
    Current service cost
    Interest cost
    Expected return on plan assets
    Expenses recognized in statement of profit & loss

44.45
47.66

(42.86)
49.24

45.23
41.14

(37.94)
48.43

5. Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
   Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obliga�ons
   Actuarial (gain)/loss – plan assets
   Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year

(33.93)
(1.59)

(35.53)

37.11
(7.92)
29.19

6. Assump�ons
   Discount rate  
   Salary escala�on
   Expected rate of return

7.00%
7.00%
7.00%

7.00%
7.00%
7.00%

Sensi�vity analysis:

Significant actuarial assump�ons for the determina�on of the defined benefit obliga�on are discount rate and 
expected salary increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible. Please note that the sensi�vity 
analysis presented below may not be representa�ve of the actual change in the defined benefit obliga�on as it 
is unlikely that the change in the assump�on would occur in isola�on of one another as some of the 
assump�ons may be correlated. The result of the sensi�vity analysis are given below:

Period As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Defined benefit obliga�on 
(base)

6,98,66,183 @ salary 
increase rate: 7% and 
discount rate: 7.00%

6,80,81,155 @ salary 
increase rate: 7% and 
discount rate: 7.00%

Liability with x% increase in 
discount rate

655.44; x=1.00% 636.98; x=1.00%

Liability with x% decrease in 
discount rate

747.12; x=1.00% 730.05; x=1.00%

Liability with x% increase in 
salary growth rate

746.64; x=1.00% 729.56; x=1.00%

Liability with x% decrease in 
salary growth rate

655.06; x=1.00% 636.59; x=1.00%

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)
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Par�culars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Liability with x% increase in 
withdrawal rate

698.47; x=1.00% 680.48; x=1.00%

Liability with x% decrease in 
withdrawal rate

698.86; x=1.00% 681.15; x=1.00%

27. Con�ngent Liabili�es and Commitments: (to the extent not provided for)

a) Cheques / Bills Discounted with Banks 22.57 42.87

b) Unexpired Bank guarantees (net of margin money paid)
566.63 634.90

c) Capital Commitments:
Es�mated amount of contracts remaining to be   
executed on Capital Account (Net of advances)

5,693.67 9,610.17

d) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts and not provided for being disputed and 
pending in appeals/ Assessments in respect of:

i)  The Fuel Surcharge Adjustment (FSA) charges for the year 
2008-09 and 2009-10 payable to APCPDCL was contested 
by the Industrial units including the company before 
Hon’ble High Court of AP and obtained favorable order 
for 2008-09 and the ma�er was referred to Supreme 
Court and the same is pending.

1,523.80 1,523.80

ii) Increase in water rate made by Andhra Pradesh 
Government through GO for using river water protested 
before Hon’ble High Court from February, 2014 to March, 
2021.

128.70 110.84

iii) Claim made by one MSME supplier for addi�onal 
compensa�on for supply / service rendered to the 
company.

146.90 0.00

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)
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28. Leases:

The Company records the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the 
incremental borrowing rate and the ROU asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since 
the commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date 
of ini�al applica�on. 

The borrowing rate that is applied to lease liabili�es as on 1st April, 2020 is 12.50%

iv) Power supply made by APGPCL not credited fully in the 
power bills raised during the year by APSPDCL resul�ng 
in same power being billed by both the en��es i.e., 
double billing of the power supplied by APGPCL. Having 
fully paid for the bills of APGPCL, company contested 
against excess billing by APSPDCL. 

 However, the Company believes possible obliga�on of 
ou�low of resources shall not exceed Rs.916.00 Lakhs 
being the cost difference between the two en��es i.e., 
(disputed amount with APSPDCL – amount paid to 
APGPCL).

2,846.00 0.00

v) Company has executed Le�er of Undertakings to pay 
customs duty, central excise duty, levies payable, if any, in 
respect of imported and indigenous capital goods, Raw 
Materials and stores and spares consumed duty free, in 
the event that certain terms and condi�ons are not 
fulfilled as per guidelines issued by the Customs 
Authori�es under EPCG and Advance Licenses.

392.00 0.00

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

Note: Amounts shown in the above table are net of amounts paid under protest.
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(` in lakhs)

Par�culars
Buildings  Equipments

Category of ROU Assets
TOTAL

Balance as at 1st April, 2020

Addi�ons

Dele�ons

Deprecia�on

Balance as at 31st March, 2021

1,934.60

-

-

206.23

1,728.37

134.84

-

-

52.35

82.49

2,069.44

-

-

258.58

1,810.86

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabili�es as at 31st March, 2021 is as follows

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

Non - Current lease liabili�es

Current lease liabili�es

Total

1,847.28

387.20

 2,234.48

2,005.98

368.33

2,374.31

The movement in lease liabili�es during the year ended 31st March, 2021 is as follows:

(` in lakhs)

Par�culars
Buildings  Equipments

Category of ROU Assets
TOTAL

Balance as at 1st April, 2020

Addi�ons

Dele�ons

Finance cost during the year

Payment of lease

Balance as at 31st March, 2021

2,214.46

-

-

236.87

319.46

2,131.87

159.85

-

-

11.40

68.64

102.61

2,374.31

-

-

248.27

388.10

2,234.48

The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended 31stMarch, 2021 are as follows:
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The details of the contractual maturi�es of lease liabili�es as at 31st March, 2021 
on an un discounted basis are as follows:

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

(I) Less than one year

(ii) One to five years

(iii) More than five years 

387.20

1,983.78

1,335.80

388.11

1,949.83

1,756.96

29. Segment Repor�ng:
(` in lakhs)

As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

91,511

13,805

1,05,316

(4,444)

1,00,872

9,005

(738)

8,267

3,937

(557)

(77)

4,810

95,986

11,307

1,07,293

(3,267)

1,04,026

10,690

(830)

9,860

3,905

(524)

(76)

6,403

Par�culars

Segment Revenue

a) Chemicals

b) Oils & Fats

   TOTAL

Less: Inter segment revenue

Net Sales/Income from Opera�ons

Segment Results Profit/(Loss) Before tax and interest:

a) Chemicals

b) Oils & Fats

   TOTAL

Less: I) a) Interest Expenses

              b) Interest Income 

         II) Loss from discon�nuing  opera�ons of power Plant

Total Profit before Tax
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As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

1,25,479

9,946

8,950

915

1,45,290

75,527

5,590

3,152

-

84,269

5,849

469

6,318

94,782.62

6,089.38

1,00,872.00

1,11,666

6,983

7,873

954

1,27,476

64,610

4,986

4,223

-

73,819

5,123

506

5,629

97,543.67

6,482.33

1,04,026.00

Par�culars

Segment Assets

a) Chemicals

b) Oils & Fats

c) Others 

d) Power Plant (Discon�nued opera�ons)

   TOTAL

Segment Liabili�es

a) Chemicals

b) Oils & Fats

c) Others 

d) Power Plant (Discon�nued opera�ons)

   TOTAL

Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense

a) Chemicals

b) Oils & Fats

 TOTAL

Addi�onal informa�on by geographic

Revenue by Geographical Market

India

Outside India

 TOTAL

Revenue from major customers

The Company is not reliant on revenues from transac�ons with any single external customer and does not 
receive 10% or more of its revenues from transac�ons with any single external customer.
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30.  Related Party Disclosures:
a) Names of related par�es and descrip�on of rela�onship:

Name of related party   

Sree Rayalaseema Hi-Strength Hypo Limited.
TGV Projects and Investments Private Limited
Brilliant Bio Pharma Private Limited
Sree Maruthi Marine Industries Limited
Sree Maruthi Agro Tech Limited
Gowri Gopal Hospitals Private Limited
Sree Rayalaseema Galaxy Projects Private Limited
Nector Laboratories Private Limited
S.K.Salts Private Limited
M.V. Salts & Chemicals Private Limited
Brilliant Industries Private Limited
Sree Rayalaseema Dutch Kassenbouw Private Limited     
Roopa Industries Limited
TGV Securi�es Private Limited
JSM Interna�onal Limited
The Mourya Inn
TGV Industries Private Limited
Gowri Gopal Intensive Care Unit LLP
Shri. T.G. Venkatesh – Chairman (�ll 15th May, 2020)
Shri. K.Karunakar Rao – C.E.O. & E.D. (F&C)
Shri. N. Jeswanth Reddy – E.D. (Tech.,)
Shri. GopalaKishan Agarwal – E.D. (Tech.,)
Shri. C.Rajesh Khanna – C.F.O.
Shri. V.Radha Krishna Murthy – Company Secretary
Shri. T. G. Venkatesh, Non-whole �me Director (�ll 15th May, 2020)
Shri. K.Karunakar Rao, Execu�ve Director
Shri. N. Jeswanth Reddy, Execu�ve Director
Shri. Gopal Kishan Agarwal, Execu�ve Director
Shri. G Krishna Murthy, Independent Director
Shri. P N Vedanarayanan, Independent Director
Shri. J Nagabhushanam, Independent Director
Smt. M Asha Reddy, Independent Woman Director
Smt. T.G. Rajya Lakshmi
Smt. O. Sarada Reddy
Smt. Uma Agarwal

Descrip�on of rela�onship

Enterprises where significant influence
of key managerial personnel
or their rela�ves exists & with whom 
transac�ons have taken place

Key Managerial Personnel

Directors

Close members of key managerial 
personnel’s family
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b)  Summary of transac�ons with the above related par�es is as follows: 
(` in lakhs)

Name of the party Nature of 
Transac�on

For the year 
ended 31.03.2021

For the year 
ended 31.03.2020

Balance outstanding 
as on 31.03.2021

Balance outstanding 
as on 31.03.2020

Enterprises where significant influence of key managerial personnel or their rela�ves exists:

Sales
Purchases
Services availed
Rents Received

12,557.81
9,510.80

568.84
7.47

13,291.21
6,314.48

87.82
6.56

2181.20 (Cr)
1540.18 (Cr)

-
-

1,154.27(Cr)
-
-
-

Sree Rayalaseema 
Hi- Strength Hypo Limited

Sales
Purchases
Services availed

0.27
14.95
60.68

0.26
2.84

47.79

-
-

19.79 (Cr)

-
-

31.72(Cr)

Gowri Gopal Hospitals 
Private Limited

Sales 10.04 73.11 8.58 (Dr) 14.00 (Dr)Roopa Industries Limited

Sales
Purchases

8.20
71.79

13.71
86.66

-
6.23 (Cr)

-
81.62 (Cr)

Sree Rayalaseema Galaxy 
Projects Private Limited

Purchases
Land  purchase 

169.26

-

276.64  

131.67

231.19 (Cr)

-

11.92 (Cr)

-
Sree Maruthi Marine 
Industries Limited

Purchases

Purchases

Sree Maruthi Agro Tech 
Private Limited
M.V. Salts & Chemicals 
Private Limited

32.03

-

63.03

47.98

7.97 (Dr)

-

26.00 (Dr)

31.48 (Dr)

Purchases 0.52 - 0.15 (Cr) -TGV Industries Private Ltd.,

Advance for land purchase

Lease Rentals Paid

Equity Shares allo�ed including premium

Share Applica�on Money Received

Rent advance paid

1214.40 
63.14

-
-
-

-
63.14

1,882.62
1,411.96

          -

1214.40 (Dr)
4.01 (Cr)

-
-

107.00 (Dr)

-
4.82 (Cr)

-
-

107.00 (Dr)Sr
i T

.G
. V

en
ka

te
sh

Lease Rentals Paid

Rent deposit

313.83
-

298.88
-

-
100.09 (Dr)

19.65 (Cr)
100.75(Dr)

TGV Projects and Investments 
Private Limited

Services availed 98.87 192.21 10.43 (Cr) -The Mourya Inn

Services availed - - - 2.04 (Dr)Nectar Laboratories PVT. LTD.

Services availed 12.12 7.37 - 7.37 (Cr)Gowri Gopal Intensive Care Unit

Share Warrants 
Applica�on Money 
Received

1,486.27 495.43 - 495.43 (Cr.)Brilliant Industries 
Private Limited
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(` in lakhs)

Investment in Equity 
Dividend received

-
6.12

-
4.89

24.48 (Dr)
-

24.48 (Dr)
-

SreeRayalaseema 
Hi- Strength Hypo Limited

Remunera�on

Remunera�on

Remunera�on

25.22
24.80
26.16

23.83
23.28
26.16

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shri K.Karunakar Rao ED (F&C)

Shri. N.Jesvanth Reddy, ED (Tech)

Shri. G.K.Agarwal, ED (Tech)

- -Remunera�on
Shri. V. Radha Krishna Murthy, 
Company Secretary 9.78 9.58

-
0.67 (Dr)

-
1.07 (Dr)

Remunera�on
LoanShri. C.Rajesh Khanna, CFO

16.51
-

15.90
-

Rela�ves to Key Managerial  Personnel

- -Interest & 
Consultancy

Smt. O Sarada Reddy - 13.62

Rent Paid
Services

2.05
0.42

1.86
1.50

-
-

-
-

Smt. T.G. Rajya Lakshmi
Smt. Uma Agarwal

Note: Cr indicates Credit balance & Dr. indicates Debit balance

Equity Shares 
allo�ed including 
premium

1,981.70 - - -Brilliant Industries 
Private Limited

Name of the party Nature of 
Transac�on

For the year 
ended 31.03.2021

For the year 
ended 31.03.2020

Balance outstanding 
as on 31.03.2021

Balance outstanding 
as on 31.03.2020

117

TGV SRAAC LIMITED



Note 31: Fair value measurements

Par�culars Amor�sed cost TOTAL

Financial assets
Investments 
Equity instruments 
Government securi�es
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Total Financial assets
Financial liabili�es
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabili�es
Total Financial liabili�es

(` in lakhs)

 8,859.44 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 8,859.44 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 1.90 

 9,918.63 
 3,246.95 
 7,394.48 

 10,403.12 
 30,965.08 

 44,700.79 
 7,613.41 

 16,551.86 
 68,866.06 

a) Financial instruments by category    
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2021 is as follows :

FVTPL FVTOCI

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 8,859.44 
 1.90 

 9,918.63 
 3,246.95 
 7,394.48 

 10,403.12 
 39,824.52 

 44,700.79 
 7,613.41 

 16,551.86 
 68,866.06 

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2020 is as follows : 

Par�culars Amor�sed cost TOTAL

Financial assets
Investments 
Equity instruments 
Government securi�es
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Total Financial assets
Financial liabili�es
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabili�es
Total Financial liabili�es

(` in lakhs)

 767.38 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 767.38 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 1.90 

 8,269.92 
 672.24 

 6,223.10 
 12,460.54 
 27,627.71 

 36,684.25 
 5,549.83 

 13,634.03 
 55,868.11 

FVTPL FVTOCI

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 767.38 
 1.90 

 8,269.92 
 672.24 

 6,223.10 
 12,460.54 
 28,395.08 

 36,684.25 
 5,549.83 

 13,634.03 
 55,868.11 
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b) Fair value hierarchy    

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabili�es.    

Quan�ta�ve disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31st March 2021: 

Par�culars Level 3 TOTAL

(` in lakhs)

Level 1 Level 2
Fair value measurement using

Financial assets
Financial instruments at FVTOCI
Investments in Quoted equity instruments
equity shares of Sree Rayalaseema Hi-Strength Hypo Ltd
equity shares of Indian Bank
Investments in Un-Quoted equity instruments
equity shares of Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd*
Total Financial assets

 578.46 
 0.98 

 -   
 579.44 

-
-
-
-
-

 -   
 -   

 8,280.00 
 8,280.00 

 578.46 
 0.98 

 8,280.00 
 8,859.44 

*the percentage of shareholding of the Company in Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd companies is low and 
hence, it has not been provided with future projec�ons including projected profit and loss account. Hence, the 
valua�on exercise carried out by the Company with the help of available historical annual reports and other 
informa�on in the public domain. During the current year as purchases were made through biding process and the 
last purchase prices is taken as fair value measurement.  

Quan�ta�ve disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31st March, 2020: 

Par�culars Level 3 TOTAL
Financial assets
Financial instruments at FVTOCI
Investments in Quoted equity instruments
equity shares of Sree Rayalaseema Hi-Strength Hypo Ltd
equity shares of Indian Bank
Investments in Un-Quoted equity instruments
equity shares of Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd*
Total Financial assets

(` in lakhs)

Level 1 Level 2

 176.83 
 0.36 

 -   
 177.19 

Fair value measurement using

-
-
-
-
-

 -   
 -   

 590.19 
 590.19 

 176.83 
 0.36 

 590.19 
 767.38 

*the percentage of shareholding of the Company in Andhra Pradesh Gas Power Corpora�on Ltd companies is low and 
hence, it has not been provided with future projec�ons including projected profit and loss account. Hence, the 
valua�on exercise carried out by the Company with the help of available historical annual reports and other 
informa�on in the public domain. 
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Reconcilia�on of Level 3 fair value measurements 

Investment in unquoted shares irrevocably designated as FVTOCI 

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Opening balance
Purchases
Total gains/losses in other comprehensive income
Closing balance

(` in lakhs)

 590.19  
 7,503.25  

 186.56  
 8,280.00  

561.93 
 -    

 28.26  
 590.19  

Level 1:  Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments 
(including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the 
repor�ng period.    

Level 2:  The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an ac�ve market (for example, traded bonds, 
over-the-counter deriva�ves) is determined using valua�on techniques for which the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. If all significant inputs 
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.    

Level 3:  If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in 
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securi�es included in level 3.    

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.    
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32. Discon�nued Opera�ons

Descrip�on: The Power Purchase Agreement with Karnataka Electricity Board (Power Distribu�on Companies) 
pertaining to Bellary power plant was expired on 31stAugust,2012 and the agreement was not renewed and 
genera�on of power was stopped from September, 2012. The company has discon�nued the opera�ons of this 
segment from the year 2013-14 and exploring the possibili�es for disposal of its Plant. 

The results of discon�nued opera�ons are presented below:

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

39.27

37.24

76.51

-

76.51

900.48

14.69

915.17

-

915.17

-

(39.27)

1.78

(37.49)

38.46

37.24

75.70

-

75.70

937.72

16.47

954.19

-

954.19

-

(38.46)

2.29

(36.17)

Expenses

Deprecia�on

Loss from discon�nued opera�ons for the year before tax

Tax (expense)/income

Loss from discon�nued opera�ons for the year a�er tax

Assets

Fixed Assets

Current Assets 

Total Assets

Liabili�es

Net Assets

Cash flow as follows

Opera�ng ac�vi�es

    Sale of fixed assets

    Expenses

    Change in working capital

Net cash (ou�low)
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Capital management       

The Company being in a capital intensive industry, its objec�ve is to maintain a strong credit ra�ng healthy capital 
ra�os and establish a capital structure that would maximise the return to stakeholders through op�mum mix of debt 
and equity.The Company’s capital requirement is mainly to fund its capacity expansion, repayment of principal and 
interest on its borrowings. The principal source of funding of the Company has been, and is expected to con�nue to 
be, cash generated from its opera�ons supplemented by funding from bank borrowings. The Company regularly 
considers other financing and refinancing opportuni�es to diversify its debt profile, reduce interest cost and align 
maturity profile of its debt commensurate with life of the assets, and closely monitors its judicious alloca�on amongst 
compe�ng capital expansion projects and strategic acquisi�ons, to capture market opportuni�es at minimum risk.      

Gearing ra�o       

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ra�o, The Company’s startegy is to maintain gearing ra�o below 1, 
which is total debt divided to total equity as given below:

Note 33: Capital Management & Risk management

Par�culars  As at 31st 
March, 2021 

 As at 31st 
March, 2020

Total Debt*
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Total debt to Total equity ra�o

(` in lakhs)

 27,670.39 
 10,713.26 
 50,307.90 
 61,021.16 

 0.45 

 19,864.38 
 10,177.81 
 43,478.83 
 53,656.64 

 0.37 

*Total Debt is defined as secured long-term including current maturi�es of borrowings excluding cummula�ve 
redeemable preference shares.       

Financial risk management and objec�ves and policies       

This note explains the sources of risk which the en�ty is exposed to and how the en�ty manages the risk and the 
impact in the financial statements.       

A Special Team with Senior Execu�ves having exposure in various fields has been formed to assist Execu�ve Director 
and CEO in (a) Overseeing and approving the Company’s enterprise wide risk management framework, and (b) 
Overseeing that all the risks that the organisa�on faces such as market risk(including currency risk, interest rate risk 
and other price risk), Credit risk and liquidity risk have been iden�fied and assessed and there is an adequate risk 
management infrastructure in place capable of addressing those risks. The Execu�ve Director and CEO, monitors and 
reports on the principal risks and uncertain�es that can impact the Company and its ability to achieve strategic 
objec�ves. The Company’s management systems, organisa�onal structures, processes, standards, code of conduct 
and behaviors together form the Management and business of the Company.       
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A. Market risk       

The Company is exposed to market risk through changes in foreign currency exchange rates and changes in interest 
rates. Financial assets/liabili�es affected by this risk are borrowings, le�er of credits and trade receivables.       

The Company’s investments in listed and non-listed equity securi�es are suscep�ble to price risk arising from 
uncertaini�es about future value of the investment Securi�es. The Company’s non-current investment in equity 
shares are strategic investments and hence are considered as Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income. The 
company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.       

Foreign Currency risk management       

The Company operates interna�onally and is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency 
transac�ons, primarily with respect to the US$, EUR, JPY. Foreign exchange risk arises from import as well as exports 
of goods. The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.        

The special team as men�oned above analysis the op�ons for hedging. Based on the analysis the management takes 
decision regarding hedging of foreign currency exposures. Currently, the Company has not hedged any of the foreign 
currency transac�ons in the veiw of the natural hedging. The natural hedging is sufficient to manage the current 
foreign currency risk management.       

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabili�es are 
restated at the end of each quarter. The same at the end of the repor�ng period are as follows :       

Par�culars
 As at 31st March, 2021 

Receivables for export
Payables for imports
LC's issued to creditors/direct supplies
LC's issued to creditors
LC's issued to creditors
LC's issued to creditors

(FC in lakhs)

 1.98 

 168.55 
 12.35 

 3,678.92 
 35.17 

Currency Amount in FC

USD

USD
EURO

JPY
CHF

 As at 31st March, 2020 

 0.21 

 101.45 
 12.35 

 3,678.92 
 34.71 

Currency Amount in FC

USD

USD
EURO

JPY
CHF

Foreign Currency Sensi�vity Analysis       

The Company is mainly exposed to US Dollor, EUR, JPY, CHF.       

The following tables demonstrate the sensi�vity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR, JPY exchange rates, 
with all other variables held constant. The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is 
not material.
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USD Sensi�vity
Impact due to increase by 5%
Impact due to decrease by 5%

EURO Sensi�vity
Impact due to increase by 5%
Impact due to decrease by 5%

JPY Sensi�vity
Impact due to increase by 5%
Impact due to decrease by 5%

CHF Sensi�vity
Impact due to increase by 5%
Impact due to decrease by 5%

(` in lakhs)

 (611.57)
 611.57 

 (52.97)
 52.97 

 (121.61)
 121.61 

 (136.39)
 136.39 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020
Impact on profit before tax

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2021  As at 31st March, 2020
Impact on profit before tax

 (148.25)
 148.25 

 (0.22)
 0.22 

 (0.56)
 0.56 

 (0.59)
 0.59 

Interest Rate Risk Management       

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial intruments will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to the Company's borrowings with floa�ng base interest rates. Based on the interest rate sensi�vity the 
Company decides on the management of interest rate risk.       

Interest Rate Sensi�vity:       

The following table demonstrates the sensi�vity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that por�on of 
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected 
through the impact on floa�ng base rate borrowings, as follows:       

Increase/decrease in base points  
50 base points higher  
50 base points lower  

(` in lakhs)

 (71.70)
 71.70

 (36.05)
 36.05 
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B. Credit risk       

"Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obliga�ons resul�ng in financial loss 
to the Company. The Company is opera�ng through network of dealers based at different loca�ons. Regular 
monitoring of the receivables is undertaken by the marke�ng department and in case the limits are exceeded, steps 
will be taken by the marke�ng departments and a�er discussing with the management the Company will decide 
whether to stop or not further supplies to the concerned dealer �ll the amount outstanding is recovered. For the 
export made by the Company, the sales are backed by ECGC Coverage or advance receipts. The internal risk 
management commi�ee of the Company meets regularly to discuss the dealers and credit risks, measures taken to 
address them and the status and level of risk a�er the measures taken.Export sales are fully secured through ECGC 
Coverage or against advance receipts. (refer Note No.8(a) for Trade Receivbles outstanding)."       

C. Liquidity risk       

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securi�es and the availability 
of funding through an adequate amount of commi�ed credit facili�es to meet obliga�ons when due and to close out 
market posi�ons. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company maintains flexibility in funding 
by maintaining availability under commi�ed credit lines.       

Ul�mate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an 
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short-term, medium-term 
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining 
adequate reserves, banking facili�es and reserve borrowing facili�es, by con�nuously monitoring forecast and actual 
cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabili�es.  

(i) Financing arrangements

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturi�es of financial liabili�es 
as at repor�ng date:

Par�culars On demand

As at 31st March, 2021
Bank borrowings
Deferred sales tax loan
Provided for disputed dues
Trade Deposits from Dealers/customers
Total non-current financial liabili�es
Current borrowings
Trade payables
Other current financial liabili�es
Total current financial liabili�es
Total

5 + years

(` in lakhs)

< 1 year 1 - 5 years TOTAL

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 19,373.32 
 7,613.41 

 10,073.97 
 37,060.70 
 37,060.70 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 25,034.80 
 292.67 

 -   
 560.00 

 25,887.47 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 25,887.47 

 25,034.80 
 292.67 

 -   
 560.00 

 25,887.47 
 19,373.32 

 7,613.41 
 10,073.97 
 37,060.70 
 62,948.17 
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Par�culars On demand

As at 31st March, 2020
Bank borrowings
Deferred sales tax loan
Provided for disputed dues
Trade Deposits from Dealers/customers
Total non-current financial liabili�es
Current borrowings
Trade payables
Other current financial liabili�es
Total current financial liabili�es
Total

5 + years

(` in lakhs)

< 1 year 1 - 5 years TOTAL

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 19,037.87 
 5,549.83 
 7,352.05 

 31,939.75 
 31,939.75 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 17,211.03 
 435.35 

 -   
 803.50 

 18,449.88 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 18,449.88 

 17,211.03 
 435.35 

 -   
 803.50 

 18,449.88 
 19,037.87 

 5,549.83 
 7,352.05 

 31,939.75 
 50,389.63 

The following table shows summary of the sources of risk which the en�ty is exposed to and how the en�ty manages 
the risk and the impact in the financial statements:   

Exposure arising from
Foreign currency transac�ons

Borrowings with floa�ng interest rates

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, 
financial instruments, financial assets 
measured at amor�sed cost.

Borrowings and Financial liabili�es

Risk 
Market risk - foreign

Market risk - interest rate

Credit risk 

Liquidity risk 

Measurement 
Cash flow forecas�ng

Sensi�vity analysis

Aging analysis
Credit ra�ngs

Rolling cash flow forecasts 

Management 
Natural hedging 

Credit ra�ngs  

Diversifica�on of bank deposits, 
credit limits and le�ers of credit

Availability of commi�ed credit 
lines and borrowing facili�es 
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34. Income and expenditure in foreign currency and Foreign Currency Exposures
Earnings in Foreign Currency

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

5,825.82

4.05

5,358.12

3.89

i)  FOB value of exports

ii) Others
Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

-

2.28

65.36

225.94

3.69

-

33.74

3.78

18.80

168.25

-

63.380

i) Travelling

ii) Fees and charges

iii) Commission paid

iv) Interest & Bank charges

v) Other expenses

vi) Technical service charges
Foreign Currency Exposures (` in lakhs)

Par�culars Recognised 
amount (Rs.)

Amount in 
FC (in lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2021

Recognised 
amount (Rs.)

Amount in 
FC (in lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2020

Receivables for export 144.38

12,322.95

1,059.32

2,727.80

2,432.13

$1.98

$ 168.55

EUR 12.35

CHF 35.17

JYP 3,678.92

15.75

7,647.82

1,025.96

2,720.63

2,562.36

$ 0.21

$ 101.45

EUR 12.35

CHF 34.71

JPY 3,678.92

Payables for imports towards 
LC’s/direct supplies:

Value of Imports (Calculated on C.I.F basis):

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

8,832.39

4,341.31

1,082.15

4,445.42

6,476.40

1,163.18

3,162.64

4,208.67

i) Raw Materials

ii) Coal

iii) Chemicals & Spares & Stores

iv) Capital Goods / Services
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35.  Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and in accordance with the 
no�fica�on issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, certain disclosures are required to be made 
rela�ng to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the said Act.  The company is in the 
process of compiling the relevant informa�on from its suppliers about their coverage under the said Act 
and hence required disclosures made to the extent available.  

The following are outstanding balances as at 31.03.2021:

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

1,778.38 1,085.32
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 
end of the accoun�ng year (All are within agreed period not 
due for payment)

NIL NIL

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of sec�on 
16, along with the amounts of payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accoun�ng 
year

NIL NIL

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the Act;

NIL NIL
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accoun�ng year; and 

NIL NIL

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, un�l such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deduc�ble 
expenditure under sec�on 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

36.  Con�ngent assets:

Legal cases filed by the company for recovery of dues/advances and pending in Courts for disposal:

Par�culars As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

807.34 662.35Against Debtors, Contractors and Suppliers
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37. Revenue from contracts with customers:
Ÿ The Company is producer of Chloro-Alkali & Chloromethane products and also manufactures Castor Deriva�ves 

and Fa�y Acids.
Ÿ Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that 

reflects the considera�on we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services.
Ÿ Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when control of the products being sold is transferred to our customer 

and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obliga�ons.
Ÿ The Performance Obliga�ons in our contracts are fulfilled at the �me of dispatch, delivery or upon formal 

customer acceptance depending on customer terms.
Ÿ Income from services rendered is recognized based on agreements/arrangements with the customers as the 

service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obliga�ons.
Ÿ Interest income is recognized using the effec�ve interest rate (EIR) method.
Ÿ Dividend income on investments is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

Revenue by Offerings As at 31st
March, 2021

As at 31st 
 March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

MANUFACTURED GOODS
Caus�c Soda Lye / Flakes
Liquid Chlorine
Hydrochloric Acid
Hydrogen Gas
Bleach Liquor
Caus�c Potash Lye/Flakes
Potassium Carbonate
Hydrogenated Castor Oil
12 Hydroxy Stearic Acid
Refined Glycerin
Stearic Acid
Soap Noodles.
Toilet Soaps
Methylene Chloride 
Chloroform
Others less than 1% of Total Turnover (Balancing figure)

TOTAL
Less: Indirect taxes
Net Revenue from products

Sl.
No.
A
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

45,062.56
7,894.60
3,516.29
1,116.87
1,506.43

22,482.54
1,922.12

392.04
1,697.52

443.09
6,690.31
5,306.72

142.35
12,024.53

3,465.88
3,157.96

116,821.81
16,996.37
99,825.44

60,158.34
4,519.03
2,482.39
1,117.79
1,828.28

18,603.86
1,203.34

598.22
1,571.78

308.74
5,392.47
3,466.09

185.89
11,484.97

4,686.65
2,980.29

1,20,588.13
17,536.51

1,03,051.62
The Company represents revenue net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.
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A.  Disaggregate Revenue Informa�on

The disaggregated revenue from contracts with the customers for the year ended 31stMarch, 2021 by offerings 
and contract type.    

Revenue by contract type

(` in lakhs)

Fixed �me frame

Time and material

Year ended 31st March, 2021 Year ended 31st March, 2020

99,825.44

1,046.55

1,03,051.62

974.57

B. Remaining Performance Obliga�ons
The remaining performance obliga�on disclosure provides the aggregate amount of transac�on price yet to be 
recognized as at the end of the repor�ng period and an explana�on as to when the Company expects to 
recognize these amounts in revenue.
Applying the prac�cal expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining 
performance obliga�on related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly 
with the value to the customer of en�ty's performance completed to date.
The aggregate amount of transac�on price allocated to remaining performance obliga�ons as per the 
requirements of Ind AS 115 is Rs.6,716.69 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 8,446.84 Lakhs)out of which, approximately 
99.90% (Previous year 99.85%) is expected to be recognized as revenues within one year and the balance 
beyond one year.

38. Cost of raw materials consumed:

Par�culars Year ended 
31st March, 2021

Year ended 
31st March, 2020

(` in lakhs)

Sl.
No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

SALT

CASTOR OIL

ACID OILS & OTHER OILS

POTASSIUM CHLORIDE 

RAW MATERIALS-SOAPS

HYDROCHLORIC ACID NORMAL GRADE

METHANOL

TOTAL

7,706.49

2,029.54

8,371.77

11,409.61

9.62

123.31

3,740.18

33,390.52

7,169.28

2,450.59

5,793.40

9,277.32

17.59

49.23

3,380.09

28,137.50
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39. Raw material consumed (` in lakhs)

Par�culars Qty.,
MT/KL

Year ended 31st March, 2021 Year ended 31st March, 2020

Rs. in 
lakhs % %Rs. in 

lakhs
Qty.,

MT/KL

i) Salt
         -Imported
         -Indigenous
ii) Potassium chloride
         -Imported
         -Indigenous
iii) Castor Oil 
         -Imported
         -Indigenous
iv) Lauric Acid
         -Imported
         -Indigenous
v) Palm fa�y acid dis�llate
         -Imported
         -Indigenous
vi) Palm Kernel oil/Dis�lled fa�y acid
         -Imported
         -Indigenous
vii) Crude Glycerin
         -Imported
         -Indigenous
viii) Methanol
         -Imported
         -Indigenous 
ix) Other Raw  Materials
         -Imported
         -Indigenous
      Total:
         -Imported
         -Indigenous

-
2,91,445

46,408
-

-
2,374

62
25

-
13,262

285
1,053

96
294

14,030
-

-
-

-
7,706.49

11,409.61
-

-
2,029.54

40.36
19.78

-
7,272.69

136.73
683.88

21.26
163.82

3,740.18
-

-
166.18

15,348.14
18,042.38
33,390.52

-
100

100
-

-
100

67.11
32.89

-
100

16.66
83.34

11.49
88.51

100
-

-
100

-
2,83,041

36,033
-

-
2,590

65
-

-
13,344

500
568

174
-

13,709
-

-
-

-
7,169.28

9,277.32
-

-
2,450.59

41.83
-

-
5,096.48

211.00
273.77

48.54
-

3,380.09
-

-
188.61

12,958.78
15,178.73
28,137.51

-
100

100
-

-
100

100
-

-
100

46.80
53.20

100
-

100
-

-
100
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40. Value of Chemicals, Packing and Stores consumed (other than used for repairs)
(` in lakhs)

Par�culars
Year ended 31st March, 2021 Year ended 31st March, 2020

Rs. in Lakhs % Rs. in Lakhs %

a) Imported

b) Indigenous

Total

302.97

4,857.05

5,160.02

5.87

94.13

100

174.44

5,632.13

5,806.57

3.00

97.00

100.00

41.  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest decimal of lakhs as required under Schedule - III.

42.  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the 
current year’s classifica�on / disclosure.

As per our a�ached report of even date

for K S RAO & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 003109S

                 Sd/-
(CA P. GOVARDHANA REDDY)
Partner  
Membership No.029193

Place: Hyderabad
Date :  3rd June,2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
CA K KARUNAKAR RAO

Execu�ve Director (Fin. & Comml.) & CEO

Sd/-
N JESVANTH REDDY

Execu�ve Director  (Technical)

Sd/-
CS V. RADHAKRISHNA MURTHY

Company Secretary  

Sd/-
CA C. RAJESH KHANNA

Vice President (Fin. & Accts) & CFO
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If�undelivered,�please�return�to:

TGV�SRAAC�LIMITED
(Formerly�Sree�Rayalaseema�Alkalies�&�Allied�Chemicals�Ltd.)

(CIN�:�L24110AP1981PLC003077)
#�6-2-1012,�2nd�Floor,�TGV�Mansion
Khairatabad,�Hyderabad�-�500�004,�Telangana
T�:�+91�40�2331�3842
E-mail�:�sralkalies@tgvmail.com

G R O U P

website�:�www.tgvgroup.com
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